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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

HE_FE-E+ZB=+—HIEF/Z for the year ended 31 December 2002
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MIGHE FNANCIAL HIGHUIGHTS

EE-FF_EF+ZF=+—HI-F/EF for the year ended 31 December 2002

, [ ] -
B EE-F ZEFEF
) BT T /%%*%‘?71: BT
2002 2001 2000
1 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EHE Turnover 28,822,019 24,196,490 16,810,248
FAG iyl Profit from operations 1,800,373 2,021,801 2,497,009
FEISERE A RISELE  Share of results of associates 449,930 422,559 611,698
REEE R Profit attributable to shareholders 1,402,945 1,204,807 1,656,733
BEEFIGE®)  Earnings per share (HKS) $0.68 $0.60 $0.83
FERE (B Dividend per share (HK$) $0.47 $0.18 $0.21
iy l ! H
R-ZBT=F  NIZE—5F RISRTE |
! +ZRB=+—H +zZA=+—H +zZR=+—H |
| BT T BT BETT
| At 31 December At 31 December At 31 December
i 2002 2001 2000
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i ]
Hxﬁf“‘ Shareholders’ funds 13,286,733 11,987,385 10,759,447
SERR R Minority interests 3,263,256 2,867,842 2,889,160
FEERER Consolidated net borrowings 1,482,909 1,684,944 —
BN = Current ratio 1.29 1.60 1.65
BREEFE Net assets per share:
BRIE(E (B book value (HK$) $6.39 $5.95 $5.41
BEL®R? Gearing? 8.96% 11.34% N/A
HitE Notes:
1. BERBNDERREESFIRAEAERITRNZ NEFHEE - 1. Earnings per share have been calculated by dividing the profit attributable to shareholders by
weighted average number of shares in issue during the year.
2. BN REERCRERE SR ERERELA - 2. Gearing represents the ratio of net borrowings to shareholders' funds and minority interests.
3. B TIMPGHREMEZ (R MBR T EE :)fi_: —HUEBEE 3. Except for the accounting treatment of purchased goodwill in the financial year ended
EOESZEHREN BEFEIHBUFCEEN  UWENETE 31 December 2000 as detailed in Note 2 (E) to the financial statements, comparative figures

B2 FEERE -

in prior years have been restated to conform with the Group's accounting policies.

ERMEERAA 3
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EXBREH 7T
ANALYSIS OF TURNOVER AND PROFIT

HE-—FF &£+ A=Z+—HIFFX for the year ended 31 December 2002

BB B
TURNOVER BY SEGMENT
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EREERAEFSH R ANALYSIS OF TURNOVER AND PROFIT

HEZEF-F+ZF=+—HiLFE for the year ended 31 December 2002
[ I }
| S —En—F
| BETT BT |
[ 2002 2001 1
‘ HK$"000 HK$'000 |
BEFBLER Turnover by segment
BB B R Petroleum and Chemical Distribution 10,500,763 9,889,257
zE Retail 6,344,205 4,025,816
BRI R Food Pracessing and Distribution 4,803,374 5,749,859
R Beverage 3,738,119 2,412,999
Textiles 2,521,527 -
mE Property 540,832 1,478,956
REREMER Investments and Others 518,442 774,271
e Subtotal 28,967,262 24,331,158
HHEEFEZRS Elimination of inter-segment transactions (145,243) {134,668)
Fok] Total 28,822,019 24,196,490
BIEEE 2 RREEBER Profit attributable to shareholders by segment
bim kBT Petroleum and Chemical Distribution 284,671 227,942
=€ Retail 24,306 30,920
BEmI k& Food Processing and Distribution 336,794 396,767
. Beverage 100,105 60,849
ot Textiles 164,311 -
W Property 220,760 512,727
WREREMER Investments and Others 407,293 169,471
e Subtotal 1,538,240 1,398,676
NEEEFIEFENER Net corporate interest and expenses (135,295) (193,869)
BE Total 1,402,945 1,204,807
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

FHIER
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FINAL RESULTS

The Group's consolidated turnover and profit attributable to shareholders
for the year ended 31 December 2002 amounted to approximately
HK$28,822.0 million and HK$1,402.9 million respectively, representing
an increase of 19.1% and 16.4% from that of last year. Profit contributed
by the textile business replaced the anticipated decline in profit from
property development segment. Earnings per share of the Group, on a
weighted average basis, was HK$0.68 compared to HK$0.60 in 20071,

On a geographical basis, turnover from the Chinese Mainland accounted
for 42.4% in 2002 as compared to 31.9% last year. The growth is consistent
with the Group’s strategic direction to increase the weighting of its business

from the Chinese Mainland.

DIVIDENDS

The Board recommends a final dividend of HK$0.13 per share for 2002
(2001: HK$0.1 per share) payable on or about 2 July 2003 to shareholders
whose names appear on the Register of Members of the Company on 2

June 2003.

Together with the interim dividend of HK$0.09 per share and the special
dividend of HK$0.25 per share paid on 8 February 2002, the total
distribution for 2002 will amount to HK$0.47 per share (2001: HK$0.18

per share).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER

The Register of Members will be closed from 2 June 2003 to 5 June
2003, both days inclusive. In order to qualify for the final dividend, all
completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the share registrars of the Company, Standard
Registrars Limited of G/F, Bank of East Asia, Harbour View Centre, 56
Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on 30
May 2003.

ERERBRAF
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FEHRE CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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STRATEGIC FOCUS

The Group has identified the Chinese Mainland retailing market as driver
to lead the growth of its distribution businesses. In 2002, retail sales in the
Chinese Mainland grew 8.8% in nominal terms, again faster than the
nominal GDP growth of 6.7%. This is the trend for the past eight years in
the Chinese Mainland. Its robust economy and growing urban segment is
underpinning the retailing market with consumers showing a growing
preference for better shopping environment and quality products. Modern
food retail formats, in particular hypermarkets and superstores, are quickly
gaining popularity. Coupled with the economic liberalization after its
accession to the World Trade Organization, we believe the mainland
consumer sector is still at an early stage of its metamorphosis and

opportunities abound.

Under the Group’s retail-led distribution model, some of our consumer
businesses, including food, textiles as well as beverage, will form part of
the supply chain for our retail businesses. Our objective is to maximize the
operational synergies between our retailing businesses and supply chain-
related distribution businesses. The Group has initially targeted fresh food

and garment products for integration with the retailing businesses.

Last year, we formulated strategies for our retail, food, textiles and logistics
businesses together with professional firms. This year, we have started to
further streamline our business via non-core asset disposal. On 26 March
2003, in a bid to further streamline our business and focus on the core
operations, the Group proposed a restructuring which, if implemented,
will result in the Group’s shareholders receiving a special dividend through
a distribution in specie of the Group’s existing interests in concrete
manufacturing and related interests under a new holding company, China
Resources Cement Holdings Limited (“China Resources Cement”). The
restructuring is conditional on, among other things, the approval by the
independent shareholders of the Company on the acquisition of some
cement operations held by China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited
("CRH"). An application has been made to The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“the Stock Exchange”) for the listing of China Resources
Cement on the Stock Exchange by way of introduction. Details of the group

restructuring will be shown in a circular to be dispatched to the shareholders.

ZMalEERAE
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

1

WEEREEAMBRRTREOBAA - RFTSEE We will continue to review our business portfolio and improve its overall

ERREENEBES  UFAREESMRENST efficiency in a manner consistent with the legitimate interests and benefits

AREESRENE - of our shareholders.

EER CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

RTRSVBOERE  AEEEEFT+—HER In a bid to improve financial transparency, the Group announced voluntarily

SRMAGEEHMBNEBLE - ZMHFEERRK its first quarterly financial and operational review in November last year. It

BEAGTEMBMEROGE - ZE L RIES is our intention to continue to publish quarterly financial and operational

—HEEEREROR AT ZEAMEEREE - UT review in the future. In fact, we are the third Hang Seng Index constituent

RAREEEFRENEMEZENTEREBME - stock to voluntarily announce quarterly performance review. Summarised
below are the other major corporate governance initiatives adopted by the
Group last year.

o AEEESEHTHESARRBENERNRITE o The Group's Executive Committee, which formulates company policies
Eg TR-_TE-FhABRTEE  TwRkk and supervises their implementation, held an intensive meeting in
HERCEELRRE - EQHRRBRBE IR September 2002 to discuss international corporate governance
= IR ERYEE - standards and our comparison. It subsequently approved of a proposal

to further elevate our standard.

o BMNEEFENETEEE LT  TERNES o A handbook on corporate governance was prepared and distributed
& FRIHBRMNCEE ARUANEL  ©g internally by the end of last year. The handbook sets out our principles
EEES - UZERERE - and practices in corporate governance and will be updated regularly

to match with international standards.

o RE—FSEFEZRNBEVELRNEEENE o Asameasure to further enhance the Board’s independence in the review
B AREER-_ZE=F=-FEREAERES of management performance, the Group appointed Dr. the Hon Li Ka
ERBIUFRITES - Cheung Eric as independent non-executive director in March 2003.

AEBENARRRE  EEHEEERERERNOE The Group is commitied to ensuring shareholders of high standard of

ZER @E%@Fﬂ%%%‘@@ﬁﬁﬁﬁ@@ﬁ@gﬁ o E corporate governance in all aspects and our requirements are promulgated

REFREBENE N - BRARRKEEE 1k to all management levels. We will continue to look for further improvement

Z BE—H riding on the efforts made last year.

EHBEERAF 9  CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED




EEHE CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

With a common goal to strengthen investor relations, the Group’s senior
management and heads of different business units worked closely last
year to enable an cpen and responsive communication with shareholders,
the financial community and the media in Hong Kong and abroad. During
the year, company visits, site visits, roadshows and conferences were
arranged to provide investors with a full perspective of our businesses and
new investments. More than 240 analysts and 440 fund managers attended
the functions. Through such interactive and keen communication with
investors, management benefited considerably from a better understanding
of the interests and concerns of investors. The Group's concerted efforts
in promoting investor relations have received enthusiastic feedback from

the financiaf community and the media.

In addition, the Group's web site was revamped during the year to allow
easier access to the most updated company news. Press releases and
presentations were often distributed in a proactive manner so that investors

could keep good track of the latest information.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group is dedicated to build better lives together with the community.
In October 2002, the Group jointly organized a recruitment campaign,
namely “Your gateway to China” with CRH, offering one hundred vacancies
to new university graduates. The response to the campaign was
encouraging and over 1,800 candidates attended the event. Apart from
the campaign, staff from all levels of the Group was given ongoeing training
programs and workshops on diverse topics to enhance both their career

and personal development.

It is also the Group's objective and responsibility to minimize environmental
impact of our operations. Our brewery, petroleum and chemical distribution
as well as food processing and distribution operations have deployed
stringent environmental protection measures to reduce effluence to the
least. The Group will continue t© encourage and implement initiatives that
could bring forth the well-being of the Hong Kong and Chinese Mainland

societies and will endeavor to comply with the best industry practice.

EBiRERDF
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EEBE CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

ZHIER

ZEBEFAR  EREEETTRARRENE
B HERNRASENEFTR - BRAMIEEPRN
EEFXIAI(A) F - RREEENEATE —
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REE - FREBRGAT  HHIYEAREE
REF BRMEEHERANE - AREBETE
TEARER  BBAIMNE  EANE  EHER

A NEW BRAND IDENTITY

In September 2002, CRH undertock a corporate branding campaign to
promote and enhance its brand identity. The four “person” (A} Chinese
characters embedded in our new logo represent four aspects of the China
Resources culture --- dedication to people, growth driven by people, respect
for people and improvement to the lives of people. Together with our parent
company, the Group is committed to enrich people’s lives and deliver maximum

value to our customers, shareholders and employees. Through innovation and

HAMES 1 U B B0 SR BT o A
WAAIO  [EEETF - B EE]
IRALZEEREEEE MO ES

by
FEF FEMNBEEKA  BIR

=

enhancement, the Group aims for achieving leadership
positions in our core businesses over the medium to long term.
Our corporate tagline “Better Life Together” also echoes the
Group's existing businesses that are, by and large, tightly

related to daily lives.

PROSPECTS

The 2002 results were achieved in a difficult year marked

MEERE  THEQEERB:  HRRESE
TEANEE  FAARMAFENXERE—AE
BRIRBTERUR - 2WRAHARERE - E
FRECERARNERET TRENERE - ik
SEANYRERREBRAZT —TT_F0R
FIDARFIEBE  BRRME_STRENAENT
MEEEECWTIERY - ERE_EZF - ]
CREEXBAS B UDEEROERE -
EILEHETS

HE=
EEERS

by continuing deflation in Hong Kong, global economic slowdown as well
as a high degree of economic and pclitical uncertainty. Despite the
challenging environment, the Group has been laying solid foundation for
its future. We have seen the initial resuits of our restructuring exercise
announced in June 2000 as evident from the earnings stability in 2002 in
the absence of significant property development profit. Over the past two
to three years, we have restructured our business portfolio to reduce the

reliance on property development and focus on distribution businesses.

EMAETRQTE
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TEREE CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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We have also increased the pace of our investment in the mainiand retailing
market, through acquisitive and organic growth. The Group aims to achieve a
total retailing turnover of RMBS50 billion in the Chinese Mainland in five years’
time to tead further corporate development. The successful acquisitions of
China Resources Vanguard Co., Ltd. (“CR Vanguard”, formerly known as
China Vanguard Supermarket Department Co., Ltd.) and Suguo Supermarket
Co., Ltd. BRE#R™M AR 2 5} are important steps to implement our retailing
plan. We have also commenced a re-branding program for our supermarket
business. A national brand with traits that can clearly be distinguished from
another will be created. As WTO broadens direct access to the mainland market,
competition is increasing especially in the supermarket sector. To succeed in
competition, we are strengthening our supply chain, building up district
dominance, improving cost efficiency and recruiting talents. Upon successful
implementation of our retailing plan by the end of 2006, our earnings base

will be enlarged and become more recurrent.

In addition, our supply chain-related operations, including food, brewery
and textile, are well positioned to seek growth opportunities in the Chinese
Mainland to bring synergies to our retail businesses. Though businesses in
Hong Kong were restrained by the effects of more than three years of price
deflation and high unemployment rate, they had displayed strong resiliency
during the year and contributed stable cashflow. For the year under review,
the proportion of the Group’s revenue and profit before taxation from the
mainland has increased to 42.4% and 29.5% respectively, compared with

31.9% and 12.5% during the year ended 31 December 2001.

Barring any unforeseeable circumstances, we expect the Group to achieve
satisfactory results for 2003 and the turnover from the Chinese Mainland
to exceed Hong Kong. We are confident of our long-term ability to excel in

a competitive market environment.

EHEETRAA
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EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2002, the Group excluding its associated companies
employs approximately 66,000 people, of which approximately 63,000
are employed in the Chinese Mainland, with the remaining predominantly
in Hong Kong. The Group’s employees are remunerated according to the
nature of job, individual performance and market trends with built-in merit
components, paid in the form of cash bonuses and share options. A new
share option scheme to replace the old one was approved by the
shareholders in the general meeting on 31 January 2002. Details of the

scheme are described in the Report of the Directors.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to express our sincere
thanks for the valuable contributions given by Mr. Chan Wai Mo, who has
recently resigned as the Group's executive director for personal reasons.
Directors of the Group would also like to welcome a new member to the
Board, Dr. the Hon Li Ka Cheung Eric as independent non-executive director.
We believe that with his extensive experience in public services, accountancy
and professional management, Dr. Li will become another valuable member

of the Board.

Finally, we acknowledge our gratitude to our employees for their

commitment and hard work during the year.

NING GAONING
Chairman
Hong Kong, 3 April 2003

ENUHEBRLE)
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TEEWmEST
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

PETROLEUM AND CHEMICAL DISTRIBUTION

The Group's petroleum and chemical operation is engaged principally in
the marketing and distribution of petroleum, LPG and chemical products

in Hong Kong and the Chinese Mainland.

Uncertain world economy, fear of wars, concern on the oil supply from

o MHERERRNLH
BE - NERE—FEE
BRAMAXR  #HEREM | 0
BRE RN EMBERE
28 REEBHIT
EoEYEEET B
FEFERSEIET -
BELR TMEEMNKD
W REBE_TEZ |

the Middle East and the unusual cold winter in
Central Asia impacted the supply as well as the
. prices of oil and the petroleum products during
the year under review. Qil prices have risen sharply
from US$21 per barre! at the beginning of 2002
to US$31 at the year end. Despite all these

volatilities, the petroleum operation achieved a

favourable performance in 2002.
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Turnover for the year of 2002 for this segment was HK$10,500.8 million,
an increase of 6.2% compared with last year. Net profit before corporate
interest and expenses for the year of 2002 was HK$284.7 million, an

increase of 24.9% over that of 2001.

The petroleum operation reported a turnover HK$8,076.8 million for the
year of 2002, representing an increase of 2.1% over that of last year. Overall
sales volume sustained at last year level. Sales volume for diesel il fell by
17.4% while fuel oil and aviation kerosene rose by 3.3% and 19.4%
respectively over that of last year. Despite downward pressure to selling
prices for diesel oil and aviation kerosene due to fluctuating crude oil prices
and competition, the operation was able to enhance its profits through
centralized purchase and improved logistics control. Performance of the

gas operation in Hong Kong has been stable for the year under review.

Petrol and LPG stations in Hong Kong recorded an increase of 19.7% in
sales volume for the year of 2002. As to LPG sold at own stations, overall

sales volume soared by 28.4% over last year as a result of the introduction

ZBHEFRLF
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of environmental friendly LPG taxis by the Hong Kong Government and an
addition of 2 new LPG stations. Despite the purchased cost of LPG went
up lately, the LPG ceiling prices pre-set by the HK government every six
months has precluded timely price change, causing decline in profit
contribution. In addition, competition is expected to increase as major oil
distributors in Hong Kong have begun to set up LPG filling facilities in their
own petrol stations. Sales for the petrol stations in Chinese Mainland are

expected to improve in 2003 aided by direct account sales. At year-end,
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the Group operated a total of 19 petrol and LPG
stations in Hong Kong and 22 petrol stations in
the Chinese Mainland. During the year, the Group
also secured the right to operate a petrol station
in Macau which is expected to be in service in
2003. Adherence to stringent safety standards

helped reduce the insurance expenses of the filling

stations for the year under review.
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The chemical operation enjoyed good performance due to the strong demand
in the Chinese Mainland and an improved sale and distribution network. For
the year ended 31 December 2002, the operation reported a turnover of
HK$1,005.1 million, up 44.2% from last year and an operating profit of

HK$33.1 million compared to an operating loss of HK$19.7 million last year.

For the year under review, the marine transportation operation reported a
turnover of HK$740.4 million, down 22.4% from last year and an operating
profit of HK$25.6 million, up 77.5% from last year. The decrease in turnover
was due to fall in the sales volume of fuel replenishment for marine vessels
while the rise in profit was the result of improved profit margins and effective

cost control over vessel operations.

The Group anticipates fluctuation of the oil prices to continue in the
near term and will take prudent measures to mitigate the effects to its

business performance.

EBMURERDCT

15

CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED




TEEFR

B MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

=5

BEMEF  TRLENTEE BESETA X
XESETAEVE - THEBEZETERLENT
EX AFEEARNRE - E-HFRENEERE
T HEREHERBINGE  TEHRANTHEDA
RERERIE FHERMEHRLAOEEHE - X
EENEEERERE_TE_F+-_A=1+—H
IEFEHEEEEEAE6,344,200000T - LEE L

RETAIL

In the past two years, the economy of Hong Kong was affected adversely by
deflation, falling property prices and high unemployment rate. Competition
was fierce in the retail sector both in Hong Kong and the Chinese Mainland,
Amidst the uncertain economy, consumers were very price sensitive. Retailers
had to offer generous discounts and loyalty programs to compete for the
dwindling dollars. For the year ended 31 December 2002, the retail segment

reported a turnover of HK$6,344.2 million, up 57.6% against last year and
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a net profit before corporate interest and expenses
of HK$24.3 million, down 21.4% compared to

last year.

SUPERMARKET

The Group currently operates close to 460 stores
in Hong Kong and the Chinese Mainland. The

number includes self-operated stores and some
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franchised stores in the mainland. The Group
became the single largest supermarket group in South China Region, after
acquiring a 65% equity interest in CR Vanguard in July 2002 at a
consideration of RMB372 miilion (HK$350 million). In September 2002,
the Group also acquired a 39.25% equity interest in Suguo Supermarket
Co., Ltd. BRER BT AR 2 7] for a consideration of RMB232 million (HK$217
million) in order to strengthen its retail operations in the Chinese Mainland
further. The share of turnover for the Chinese Mainland’s operations grew
from 29.5% in 2001 to 62.7% in 2002 as the number of self-operated
stores went up from 254 to 316, witnessing the shift of reliance to the
Chinese Mainland operations. The Group will continue to expand its

supermarket operation through new store opening in 2003.

For the year ended 371 December 2002, the supermarket operation reported
a turnover of HK$4,386.3 million, up 87.3% from last year and a net loss
before corporate interest and expenses of HK$3.6 million against a net profit
of HK$2.9 million in 2001. Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortization ("EBITDA™) of the supermarket operation attributable to the
Group for 2002 amounted to approximately HK$127.0 million. Overall EBITDA

margin was maintained at last year’s level of 2.9%. For the year under review,

Bl
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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the newly acquired operations from CR Vanguard contributed a profit of
HK$2.2 million. Such results included relatively high upfront store opening
expenses of one-off nature as a result of significant increase in number of
new stores opened in 2002 as well as a goodwill amortization of HK$3.9
million for five months associated with the acquisition of a 65% equity interest
of CR Vanguard. The robust growth in turnover was due to acquisition of
CR Vanguard in July 2002 and substantial increase in number of stores in

the Chinese Mainland.,

To keep up with customer needs and changing market scenes, the Group has

taken steps to revamp its store formats for its Chinese Mainland operations. A

re-branding program has also commenced to establish a national brand.

Given the continuous expansion of the retail sector in the Chinese Mainland,
the Group is optimistic to sustain the growth and to improve the profit
performance of its Chinese Mainland retail operation in the years ahead

through a larger operational scale and enhancement in internal efficiency.

BRAND-FASHICN DISTRIBUTION

The Group’s brand fashion distribution business in the Chinese Mainland
continues its stable growth. The operation currently distributes 18 internationally
acclaimed brands in designated cities and operates a total of 761 self-operated
and franchised boutiques at the end of December 2002 compared to 570 last
year. The substantial startup costs incurred in previous years for brand
development begin to be paid off. From time to time, the Group will appraise
the performance of individual shop and brand such that shop that offers little or
no profit will be considered for closure while brand with limited development
potential will be pulled out. In order to increase market share, the Group will

continue to expand by opening new shops and growing the distribution network.

For the year under review, the operation reported a turnover of HK$893.6
million, up 28.0% from that of last year and a net profit before corporate
interest and expenses of HK$4.5 million, down 4.0% against 2001. The strong

growth of turnover was mainly due to continuing store expansion in 2002.

ERURERDE
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HONG KONG RETAIL

The Group currently operates a chain of retail stores in Hong Kong under
the name of CRC Department Store ZEH B &, Chinese Arts & Craft Stores
("CAC") 1 and CR Care store ZHE. CR Care was previously known

as CRC Medichall. The rebranding exercise was carried out in January 2003.

To cope with the changing market needs, the Group has taken strategic

moves to gradually convert its traditional department stores to
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specialised stores. During the year of 2002, the Group
closed its CRC Department Store at Central due to re-
development of the building by its owner. The Group
also redecorated the CAC Store at Wanchai and Star
House respectively in order to create more prominent
image for the store to market its medium to high-end
arts and crafts products, jewelry and traditional
costumes. The CRC Department Store at Mongkok will
be closed by April 2003 while the CAC Store at Pacific
Place will be redecorated based on the newly defined
image. In January 2003, the first super-sized EFE

CR Care store was opened under the new logo at To

Kwa Wan. The new store occupies a total floor area of

Z-EAEERR REam-

BRER REAR EPARE  REERHEZ
ERRF - WERFAREEEATENREERR
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BIRARHL  RRIENHERERE -
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12,000 square feet and offers Chinese herbs and
medicines, western drugs, personal care products, health foods, dried
seafood products, sports gears and household items etc. In addition, the
store also provides medical consultation service. The development of
specialised stores along with the brand new theme of "healthy life” will
form an important part of Hong Kong retail's core business while CAC
stores will be developed as stores of vogue promoting sale of Chinese arts

and craft items.

For the year ended 31 December 2002, the Hong Kong retail operation
reported a turnover of HK$1,064.3 million, down 3.6% from that of last
year and a net profit before corporate interest and expenses of HK$29.4
million, up 26.3% compared to 2001. The performance was affected by

the closure of 2 department stores.

SHLRERALF
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FOOD PROCESSING AND DISTRIBUTION

Despite the difficult economic environment in Hong Kong the
performance of the Group’s food processing and distribution operation

was relatively stable.

For the year ended 31 December 2002, the operation reported a turnover
of HK$4,803.4 million, a decrease of 16.5% from that of 2001 and a net

profit before corporate interest and expenses amounted to HK$336.8

4L 778 % 336,800,0007T -
HEFHL151%  BETRR
~FRoF- ARALOEEE
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0,
/’7\{\ million, a decrease of 15.1% compared with that of
_— | 2001, The decline in revenue was mainly due to weak
= consumption and lifting of the quota on frozen meats
export to Hong Kong in January 2002. Excluding the

effect of reduced interest income caused by the dividend
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payment of a HK$1.3 billion made in 2001, net profit
in 2002 only fell slightly by 3.7% compared to that of

last year.

Operating profit for the food distribution coperation
for the year ended 31 December 2002 was 4.5%

below that of last year. The decline was distorted by

the exceptionaily high demand for live pigs, triggered
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by the outbreak of bird flu and suspension of chilled
meat from Thailand during the year of 20071. For the year under review,
the grocery and other food products within the food distribution operation
reported an increase of 11.3% in turnover and 22.7% in operating profit
over 2001, due to successful launch of new products through strong
sales team and growing number of new customers. Through prudent
marketing strategy and increased direct sourcing of foreign and Chinese
Mainland meat products, the Group has improved the gross profit margin
of frozen meats substantially by 5.4 percentage points. In order to enhance
the market share in Hong Kong, the cperations have been actively
promoting the fresh, chilled and frozen meat under the brand name

¥ with satisfactory results.
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The ice-cream and frozen food processing operation enjoyed satisfactory

performance, due to expansion of the sales network, increase of products
variety and improved margins. For the year ended 31 December 2002,
turnover rose 19.5% and its operating profit jumped 14.9% compared to

that of last year.

The poor economy has caused competition from South American prawn

suppliers in European market to intensify and consumption in Japanese
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N market to decline. Poor global economy caused
the selling prices of prawns and tuna to decline
in 2002. However the transportation cost
increased substantially due to the soaring fuel
price. As a result, even though turnover was

maintained at last year’s level, operating profit for

the marine fishing and aguatic product processing

operation has decreased compared to 2001,
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For the year ended 31 December 2002, abattoir and other operation reported
a 5.2% increase in operating profit over that of last year, due to enhanced
efficiency and effective cost control despite a slight decline in slaughtering

volume and revenue.

In March 2003, the Group set up a joint venture to construct a modern
meat processing centre in Shanghal, laying the cornerstone for entering

the mainland meat market.

On & brighter note, the buoyant economy of the Chinese Mainland has
provided the Group with the opportunities to expand its existing businesses

and market share there.
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BEVERAGE

The Group is the second largest brewer in the mainland with sales volume

rising 62.3% to 2,343,748 kilolitres. China‘s beer industry continues to

undergo consolidation with the emergence of a small number of large

brewery groups. The Group will continue to play a role in this consalidation

by expanding production capacity through acquisitions in targeted regions.
ey

Promotions are gearing up for the Group's national brand "Snow SZ7t

to enhance its market share and profitability. Sales volume of Snow
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increased by 37% to 442,000 kilolitres, of which about

half were sold outside Shenyang.

The Group acquired a new brewery in Wuhan City in
April 2002 and a new brewery in Panjin in December
2002, bringing the total number of breweries to 28
and a combined annual production capacity of
approximately 4 million kilolitres as of December 2002.

Integration of the new breweries is progressing well
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with positive synergy effect. In December 2002, the
Group acquired the minority interest for its brewery at Shenyang and in

January 2003 also acquired a 70% equity interest for a brewery in Beijing.

For the year ended 31 December 2002, the operation reported a turnover
of HK$3,738.1 million, an increase of 54.9% over last year and a net profit
before corporate interest and expenses of HK$100.1 million, an increase
of 64.5% compared to last year. A large portion of the growth is attributable
to the Group’s acquisitions including the Sichuan Blue Sword in late 2001

and the brewery in Wuhan in 2002.

Sales volume for beer and purified water for the year of 2002 amounted
to 2,343,748 kilolitres and 279,777 kilolitres respectively, showing an
increase of 62.3% and an increase of 17.7% over that of last year.
Discounting the new acquisitions, an crganic growth of about 5.2% in the

sales volume for beer was recorded for the year under review.

EHEETRAT
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TEXTILES

The Group acquired the textile business from its parent, CRH, in January 2002
for a consideration of approximately HK$940 million. The textile business,
established in the late 1950s, is one of the leading players in the textile industry
engaging in the manufacturing and distribution of textiles and garments in
the Chinese Mainland. The acquired business has an established network for
imports and exports with a strong base of supply and customers around the
world. In order to strengthen the management for the textile operation, the
Group also acquired the minority interests of several operating units in
Shandong in May 2002 and a controlling interest in a company in Hebei in
November 2002. With a view to reduce operational and production costs of
the acquired business and to facilitate the Group's plan to increase its market
share in the highly fragmented textiles and garment manufacturing industry
in China, the Group announced in February 2003 the acquisition of 51%
interests in China Resources Jinhua Co. Ltd., a Shenzhen-listed company, for a
consideration of RMB163.5 million. The completion of acquisition is subject
to regulatory approvals including a mainland waiver from making a general
offer. In addition, the Group entered into an agreement in March 2003 to
acquire a textile production operation in Jiangsu. In order to upgrade product
quality aimed at improving profit margins, the Group has started a program
in late 2002, funded through internal resources, to replace old machines
with advanced ones. The west coast port lockout in the United States in

September 2002 has insignificant effect to the garment exports business.

For the year ended 31 December 2002, the operation reported a turnover
of HK$2,521.5 million and a net profit before corporate interest and
expenses of HK$164.3 million. Under the provision of profit guarantee
from CRH, the guaranteed profit at HK$160.0 million was met for the year

under review.

The Group is optimistic that the operation will turn more competitive in
the market place and contribute good returns when the effects of technical

upgrade begin to take root.
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PROPERTY

The property market in Hong Kong was lackluster for the year under review.
Net rentals of office and industrial properties continued to slide and had
returned to the level in 1988. The Group's rental income was affected by

property downturn but occupancy rates remained high.

For the year ended 31 December 2002, the property operation reported
a turnover of HK$540.8 million (2001: HK$1,478.9 million) and a net
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—~ profit before corporate interest and expenses
HK$220.8 mil_(ion (2001: HK$512.7 million). The
decline in turnover and profit compared to 2001
reflects the Group's strategy to shift its focus to

retail-led businesses.

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT
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For the year ended 31 December 2002, the
Group's Hong Kong property development segment, which comprises
its 55% interest in the Villa Esplanada project, recorded a turnover of
HK$70.8 million {2001: HK$999.2 million) and a net profit before
corporate interest and expenses of HK$12.3 million (2001: HK$208.0
million). The developments have been completed with all residential
units substantially sold in prior years. At end of 2002, only 3 residential
units were left unsold. Of the 500 car parks, 211 have been sold and

266 leased as at end of 2002.
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RENTAL PRCPERTIES

The Group’s retail properties are located in the prime Hong Kong districts
including Causeway Bay, Mongkok, Tsimshatsui and Tsuen Wan, occupying
a total floor area of about 398,000 square feet. The Group’s New Town
Mall #7235 at Nan Fung Centre, targeting younger generations, has
enjoyed stable growth in rental income since opened in 2000. Riding on
this success, the Group will take steps in 2003 to revamp its retail properties
at Mongkok with innovative decors and distinctive themes to attract and
retain customers. As of December 2002, most retail properties were fully
leased. The Group's rental properties held for industrial and office use, has
a total floor area of approximately 812,000 square feet and 163,000 square

feet respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2002, the Group's rental properties
segment, which comprises retail stores, office and industrial premises,
reported a turnover of HK$286.5 million (2001: HK$309.4 million) and a
net profit before corporate interest and expenses of HK$148.5 million (2001:
HK$242.5 million). A provision of HK$78.6 million has been made, of which
HK$57.4 million was reflected in the Group's consolidated profit and loss
account and HK$21.2 miltion to the reserves, to reflect the decline in value

for the investment properties as of December 2002.

The Group is one of the major godown and cold storage owners and
operators in Hong Kong with a total floor area of 1,550,000 square feet.
Due to the weak economy, occupancy rates for godown and cold storage
operations dropped from last year's 91% and 90% to this year's 89% and
86% respectively. Despite the growing competition and low demands, the
operation still reported a stable performance in turnover of HK$183.5
million (2001: HK$170.4 million) and net profit of HK$60.0 million (2001:

HK$62.2 million) for the year under review.
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INVESTMENTS AND OTHERS

For the year ended 31 December 2002, the Group’s other investments
reported & turnover of HK$518.4 million (2001: HK$774.3 million) and a
net profit before corporate interest and expenses of HK$407.3 million (2001:
HK$169.5 million).

Excluding the asset disposal income of HK$59.1 million and the loss
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recognised of HK$292.0 million for the
investment in banking business in 2001, profit

for the year of 2002 increased by 1.2%.

CONTAINER TERMINAL
The Group has a 10% interest in HIT Investments

Limited. The Hong Kong and Yantian deepwater
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port operations, which together serve the Shenzhen
and Southern China manufacturing basin, reported combined throughput

growth of 21% and EBIT growth of 11%.

BUILDING MATERIALS

While the performance for the year under review was affected by low
construction activities, the Group is cautiously optimistic of its longer-term
prospect as the government attaches great importance to invest in infrastructure
to maintain Hong Kong's competitiveness. The Hong Kong government has
announced various key focus areas for developments including Victoria Harbour,
transportation, urban renewal, ports and new towns etc. All these construction

activities will generate positive demand for concrete.

For the year ended 31 December 2002, the operation reported a turnover
of HK$391.5 million, a decrease of 41.3% from that of last year and a net
profit before corporate interest and expenses of HK$53.3 million, a decrease
of 62.4% as compared to 2001.

Cn 26 March 2003, the Group announced a proposal to restructure the ready-
mixed concrete business by way of distribution in specie of its equity in such

business to shareholders with a view to streamline and focus on its core operations.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

CAPITAL AND FUNDING

The Group finances its operations principally by cash generated from internal
operations, equity capital and bank borrowings. After fully repaying the
Floating Rate Notes of US$175 million in April 2002 and settling the
HK$2.9 billion syndicated loan, the Group's borrowings as at 31 December
2002 was HK$5,429.0 million with HK$2,278.5 million payable within 1
year. The Group’s consolidated cash amounted to HK$3,946.1 million.
Committed borrowing facilities available to the Group, but not drawn as at
31 December 2002, amounted to approximately HK$2.0 billion (2001: Nil).
The US$230 million convertible guaranteed bonds, issued by the Group in
May 2001 and due on 31 May 2006, are subject to fixed interest rate while

all other bank borrowings are subject to floating rates.

Calculated on the basis of the Group’s net borrowings over shareholders’
funds and minority interests, the Group’s net gearing ratio remained low

at approximately 9.0%.

The Group has a substantial portion of its assets denominated in Hong
Kong dollars, U.S. dollars and Renminbi. As of 31 December 2002, the
Group has 21.2% of its borrowings denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
39.3% in U.S. dollars and 39.5% in Renminbi. As of 31 December 2002,
the Group had no material exposure to foreign exchange contracts, interest

or currency swap or other financial derivatives.

tn October 2002, the Group sealed a HK$3 billion dual-currency syndicated
loan facility. The interest rate has been set at 39 basis points over the
London inter-bank offered rate for the United States dollar loans and 39
basis points over the Hong Kong inter-bank offered rate for the local
currency. The facility will be utilized for refinancing the existing loans and

general corporate funding needs for the Group and its subsidiaries.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2002, fixed assets with net book value of HK$466.4
million (2001: HK$654.0 million) are pledged for short-term loans in the
sum of HK$370.6 million (2001: pledged for short-term loans of HK$438.3

million and long-term loans of HK$37.6 million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group does not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31

December 2002
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DIRECTORS

MR. NING GAONING, aged 44

was appointed the Chairman in 1999. He is also the Vice Chairman and
President of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and China
Resources National Corporation, as well as the Chairman of China
Resources Land Limited. He holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics
from the Shandong University in China and a Master of Business
Administration degree in Finance from the University of Pittsburgh in
the United States. He is also a Director of HIT Investments Limited.

MR. SONG LIN, aged 40

was appointed Deputy Chairman and Managing Director of the Group
in November 2001. He is also a Vice President and an Executive Director
of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited, China Resources
National Corporation and Chairman of China Resources Logic Limited.
Mr. Song has over 10 years of experience in the area of corporate
mergers and acquisition and is currently responsible for the overall
business and strategic planning of the Group’s business. Mr. Song holds
a Bachelor's degree in Mechanics from the University of Tong Ji in
Shanghat, China. He has been with China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited since 1985 and was the Chairman of China Resources
Development & Investment Co,, Ltd, the investment arm of China
Resources (Holdings) Company Limited, responsible for its corporate
development and investments in both Hong Kong and the mainland.

MR. CHEN SHULIN, aged 49

has been an Executive Director since December 1998 and was appointed
Deputy Managing Director of the Group in November 2001. He is also
the Chairman of Ng Fung Hong Limited, China Resources Light Industries
& Textiles (Holdings) Co., Ltd., and China Resources Logistics Co., Ltd. ,
a Director and Vice President of China Resources (Holdings) Company
Limited as well as a Director of China Resources Naticnal Corporation.
He obtained his Bachelor’s degree from Beijing Foreign Languages
Institute, China and a Master’s degree in Business Administration from
Victoria University, New Zealand. Prior 10 joining Ng Fung Hong Limited,
he worked as a senior official in the MOFTEC and as a commercial attache
in Australia and New Zealand. He was also named Deputy General
Manager in the Investment and Development Department of China
Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and Managing Director of a
subsidiary company of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited in
Thailand. He has substantial experience in strategic planning, business
development and investment.
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MR. QIAO SHIBO, aged 48

has been an Executive Director since July 2001 and was appointed Deputy
Managing Director of the Group in November 2001. He is also a Director
and Vice President of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and
a Director of China Resources National Corporation. At present, he is
responsible for the business and strategic planning of the Group’s
petrochemical and building materials division. Mr. Qiao holds a Bachelor’s
degree in Chinese Language from the Jilin University, China.

MR. YAN BIAO, aged 41

has been an Executive Director of the Group since 1994 and is currently a
Deputy Managing Director of the Group. Mr. Yan is a Director of China
Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and China Resources National
Corporation, he is also an Executive Director of China Resources Land
Limited. He is currently responsible for the overall strategic planning and
development of the Group's brewery, brand fashion distribution, Hong
Kong retailing and property businesses. He has a Bachelor of Law degree
from the Beijing University in China and a Master of Business Administration
degree from the University of San Francisco in the United States.

MR. KEUNG CHI WANG, RALPH, aged 47

has been appointed as Group Finance Director since 1986 and was
appointed Deputy Managing Director in May 2000. He is also a
Non-Executive Director of China Resources Land Limited. Mr. Keung
graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as Hong Kong
Polytechnic University) and is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate of the Hong Kong
Society of Accountants. He has over 20 vears of experience in auditing,
accounting and corporate finance. He is also a Director of HIT Investments
Limited. Mr. Keung joined the Group in September 1934,

MR. LAU PAK SHING, aged 53

has been an Executive Director since 1997. He is also an Executive Director
of China Resources Land Limited. Mr. Lau graduated from the Hong
Kong Baptist College {now known as Hong Kong Baptist University)
and is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and an associate of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants.
Mr. Lau has over 25 years of experience in auditing, accounting, corporate
finance, property, godown and cold storage businesses. Mr. Lau
represented the Executive Committee of Hong Kong Cold Storage
Merchants Association Limited as Chairman for many years. He is currently
in charge of the Group's Hong Kong Property Division and togistics
business. Mr. Lau joined the Group in January 1994,
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MR. WANG QUN, aged 46

was appointed an Executive Director in January 2000. He is a Director
of China Resources {Holdings) Limited and China Resources National
Corporation as well as the Executive Director of China Resources
Breweries Limited , responsible for managing the entire operation of
the Group's brewery business. Mr. Wang has a Bachelor of Finance
degree from the People's University of China in Beijing. He has
previously worked in the China National Economic Committee and
held key management position in a Shenzhen based conglomerate in
China. Mr. Wang joined the Group in 1994.

MR. ZHONG YI, aged 38

was appointed an Executive Director in June 2000. He is an Executive
Director of China Resources Land Limited, one of the employees in
China Resources (Holdings) Limited and China Resources National
Corporation. Mr. Zhong holds a Bachelor of Engineering degree from
the China Sichuan University, a Master of Economics degree from the
People's University of China and a Master of Business Administration
degree from the University of San Francisco in the United States. Mr.
Zhong joined the Group in July 1996.

MR. KWONG MAN HIM, aged 38

joined the Group as Executive Director in February 2002. Mr. Kwong
has a Bachelor of Science degree from the University of Hong Kong
and a Master of Business Administration degree from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He is a registered accountant in Hong Kong
and Australia with extensive experience in equity research, merchant
banking and financial analysis. Mr. Kwong is in charge of the Group’s
corporate planning and development. He also manages investor
relations and leads merger and acquisition activities.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

MR. JIANG WEI, aged 40 .

has been a Director since 1995. He obtained his Bachelor's degree in
international Trade and a Master’s degree in International Business and Finance
from the University of International Business and Economics in China. Mr, Jiang
is currently a Director and Chief Financial Officer of China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited, he is also the General Manager of its Finance Department.

MR. XIE SHENGXI, aged 47

has been a Director of the Group since August 2001. He is also a Director of
China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and China Resources National
Corporation. Mr. Xie graduated with a Bachelor's degree in Economics from Shanxi
University of Finance and Economics and is a qualified accountant in China. Mr.
Xie has extensive experience in internal audit and financial management.

INDEPENDENT NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

DR. CHAN PC FUN, PETER, aged 871

has been a Director since 1973. He is a practicing Certified Public Accountant in
Hong Kong and a registered dealing director. He has a doctorate in Offshore Petroleum
Technology and Modern Chinese Law and is currently a member of the Society of
Petroleum Engineers and an honorary fellow of the Society for Underwater Technology.

MR. HOUANG TAI NINH, aged 49

has been a Director since 1988. He is also a Director of Forcon Investments
Limited. Mr. Houang obtains his Bachelor of Business Studies degree from the
Polytechnic of North Staffordshire in the United Kingdom:.

MR. LOO WUN LOONG, JOHN, aged 67

has been a Director since 1988. He is also the Chairman of Ngo Kee Enterprises
Limited. Mr. Loo is @ member of the Institute of Civil Engineers and the Hong
Kong Institution of Engineers. He has over 30 years of experience in the
construction industry.

DR. the Hon LI KA CHEUNG ERIC, FHKSA, OBE, JP, aged 49

has been a Director since March 2003. He is Senior Partner of Li, Tang, Chen &
Co., Certified Public Accountants. He is currently a member of the Tenth National
Committee of Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, a member of
the Legislative Council of the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region and serves as Chairman of its Public Accounts Committee. He holds
directorship in @ number of listed companies including Hang Seng Bank Limited,
SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited, The Kowioon Motor Bus
Holdings Limited, Wong's International (Holdings) Limited, CATIC International
Holdings Limited, SIIC Medical Science and Technology (Group) Limited as well
as China Vanke Co., Ltd.

=
o
=
B
af
=2
1>
]

35 CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED



EZRBEEBABZEE BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

REEHEAR

RNEANE mEmrE
AAEENBEE - B MEREEBRRIRASIH
EEBETERN - FollaEBRESFAReHHLeY
ZReE - EESHTLERMEAMEHT Y
8 o FMAR RN RS HETaE T =F - &
AR _BE-E—-BNAKEE -

SRR L Bem++8
AAEENERELE - WEESRBEESHEL T
EEEET AT EELTEN  TARNERERE

FHED - MEAREMEFTMREERRAEITE - /5%
EERERECEN - ARESREERILR - BIE
S_ERTF_AMALER -

BHEDE - mEmme
BEEEEERATNWEREE - B/ EZE?%EE%K%%
FEEBLEN  BRERD - B EN_TTTE—A
MARER -

RETHE

BREI%E  BE=++5

BIEREEERAFCAESERAEE - HIAE
HEBBRIAFIZES - #RATELTHAREES
ﬂtmﬁuﬁiiéﬁmkﬁzﬁ%@ﬁi&uo@ﬁ

ER-NNNFRAER (B BRLF  BHEEH
BHERQTZAEREFITBER - Elﬂjﬁ'J CRBEE

ERRERSERARCHEE BEEHEBRD AR
DEENEARFELEEEMNIREEL -

BEERE mea+x

ENSG (EEERORZESHKE  TAER (&
B) AR DT ZES « FREENFREEFNIAZ G
HETER) TESE  TASREEN - EMAEE
(EEERATE  BREDIBRERTEHEDE
HORFRBAETH  EFBTEREEYENES -

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

MS. CHEUNG SIU LING, PANDORA, aged 40

is the Financial Controller of the Group. She holds a MBA degree from the
University of Newcastle in the United Kingdom. Ms. Cheung is respectively a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and an
associate member of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants and the Certified
General Accountants Association of Canada. She previously worked with an
international accounting firm for over 13 years. Ms. Cheung joined the Group
in January 2001.

MR. LAU KIN SHING, CHARLES, aged 47

is the General Manager of the Group’s Internal Audit Department. Mr. Lau
holds a Bachelor's degree in Accounting and Master's degree in Business
Administration as well as in Information System Management. He is an Australian
FCPA, a Canadian Certified General Accountant and U.S. Certified Internal
Auditor. He has extensive experience in internal auditing, financial management
and operations review. Mr. Lau joined the Group in February 2000.

MS. LIVASIRI, ANKANA, aged 44

is Head Legal Advisor of the Group’s Legal and Secretarial Department. She is a
solicitor and holds a Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of Hong
Kong. Ms. Livasiri joined the Group in January 2000.

HEADS OF BUSINESS UNITS

MR. CHEN LANG, aged 37

is currently the Vice Chairman and General Manager of China Resources
Vanguard Co. Ltd. He is also a Director of China Resources (Holdings) Company
Limited. Mr. Chen holds a Bachelor of Economics degree from Anhui University,
China and a Master of Business Administration from the University of San
Francisco in the United States. Mr. Chen joined China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited in 1983. He was the Vice Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of China Resources Logic Limited. Prior to that, he was the General
Manager of China Resources Development and Investment Co., Ltd and was in
charge of a number of substantial investments in Canada and Thailand of China
Resources (Holdings) Company Limited.

MR. FU CHUNY!I, aged 50

is currently the Managing Director of China Resources Light Industries & Textiles
(Holdings) Co., Ltd. He is also a Director of China Resources (Holdings) Company
Limited. Mr. Fu graduated from the University of Suzhou, China (formerly known
as Suzhou Silk Production Technology College ) with a specialty in Silk Weaving,
he is also a Senior Economist. Prior to joining China Resources (Holdings) Company
Limited, Mr. Fu worked for Heilongjiang Textiles Import & Export Corporation for
over ten years. He has extensive experience in the textile industry.
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Ms. GUO JINQING, aged 37

has been the Managing Director of Ng Fung Hong Limited since 2001. She
joined Ng Fung Hong Limited in 1991 and assumed the role of Deputy Managing
Director in 1996. Ms. Guo holds a Bachelor's degree in Economics from the
University of International Business and Economics in China and a Master of
Business Administration degree from Murdoch University in Australia. She has
substantial experience in trading and corporate management.

MR. TANG XU DONG, aged 43

is currently the General Manager of China Resources Retail (Group) Company
Limited as well as the Chief Executive Officer of CRE Esprit Limited, a joint
venture between the Group and Esprit Heldings Limited, specializes in the
distribution of apparel, fashion accessories and cosmetics. Mr. Tang holds a
Bachelor of Business degree from the Liaoning University in China and a Master
of Economics degree from the People’s University of China. He has extensive
experience in the retail industry in China. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Tang
was with a reputable retail chain in China, engaged in the distribution of leather
products. He is also a member of the Shanghai Changning District’s Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Committee. Mr. Tang joined the Group in
November 1997.

MR. ZHOU LONG SHAN, aged 43

is currently the Managing Director of Redland Concrete Limited. He holds a
Bachelor's degree in Economics from Jilin Finance and Trade Institute, China.
Mr. Zhou was previously the Deputy General Manager of Finarts Trading Co.,
Ltd. and the Deputy General Manager of Teck Soon Hong Co., Ltd with over
ten years of experience in international trading and corporate management,
Mr. Zhou joined China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited in 1983.

MR. ZHU DAN, aged 417

was appointed President of China Resources Petrochems (Group) Co., Ltd. in
July 2001. He holds a Bachelor of Economics degree from the University of
International Business and Economics in China and has nearly 20 years of
experience in the area of petroleum and chemicals trading and distribution.
Mr. Zhu has been with China Resources Petrochems (Group) Co. Ltd. since
1984 and was previously the General Manager of China Resources Petroleum
Co. Ltd. and China Resources Chemicals Co. Ltd.
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The directors have pleasure in presenting to the shareholders their
report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31

December 2002.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are property investment and
investment holding. The activities of its principal subsidiaries and
associates are shown on pages 130 to 141. An analysis of the Group's
performance for the year by business segments is set out in note 3 to

the financial statements.

GROUP PROFIT

The consolidated profit and loss account is set out on pages 59 and

shows the Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2002.

DIVIDENDS

A special cash dividend of HK25 cents per ordinary share of the
Company was paid. Together with the interim dividend of HK9 cents
per share, the 2002 total dividend paid to shareholders during the year
amounted to HK34 cents per share. The directors recommend the
declaration of a final dividend of HK13 cents per share amounting to
approximately HK$270 million payable on or about 2 July 2003 to all

persons registered as holders of ordinary shares on 2 June 2003.

FIXED ASSETS

Movements in the fixed assets of the Group and the Company during

the year are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

PROPERTIES

A schedule of the principal properties of the Group is set out on pages
142 to 147.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in the share capital during the year are set out in note 27

10 the financial statements.
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RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the

year are set out in note 28 to the financial statements.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Details of subsequent event of the Group are set out in note 35 to the

financial statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to

approximately HK$211,000.

DIRECTORS

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of

this report were as follows:

Chairman

MR. Ning Gaoning

-Deputy Chairman and Managing Director

MR. Song Lin

Deputy Managing Directors
MR. Chen Shulin

MR. Qiac Shibo

MR. Yan Biao

MR. Keung Chi Wang, Ralph
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Directors

Mr. Lau Pak Shing (Executive Director)
Mr. Wang Qun (Executive Director)
Mr. Zhong Yi (Executive Director)
Mr. Kwong Man Him (Executive Director)

Mr. Chan Wai Mo (Executive Director, resigned

on 1 March 2003)

Mr. Lu An {Executive Director, resigned
on 14 January 2002)

Mr. Jiang Wei (Non-executive Director)

Mr. Xie Shengx (Non-executive Director)

Dr. Chan Po Fun, Peter ( Independent non-executive Director)
Mr. Houang Tai Ninh ( Independent non-executive Director)
Mr. Loo Wun Loong, John ( Independent non-executive Director)
Dr. the Hon Li Ka Cheung, Eric (Independent non-executive Director,

appointed on 21 March 2003)

In accordance with Article 110 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Ning Gaoning, Mr. Chen Shulin, Mr. Keung Chi
Wang, Ralph, Mr. Houang Tai Ninh and Mr. Loo Wun Loong, John

retire by rotation.

Mr. Ning Gaoning, Mr. Chen Shulin, Mr. Keung Chi Wang, Ralph and
Mr. Houang Tai Ninh, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
However, Mr. Loo Wun Loong, John does not offer himself for re-

election.

In accordance with Article 115 of the Company's Articles of
Association, Dr. the Hon Li Ka Cheung, Eric retires and, being eligible,
offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of directors and senior management are set out

on pages 32 to 37.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company operates share option schemes for the purpose of
promoting additional commitment and dedication to the objectives of
the Company by the participants. During the period under review, the
Company operates two share option schemes, namely the “Old

Scheme” and “New Scheme”.

The Old Scheme refers to the share option scheme which subsisted
until 31 January 2002 and was terminated on 31 January 2002.
Eligible participants of the Old Scheme were the employees of the
Company and its subsidiaries (including the directors of the
Company). The maximum number of shares issued and permitted to
be issued on the exercise of options under the Old Scheme and to be
granted to each participant does not exceed the maximum limit as
permitted by the Listing Rules applicable before 1 September 2001.
The exercise price of the share options is determinable at the entire
discretion of the board of directors, but will not exceed the maximum
discount permitted by the Listing Rules applicable prior to 1
September 2001.

The New Scheme refers to the share option scheme which was
approved by the shareholders in general meeting on 31 January 2002
and shall expire on 31 January 2012. The board of directors of the
Company may grant options to eligible participants including
executive or non-executive directors of the Group, any discretionary
object of a discretionary trust established by any employee, executive
or non-executive directors of the Group, any executives and
employees of consultants, professional and other advisors to the
Group, chief executive, substantial shareholder of the Company,
associated companies of the Group, associates of director, chief
executive and substantial shareholder of the Company, and employees

of substantial shareholder.
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Subject to the requirements of the prevailing Listing Rules, the
exercise price shall be such price determined by the board of directors
at its absolute discretion. The maximum entitlement of each
participant under the schemes (including options to be granted to the
directors, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company,
or any of their respective associates) is respectively equivalent to the
maximum limit permitted under the prevailing Listing Rules. As at the
date of this report, the total number of shares available for issue
under the New Scheme is 106,969,821 shares and represent 5.14%

of the issued share capital of the Company.

The offer of a grant of share options under both schemes may be
accepted within 28 days from the date of the offer together with the

payment of nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee.

Share options disclosed below and granted on or after 31 January 2002
are issued under the New Scheme while the remaining options are under
the Old Scheme. Certain share options granted before 1 January 1999
under the Old Scheme are vested from the date of grant to 16
September 2002. For share options granted after 1 January 1999 under
the Old Scheme and for share options granted under the New Scheme,
these share options are vested for a period of 10 years immediately after
the date of grant. Share options granted under the Old Scheme and the
New Scheme are generally either exercisable within a period of 10 years
immediately after the date of grant or between 20% and 33'5% of
shares to be subscribed under relevant share options will commence to

be exercisable in each calendar year after the acceptance of a grant.

The directors do not consider it is appropriate to state the value of all
share options granted under the schemes during the year ended 31
December 2002. The generally accepted pricing models value options
that are transferable is not permitted under the Old Scheme and the
New Scheme of the Company. In addition, on termination of the Old
Scheme, the directors believe that the calculation of the value of the
share options on such basis and assumptions would not be meaningful

and would be misleading to the sharehoiders.
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Save disclosed below, no other share options have been granted (or
granted in excess of individual limit), exercised, cancelled or lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the relevant share option scheme during
the year in relation to each of the directors, chief executive, substantial

shareholder of the Company or their respective associates and employees

of substantial shareholder.

() EB (a)  Directors
RZEE-F+-A=+—0 "  THES As at 31 December 2002, the following directors had interests
BERBALRZHEBRETEMYTR in respect of options to subscribe for shares under both share
BRIp2EREER - BEZMIEBRE option schemes of the Company. Share options granted to
ERTEEZREBRENT ¢ directors under both share option schemes are set out below:
BRENS ELERGAR
Number of share options Price of Company'’s shares’
EREZ Bz
TEE RIS2ZF RAEE REEE REFE REFE K-88CE BRE BRAE
BER —-A-B B 1% HE %% t+=ZR=t-8 BB BRI
Exercise HERTE Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed #A{TE Foroptions  For options
BEAE Price  Outstanding during during during during Outstanding granted exercised
HERS Name of director Date of grant HKS 1/1/2002 the year the year the year the year  at 31/12/2002 HKS HK$
EEE Ning Gaoning 11/05/1996 3.856 3,300,000 — 3,300,000 - - - - 8.300
1701111997 14.300 1,200,000 - — 1,200,000 - - -
20/06/2000 7,190 3,300,000 - — — - 3,300,000 — —
07/62/2002 7.170 — 1,200,000 - - - 1,200,000 7.100 -
R B Song Lin 20/06/2000 7.190 200,000 — — — — 200,000" — -
07/02/2002 7170 — 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 7.100 -
B Chen Shulin 21/11/2000 7.080 1,186,000 - — — — 1,186,000 - —
2171112000 10.860 442,000 - — 442,000 - - - -
21/11/2000 11.950 884,000 - — 884,000 - - - -
07/02/2002 7.170 — 1,326,000 — — - 1,326,000 7.100 —
EEp Qiao Shibo 02/04/2001 8.430 1,800,000 — — 1,800,000 — - - -
07/02/2002 7.170 — 1,800,000 - - - 1,800,000 7.100 —
B Yan Biao 11/05/1996 3.856 1,700,000 — 1,700,000 - - - - 8.300
17111997 14.300 1,000,000 — — 1,000,000 — - - -
20/06/2000 7.190 3,000,000 - - — — 3,000,000 — —
07/02/2002 7.170 — 1,000,000 - - — 1,000,000 7.100 —
EEE Keung Chi Wang, Ralph  17/11/1997 14.300 500,000 - — 500,000 — - - -
20/06/2000 7.190 1,400,000 - - - — 1,400,000 - -
07/02/2002 7170 — 500,000 - - — 500,000 7.100 —
BEM Lau Pak Shing 171111997 14,300 500,000 — — 500,000 — - — —
20/06/2000 7.190 1,000,000 - - - — 1,000,000 - -
07/02/2002 7170 — 500,000 - - — 500,000 7.100 -
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(a) Directors continued
BREZA FLARGER

Number of share options Price of Company's shares’
53372 2z
TER R-BR-E RIEE RIFE REFE REFE  R-BRC-E BRE BRE
BT -B-B B Fk:d g AM tZA=zt-8 BER il
Exercise HATE Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed M &TE Foroptions  For options
BHEH Price  Outstanding during during during during Outstanding granted exercised
HERE Name of director Date of grant HKS 1/1/2002 the year the year the year the year  at 31/12/2002 HKS HKS
T O Wang Qun 11/05/1996 3.856 40,000 — 40,000 — — — — 8.300
06/01/2000 9.790 400,000 — — 400,000 - — — —
20/06/2000 7.190 400,000 — — — — 400,000 — —
07/02/2002 7.170 — 400,000 — — — 400,000 7.100 —
# Z Zhong Yi 11/05/1996 3.856 80,000 — 80,000 — — — — 8.300
20/06/2000 7.190 1,500,000 — - - - 1,500,000 - -
B Kwong Man Him 07/02/2002 7.170 — 2,000,000 — — — 2,000,000 7.100 —
# & Jiang Wei 08/03/2002 7.500 — 600,000 — — — 600,000 7.650 —
Xie Shengxi 08/03/2002 7.500 - 380,000 — — — 380,000 7.650 —
Lu An 07/12/1998 2.980 200,000 — — — 200,000 — — —

(Resigned on
14 January 2002) 20/06/2000 7.190 770,000 - 392,000 — 378,000 — — 7.500
Chan Wai Mo 131071999 8.480 300,000 — — 300,000 — — — —
{resigned on 20/06/2000 7.190 800,000 — 200,000 — — 600,000 — 7.850
1 March 2003) 07/02/2002 7.170 — 300,000 — — — 300,000 7.100 —
Xu Zhiming 13/10/1999 8.480 1,500,000 — — — 1,500,000 — — —

(Resigned on

13 November 2001)
27,402,000 12,006,000 5,712,000 7,026,000 2,078,000 24,592,000

* BREES (BEERD)GON(TEEEZENDE= * By virtue of Section 31 of the Securities (Disclosure of Interests)
T RMEERBREBLRRERTEERZ Ordinance (“SDI Ordinance”), Mr. Song Lin is deemed to be interested
200,000R% E BRI AR IE 2 i 25 - in the share option for 200,000 ordinary shares granted by the

Company to his spouse.

() EERAMSRE {(b)  Employees and other participants
BRETEIFMITEERI  ZRFRIZMEBES Except for all non-executive directors, all directors of the
HATEEZEE BEZE2BERER Company are employees of the Group and their respective
FEREX(FIREE - LTELRAF aggregate share options are disclosed in paragraph (a) above.
MAEEEE (TREESF) REMS SR Summary of options granted to employees (other than directors)
ERDBERENTS -  of the Group and other participants are set out below.
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(i BEE(TEEES) i Employees (other than directors)
BREZE ZAERBER
Number of share options Price of Company’s shares’
[=F:3:4 B
TEE R=ZBE_F REIFE REFE RIEFE REEFEE R=-88=% BRE R
BT —-B-H 3 T 3] ¥ +zZA=+-8 BB BT
Exercise M&{THE  Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed #A{THE  For options For options
BHEH Price  Outstanding during during during during Outstanding granted exercised
Date of grant HK$ at 1/1/2002  the year  the year the year the year at 31/12/2002 HK$ HK$
mataE
Old Scheme
11/05/1996 3.856 3,030,000 —_ 918,000 — 2,112,000 — — 8.411
17/11/1997 14.300 700,000 — — — 700,000 —_ — —
07/12/1998 8.980 2,278,000 — — 1,540,000 738,000 — — —
13/10/199% 8.480 20,000 — — 20,000 — — — —
06/01/2000 9.790 170,000 — — 170,000 — — — —
18/02/2000 9.590 2,000,000 — — 2,000,000 — — — —
20/06/2000 7.190 6,843,000 - 260,000 _ 992,000 5,591,000 — 8.071
17/07/2000 8.860 922,000 — — 922,000 — — — —
14/08/2000 9.670 1,000,000 — — — 1,000,000 — — —
22/08/2000 9.720 240,000 — — 240,000 — — - —
21/11/2000 7.080 6,118,000 — 1,013,000 — 503,000 4,602,000 — 8.532
21/11/2000 9.290 214,000 — — 214,000 — — — —
21/11/2000 10.820 1,026,000 — — 980,000 46,000 — — —
21/11/2000 10.860 46,000 - — 46,000 — — - —
21/11/2000 11.730 800,000 — — 666,000 134,000 — — -
21/11/2000 11,850 798,000 — — 798,000 — — —_ —
11/01/2001 8.730 400,000 — — 400,000 — — — —
02/04/2001 8.430 7,778,000 — — 6,846,000 932,000 — — —
30/07/2001 9.120 400,000 — — 400,000 — — — —
34,783,000 — 2,191,000 15,242,000 7,157,000 10,193,000
it e
New Scheme
07/02/2002 7170 — 18,100,000 122,000 —_ 114,000 17,864,000 7.100 9.283
19/04/2002 7.400 — 15,742,000 530,000 — 192,000 15,020,000 7.450 9.251
23/05/2002 8.900 — 300,000 — — — 300,000 8.700 —
02/08/2002 8320 — 25,500,000 — — — 25,500,000 8.550 —
07/11/2002 7.700 — 2,000,000 — — — 2,000,000 7.650
— 61,642,000 652,000 — 306,000 60,684,000
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(i) HtsREE (i)  Other participants
BRESR FLARRBER
Number of share options Price of Company'’s shares'
EEHZ BITEZ
AEE R-BEZF RIEE RIEE REEE HEEE R-8B=-% BRE BRE
BET -f-A g4 7 RE| &% +=ZA=+-18 BE T BER
Exercise M&TE  Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed i &{FHE  For options For options
BHES Price.  Outstanding during during during during Outstanding granted exercised
Date of grant HK$ at 1/1/2002  the year the year the year the year at 31/12/2002 HK$ HK$
05/03/2002 7.350 — 24,720,000 — — 112,000 24,608,000 7.200 —
23/05/2002 8.900 — 80,000 — — — 80,000 8.700 —
— 24,800,000 — — 112,000 24,688,000

O RERHBREMREZAQSRMERE  BER
ERERERLAAN —BEAXRZARDREERAGR
SHRBERLD(TBRF) 2WHE - RTRER
BEARBZARARGER  SEERBRED
EHRERORBE Mz UTEZIMETHE -

EEZEFELD
RETE-F+-FE=+-H ZEHEBRFLA
AERIHESOT

' The price of the Company's shares disclosed for options granted is the

closing price quoted on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

(the “Stock Exchange”) on the trading day immediately before the

date of the grant of the respective options. The price of the

Company’s shares disclosed for the exercise of options is the weighted

average of the closing prices quoted on the Stock Exchange

immediately before the date of exercises of options.

DIRECTORS INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2002, the interests of the directors in the shares of

the Company were as follows:

RiDEE

Number of Shares

BA %S Rk  HtiEx

Personal Family Other
g5 Directors Interests Interests Interests
EEELLE Mr. Ning Gacning 1,630,000 — —
SRR A Mr. Song Lin — 200,000 —
B EE Mr. Yan Biao 900,000 — —
B Mr. Wang Qun 40,000 — —
fg &= 23t - Dr. Chan Po Fun, Peter 506,000 — 70,000*
R AE (R-TT =g Mr. Chan Wai Mo (resigned on 1 March 2003) 200,000 — —

=

— R —HEE)

* BREFELUZIEAFRBEEERLRT0,000RER
f& °

* Dr. Chan Po Fun held as trustee 70,000 ordinary shares in the

Company.
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At the same date, certain directors had interests in respect of options
to subscribe for shares under the share option schemes of the
Company. Options granted to respective directors are set out under

the section headed “Share Option Schemes” above.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the directors, chief executives or
their associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) had any beneficial
or non-beneficial interest in respect of options to subscribe for shares
under the existing share option schemes of the Company, in the share
capital and debt securities of the Company or its associated
corporations which is required to be recorded in the Register of
Directors’ Interests pursuant to Section 29 of the Securities (Disclosure
of Interests) Ordinance or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employing
company within one year without payment of compensation, other

than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance to which the Company, its subsidiaries, its
holding companies or its fellow subsidiaries were a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the

year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Chen Shulin, a director
of the Company, disclosed that China Resources National Corporation
has controlling interests in ZEE R ZE %15 &R 22§ China Resources
Jinhua Co., Ltd. ("CR linhua”), a manufacturer and distributor of
textile yarns and products, which business competes or is likely to
compete with the textile distribution operations acquired by the
Group on 31 January 2002. Mr. Chen was a director of CR Jinhua and
resigned on 11 March 2002. Mr. Chen had an interest in CR Jinhua
between January 2002 to March 2002 by virtue of his directorship in
such company. China Resources Light Industries and Textile (Holdings)
Company Limited (“CR Textite"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into a conditional acquisition agreement for the
acquisition of approximately 51% equity interests in CR Jinhua on 13

February 2003.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

The following declaration of interest by shareholders holding 10% or
more of the issued share capital of the Company at 31 December
2002 has been recorded in the Register of Interests pursuant to

Section 16(1) of the Securities (Disclosure of Interests) Ordinance:

ERERHE
Name No. of ordinary shares

rEERe S ([REER])

=W (RE)ARAT ((E2HE@E)) -

China Resources National
Corporation ("CRNC")* 1,153,776,475
China Resources (Holdings)

Company Limited (“CRH")* 1,153,776,475

* EBEERAQGMEBREZERLQT  meEEBA
LAEBSEMNZERLE Bt RESH (RER
VIEBIENG  PHEEBNZEREEORESH

=
EARERASREES -

*  CRH is the immediate holding company of the Company. CRNC is the
holding company of CRH. Therefore both CRNC and CRH are deemed
to have the same interests in the share capital of the Company by

virtue of Section 8 of the Securities (Disclosure of Interests) Ordinance.
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Apart from the foregoing, no person had registered any interest in the
issued share capital of the Company which is required to be recorded
in the Register of Interests pursuant to Section 16(1) of the Securities

(Disclosure of Interests) Ordinance.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

1. On 23 May 2002, China Resources Light Industries and Textiles
investment & Development Company Limited ("CRLIT"), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into various
acquisition agreements to acquire the remaining minority
interests in each of the following companies (“Target

Companies”):

a. 30% equity interest of Shandong Binzhou China
Resources Textiles Company Limited;

b. 30% equity interest of Shandong Binhua Textiles
Company Limited;

C. 25% equity interest of Shandong Linging China
Resources Textiles Company Limited;

d. 25% equity interest of Shandong Hua Lin Textiles
Company Limited;

e. 30% equity interest of Shandong China Resources
Textiles Company Limited;

f. 30% equity interest of Weifang Huawei Textiles
Company Limited;

g. 30% equity interest of Shandong Huimin China
Resources Textiles Company Limited;

h. 15% equity interest of Shandong Liaocheng China
Resources Textiles Company Limited; and
15% equity interest of Tongzhou CRC Printing &
Dyeing Company Limited.

The aggregate value of the consideration of RMB68,000,000
(approximately HK$64,000,000) was arrived at after arm’'s
length negotiations between the parties thereto and was
calculated by reference to discounted net asset value. The

consideration was settled in cash.
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All of the Target Companies are principally engaged in the
spinning and weaving business in the Shandong Province. The
acquisitions enable the Group to assume full ownership control
of the Target Companies. By streamlining the management
and operations, it is expected to improve the utilization of
resources and technical knowhow, and reduce the operational
and production cost significantly. It facilitates the Company's
plan to raise its market share in the highly fragmented textiles

and garment manufacturing industry in Chinese Mainland.

The Company entered into an acquisition agreement with
CRNC and #HEANZS2LE on 3 june 2002 for the
acquisition of 65% equity interests in China Resources
Vanguard Co., Ltd. (formerly known as China Vanguard Super
Department Co., Ltd.} ("CR Vanguard”) at a consideration of
RMB372 million (HK$349,680,000). # EEAE S K& is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of CRNC. The consideration was
arrived at after arm’s length negotiation between the parties
thereto and with reference to price earnings multiple and
represents approximately 65% of the total cost of investments
of the vendors in their acquisition of CR Vanguard through
various acquisitions over a period from August 2001 to May
2002. The transaction was completed on 26 July 2002. The
acquisition enables the Group to strengthen its position as one
of the market leaders in the chain store retail markets in the

Guangdong province.

On 25 September 2002, CR Vanguard has entered into two
contracts with China Resources Construction Corp. (“CRC"),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CRNC for (i) the
construction of its logistics center in Shenzhen; and (ii) the
construction and decoration of CR Vanguard's Hua Biao shop
located in Guangzhou, at the consideration of RMB54.11
million (approximately HK$50,860,000) and RMB19.46 million
(approximately HK$18,300,000) respectively.
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The contracts were entered into pursuant to invitation for
tender issued by the Group and CRC was chosen as the
contractor for these various projects after careful consideration
of the respective tenders submitted (including mainly the bid

prices and the size and reputation of the respective tenders).

On 19 November 2002, China Resources Breweries Investment
Limited (“CRBI"), a 51% subsidiary of the Company entered
into various acquisition agreements for acquiring the remaining
minority interests of 10% in each of (i) China Resources
(Shenyang) Snowflake Brewery Company Limited; (i) Shenyang
Snowflake Beer Company Limited; and (iii) Shenyang Shengyang
Beer Company Limited (collectively “Target Companies”) from

BB

The aggregate value of the consideration for the acquisitions
of RMB140,000,000 (HK$131,600,000) was arrived at arm’s
length negotiations and was calculated by reference to the
audited net asset value as at 31 December 2001 of the Target
Companies. The consideration would be settled in cash by two
installments and adjusted to include the vendor's 10% share
of all distributable audited profits as at 31 December 2002 of
the respective Target Companies, pro-rated only with respect
to year 2002 on the basis of a 365-day year up to 19
November 2002.

Upon completion of the acquisitions, it is expected that the
centralized management and operations of these companies,
coupled with more efficient sharing of resources and technical
knowhow, will extensively reduce operational and

administrative costs.
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China Resources Breweries Limited (“CR Breweries”), a 51%
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an acquisition
agreement on 20 December 2002 for the acquisition of the
remaining equity interests in China Resources (lilin) Brewery
Company Limited (“CR {ilin)") from S ML BAGHBET ¥
7> 8], a substantial shareholder of the target company, for the
consideration of RMB19,000,000 (approximately HK$18,000,000).
The consideration was arrived at after arm’s length
negotiations and calculated by reference and equivalent to the

original historical investment cost of the vendor.

CR (Jilin) is principally engaged in the breweries business which
involved the manufacturing and sale of beer in Chinese
Mainland. Upon completion of the acquisition, CR (ilin)

became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

On 13 February 2003, CR Textile entered into a conditional
acquisition agreement with CRNC for the acquisition of
approximately 51% equity interests in CR lJinhua for the
consideration of RMB163,522,179 (approximately HK$153.7
million). HK$50 million was paid upon signing of the Agreement
and the balance of the consideration would be payable by cash
within 30 workings days of the issue of the approvals by the
relevant approving authorities. The consideration was arrived at
after arm’s length negotiations between the parties thereto and
represented the aggregate of the original historical investment
costs of the CRNC acquisition and the interest attributable to

the original investment costs.

CR Textile Group is principally engaged in the trading,
manufacturing and processing of textile and industrial
products. The spinning and weaving business of CR Jinhua are

expected to generate synergy with CR Textile’s business.
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During the year, certain subsidiaries, namely China Resources
Petrochems Investments Ltd. (“CRPIL") and its subsidiaries,
Fresh  Concepts International Limited ("FCI”) and its
subsidiaries, Ng Fung Hong Limited ("NFH") and its
subsidiaries, China Resources Supermarket (Hong Kong)
Company Limited ("CRS”) and its subsidiaries, Pak Sik
Enterpises Limited ("PS”), Sha Tin Cold Storage Company
Limited (“STCS"), Redland Concrete Limited (“Redland”) and
its subsidiaries, CR Textile and its subsidiaries and Harvest Fair
Investment Limited ("Harvest Fair”) conducted certain
transactions with connected parties. The independent non-
executive directors of the Company have reviewed these

transactions and confirmed that:

(@) the transactions have been entered into in the ordinary

and usual course of business of the Group;

(b) the transactions have been entered into on normal
commercial terms, and on arm’s length basis and,
where applicable, in accordance with the terms of the
agreements governing such transactions or, where
there is no such agreement, on terms no less
favourable than terms available to or from independent

third parties;

() the transactions have been entered into on terms that
are fair and reasonable so far as shareholders of the

Company are concerned; and

(d) the aggregate value of the respective transactions do
not exceed the respective maximum amounts as

specified in the wavier granted by the Stock Exchange.
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Details of these transactions are summarised as follows:

BETT
HK$'000
FERMBLF Redland and subsidiaries
METHEESERERRZ Purchase of raw materials from companies of which
REARBEEREH certain directors of Redland are caontrolling shareholders 19,340
HEAEEZHBELARERE Purchase of raw materials from a fellow subsidiary 48,953
REBAREEsMBLRAEEREL Sales of concrete to a fellow subsidiary 18,999
BEEYEAR PS & STCS
EEAREEZHELAREETRY Provision for godown and storage services
to fellow subsidiaries 327
IETRERED NFH and CRS
ATEKEEERR (HIE1) Sales of foodstuffs to CNFC (note 1) 86,128
AR rEEEZHBELEBEES Sales of goods to fellow subsidiaries 276
ATILERERS Purchases of foodstuffs from
— EEHEES (E2) — Designated suppliers (note 2)
— EHER — Quota products 285,321
— }EHEER — Non-guota products 38,618
— BAREEZHELR — Fellow subsidiaries 4,588
— REKE — CNFC 4,376
RPRRKEREREDG  HBER Net purchases of fishing supplies, equipment and
EZFREHE vessels from CNFC 9,438
MEREEEZMB LA XM Operating lease payments and air-conditioning
EERNREREEER charges to fellow subsidiaries 20,628
AREREZNIE Wages paid to CNFC 106,946
8 (F5E3) Harvest Fair (note 3)
REBAREEZHEAA Provision of construction services from a fellow subsidiary 27,311
RUEZBERS
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BETR
HK$'000
FCI R Bt 2 8] FC! and subsidiaries
MBARKEZHBLREEE Purchase of towel, bedding accessories and knitwear
EM AREAREITERR from fellow subsidiaries 100
ABAREE LB LT N Operating lease payments and air-conditioning charges
BEEORERTHER to fellow subsidiaries 21,210
CRPILE B 2 & CRPIL and subsidiaries
ERERAGARERFAEEL Tank storage services fees payable to a holding
WBARZHARKEE company and a fellow subsidiary 141,600
ERERERARGRREEY Storage facilities management fees receivable
MBLEZERREERE from a holding company and a fellow subsidiary 19,992
AELRREZHBRAXMN Operating lease payments and air-conditioning
BERNRERTHER charges to a fellow subsidiary 5,894
ERRHRNBLF CR Textile and subsidiaries
MBLIEBHBRARHEERZ FHER Net sales of merchandises to fellow subsidiaries 132,845
AEBAREEZMBARINEERORE Operating lease payments to a fellow subsidiary 6,085

Biat

1. PEKESQFR(MFERED AEERETZM
BRfE — TEEBRSELTORIBEREZR
= o

2. HEFAPEARANERBHIEE  -WERLXL

BIETHEZAWNBARIZEERR -

3. BEAARSZIF2ENBAR BERKENERRE
BEAHZGREH -

Notes:

1. CNFC International Fisheries Corp. ("CNFC”) is a 49% minority

shareholder of China International Fisheries Corp., a subsidiary of NFH.

2. Designated suppliers are suppliers designated by The Ministry of

Commerce who are substantial shareholders of non-wholly owned

subsidiaries of the Company.

3. Harvest Fair is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and the

services were carried out in accordance with the terms of the

construction contracts.
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SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries and associates as at 31

December 2002 are set out on pages 130 to 141.

TRANSACTIONS IN SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the share options issued or granted during the year by the

Company are set out in note 27 to the financial statements,

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed

any of the Company's listed securities during the year.

CODE OF BEST PRACTICE
The Company has complied throughout the year with Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules except that non-executive directors have no set term

of office but retire from office on a rotational basis.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the respective percentage of the aggregate purchases
attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers and the aggregate
turnover attributable to the Group's five largest customers was less

than 30% of the Group’s total value of purchases and total turnover.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group's results and its assets and liabilities for the

past five financial years is set out on page 148.

AUDITORS

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu will retire at the forthcoming annual

general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
NING GAONING

Chairman

Hong Kong, 3 April 2003
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Certified Public Accountants
26/F, Wing On Centre

111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong
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Deloitte
Toucne
Tonmatsy

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE,
LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 59 to 141 which
have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles

generally accepted in Hong Kong.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF
DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

The Companies Ordinance requires the directors to prepare financial
statements which give a true and fair view. In preparing financial
statements which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that

appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our

audit, on those statements and to report our opinion to you.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. An audit
includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an
assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made by the
directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the circumstances
of the Company and the Group consistently applied and adeguately

disclosed.
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We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary in order
to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as
to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement. In forming our opinion, we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial
statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for

our opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2002 and of the profit and cash flows of the Group for the year then
ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with the

Companies Ordinance.

DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 3 April 2003
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

2 _FEEF-_F+ZA=1—HIEF/E forthe year ended 31 December 2002

TEERCZF —EE—F
BETRT EETT
B 5 2002 2001
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
R Turnover 3 28,822,019 24,196,490
HEKA Cost of sales (23,114,000) (19,504,688)
=5 Gross profit 5,708,019 4,691,802
Hih &= Other revenue 4 440,728 513,697
HERDEER Selling and distribution expenses (2,759,151) (1,988,926)
—RBRITHER General and administrative expenses (1,589,223) (1,194,772)
4R g Profit from operations 1,800,373 2,021,801
273 N Finance costs 5 (312,246) {(422,668)
BN E AR ZIEE  Loss recognised in respect of
FrERZEIR investment in an associate — {292,012)
FEiEHE na#iE Share of results of associates 449,930 422,559
BrE IR T Profit before taxation 6 1,938,057 1,729,680
g Taxation 10 (310,187) (263,825)
BiER T Profit after taxation 1,627,870 1,465,855
LY RFES Minerity interests (224,925) (261,048)
AR R FE (S B 7 Profit attributable to shareholders 1,402,945 1,204,807
i Dividends 1 281,611 366,229
BRAT Earnings per share 12
BN Basic HK$0.68 HK$0.60
¥y Diluted HK$0.67 HK$0.59
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CEEEEZEER
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

R-ZEFE_FE+-F=+—F at3] December 2002

—ZE_-F —EE—F
BEFT AT T
B 2 2002 2001
Notes HK$ 000 HK$'000
ERBEE Non-current assets
BEEE Fixed assets 13 13,420,082 11,232,754
BEEE fntangible assets 14 1,207,095 962,780
REE QR 2 EE Interests in associates 16 2,132,461 3,203,171
= ’rﬁl?xé Other investments 17 179,140 81,749
B RIE Prepayments 18 367,200 388,800
17,305,978 15,869,254
REBEE Current assets
FE Stocks 19 3,386,797 2,197,371
B 5 M H i FE R FKOE Trade and other receivables 20 3,502,561 2,671,743
AR B R IE Taxation recoverable 23,981 15,365
HeZEHEMBERBAED  Stakeholder accounts — 29,264
RERBRITER Pledged bank deposits 33,643 12,136
BRekFTEF Cash and bank balances 3,912,404 5,883,818
10,859,391 10,809,697
FEHaE Current liabilities
EZRHEMENTIE Trade and other payables 21 (6,034,606) (4,081,247)
EHER Short term loans 23 (2,278,454) (2,592,128)
FERITE Taxation payable {115,107) {95,741)
(8,428,167) (6,769,116)
REBEERE Net current assets 2,431,224 4,040,581
HMEERRBERS Total assets less current liabilities 19,737,202 19,909,835
*kAEBBRE Non-current liabilities
EHEE Long term liabilities 24 (3,150,507) (5,018,034)
IE AR IR Deferred taxation 25 (36,706) (36,574)
16,549,989 14,855,227
DEBR R Minority interests 26 (3.263,256) (2,867,842)
13,286,733 11,987,385
EXR#E Capital and reserves
1N Share capital 27 2,080,405 2,015,550
FEE Reserves 28 11,206,328 9,971,835
13,286,733 11,987,385

B E & NING GAONING

& Z Director
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EEE
BALANCE SHEET

==

R-FEZE—_F+-F=Z+—FH at31 December 2002
—BBCH —EE
BETT T
o= 2002 2001
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ERBEE Non-current assets
BEEE Fixed assets 13 62,428 56,021
KRB AR 2R Interests in subsidiaries 15 14,870,262 13,226,486
REE AR 2R Interests in associate 16 —_ 1,808,836
14,932,690 15,091,343
TRBEE Current assets
EE Stocks 19 3,000 3,000
Zo R A WA Trade and other receivables 20 90,833 40,432
B RIBITEF Cash and bank balances 223,624 392,491
317,457 435,923
REBAaf Current liabilities
ESREMENFKIE Trade and other payables 21 (73,522) (35,703)
FES BB Taxation payable (7,491) (7,526)
(81,013) (43,229)
RBEEREHE Net current assets 236,444 392,694
15,169,134 15,484,037
BXER#E Capital and reserves
N Share capital 27 2,080,405 2,015,550
& Reserves 28 13,088,729 13,468,487
15,169,134 15,484,037

ZEE NING GAONING

# % Director

BREF CHAN PO FUN, PETER

& = Director
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g Nl —R
CeHSHEESR

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

BEE_EF-_F+-A=+—-RAIFEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2002

—BBF —EZT—F
BETT BT T
B st 2002 2001
Note HIK$°000 HK$'000
BRETBH2HERE Cash flow from operating activities
mEmEsRE Cash generated from operations 29A 2,956,205 1,760,227
ERNEEMNER Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (196,150) (109,218)
BT E AT SR Chinese Mainland income tax paid (79,742) {(47,935)
EAENFISH Overseas profits tax paid (8,559) (2,106)
REFEBNEM Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded 34,474 —
RETHZRERA Net cash inflow from operating
& activities 2,706,228 1,600,968
REZBZRERE Cash flows from investing activities
LEBTEEMS Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 48,665 10,557
FIE
Hpigdr HEH Proceeds from disposal of and
BRAEBRE repayment from other investments — 2,053
BWEHERARE Dividends received from associates 257,942 1,106,443
B HMRERE Dividends received from other ‘
investments 14,525 12,888
2R 8 Interest received 145,665 257,107
BEABTEE Purchase of fixed assets (1,230,944) (583,522)
HEHB AR Disposal of subsidiaries
O skt Y ikl {net of cash and cash
ReERBEE&EBE) equivalent disposed of) 298 (9,356) 4,050
HEB A DT Disposal of associates 1,810,892 264,096
WENBQE %% Acquisition of subsidiaries/business
(RBRRERE 2 (net of cash and cash
ReLBESE) equivalents acquired) 29C (999,106) (681,532)
HEWBAFER Acquisition of additional interest in
subsidiaries (219,413) —
Uy B8 Bt 2 2 ) Acquisition of associate {219,500) —
FTRBAWRB AT Payment of purchase of interests in
HE 25 R IE subsidiaries (336,343) (1,726,039)
WE RSB R THEE Purchase of and advances to (56,092) (862,814)
2 a] associates
BT REFERE Bank deposits pledged for short term
BHRTERZEE bank loans (21,512) 129,964
BAHMEE Purchase of other investments (10,919) —
ARRETHZZF Net cash used in investing activities (825,496) (2,066,749)
B
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FEREMLIK CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

—¥B-F ZEFF
BETT BT T
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRETHCRERE Cash flows from financing activities
2R E Dividends paid {912,713) (462,992)
BB LA L EAEER  Dividends paid to minority
ZREB shareholders of subsidiaries (25,2956) (400,787)
ENBEENER Finance lease charges paid (2,402) (4,079)
EATFE interest paid (219,051) (360,862)
BITTBREMER Net proceeds from issue of
ordinary shares 41,329 93,391
SRITRHEMEE Proceeds from bank and other
FTi5 5B borrowings 4,374,162 2,711,662
HEEX Repayment of loans (7,055,124) (2,350,193)
BEBRENRZ Capital elements of finance lease
N rental payment (5,413) (11,918)
LR RER Minority interests (47,830) 283,219
ARBEZBHZERE Net cash used in financing activities {3,852,338) (502,559)
FRERESEERY Net decrease in cash and cash
equivalents (1,971,606) (968,340)
BB 228 Effect on foreign exchange rate changes (722) —
R—A—BZHEER Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 5,879,936 6,848,276
REEE
Rt+t=—A=+—-HZ2 Cash and cash equivalents
FeRESEE at 31 December 3,907,608 5,879,936
BeRESESERS Analysis of the balances of cash and
Z5 0 cash equivalents
Be RBITHER Cash and bank balances 3,912,404 5,883,818
RITIES Bank overdrafts (4,798) (3,882)
3,907,608 5,879,936
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REBRREERER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BE-FE-_F+-A=+—HILEE

For the year ended 31 December 2002

NEMEE
4]
Bx  BOEN BEHE  Property ENXHEE ~HBEE REEA
Share Share Capital valuation Exchange  General Retained 28
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
BETn A%t B%Tx B¥Tn B¥Tr B¥TR BRIz B%Trn
HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
Ex@g Exchange rate adjustments — — - - (1,355) — - (1,355
BiEBA Deficit on revaluation - — - 21,220 — - — (21,220
AREARBRAEDZ Net losses not recognised
HERIE in the consolidated profit
and loss account — — — (21,220) (1,355) — — (22,575)
TR E Exercise of share options 8,555 32,821 — — —_ - - 41,376
kG Allotment of shares 56,300 414,931 — — — — —  4AN1.23
BiTRINER Share issue expenses — (47) - — — — - (47)
BUEWEZ AR Release due to disposal
of properties — — — 802 — — — 802
ALENERBELE Release due to disposal of
ZHE subsidiaries and an
associate — - 314,020 — 3,668 - 641 318,329
BREEET Profit attributable to
shareholders — — — — — — 1,402,945 1,402,945
1 35) Dividends - - - — — —~  (912,713)  (812,713)
R Transfer — - - - — 8,891 (8,891) -
BRERZHIRE Net changes in equity 64,855 447,705 314,020 (20,418) 2,313 8,891 481,982 1,299,348
R_BE-f-A-Bz&4 Balance at
1 January 2002 2,015,550 9,900,730 (5,730,249) 20,418 5,905 4,708 5,770,322 11,987,385
R_BE_£+-R=+-H Balance at
=1 31 December 2002 2,080,405 10,348,435 (5,416,229 — 8,218 13,600 6,252,304 13,286,733
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BEREEEH R

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

WEEE
BE
Bx  ROBE BEFXHEE  Property EREE -REE RKIER
Share Share Capital valuation Exchange  General Retained a8
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
BETR EMTT BRTR AB¥TR B¥Tx BTz BT BRTn
HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
EZHS Exchange rate adjustments — — — — (1,276) — - (1,276)
Egrsh Deficit on revaluation — — — (25,545) - — - (25,545)
FRELRRRNERZ Net losses not recognised
ERFE in the consolidated
profit and loss account — — — (25,545) (1,276) - - (26,821)
brditig Exercise of share options 12,502 81,056 - - - - - 93,558
BEMBATERMEERG Allotment of shares for
acquiring additional
interest in a subsidiary 14,263 114,818 — — — — - 129,081
FHROHER Share issue expenses — (166) - - — —_ - (166)
REEBERARMBERZEBR Loss recognised in
respect of disposal of
an associate — — 292,012 - - - — 292,012
BHENBRBEEADZHR Release due to disposal of
subsidiaries and associates — - (1.315) - (226) (6,056) 6,056 (1,541)
RREREERHN Profit attributable to
shareholders — - - - - — 1,204,807 1,204,807
) Dividends — — — — - —  (462,992) (462,992
BE Transfer — — - - - 1,31 (1,311) -
BREERZDER Net changes in equity 26,765 195,708 290,697 (25,545) (1,502) (4,745) 746,560 1,227,938
R-ZZ-f-f-Hz&% Balance at
1 January 2001 1,988,785 9,705,022 (6,020,946) 45,963 7,407 9,454 5,023,762 10,759,447
RZ22-%+-A=1+-H Balance at
8% 31 December 2001 2,015,550 9,900,730 (5,730,249) 20,418 5,905 4,708 5,770,322 11,987,385
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B R R
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARe D —HEREBFMA T2
FHRE EROHNREEHER
SHMBERDNR(IBRM]) L
H-EZRAN_TE .~¢+—
AR=1+—88R8BERR

B :EF‘Wiﬂ;ﬁﬁZxE"UAET — 3
BERaas ((REEH] -

ARRZEFEEBEMERER
WEZER  HXTEWMBELT LB
ERFZEBEREI30BESE
1418 -

MEBERREE

MBREDERBEE_SZT_F
+ Azt—BLEFEEERNE
BEFERE (Gt ERE
E‘JJ)W#&%"%TYW‘E IE
BT REFAERI > MBRE
TIRBEBERTENRE -

EHBEZED
REEHAEBEIE -5 (R

ZES-FTZARBRD [9BSR
Bl BB EEFIELY
MBAREAERBRVRBEE
EEHNEZRFE  MEBEHRE
BEYHERFE - EXEWDE
REBZEPERE -

—. —KEH 1. GENERAL
BRERALEF A Ultimate holding company

The Company is a public company incorporated in
Hong Kong and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The directors regard the ultimate
holding company as at 31 December 2002 to be
China Resources National Corporation ("CRNC"),
a company established in the Chinese Mainland.

The principal activities of the Company are
property investment and investment holding, and
the activities of its principal subsidiaries and

associates are shown on pages 130 to 141.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Statements of
Standard ("SSAPs")
applicable for the year ended 31 December 2002.

Accounting Practice
Save as specified in the principal accounting
policies as set out in note 2, the financial

statements have been prepared under the

historical cost convention.

Changes in accounting policies

In accordance SSAP 11 (revised in December
2001) "Foreign currency translation”, the balance
sheet of subsidiaries expressed in currencies other
than Hong Kong dollars are translated at the rates
of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date
whilst the profit and loss account is translated at
an average rate. Exchange differences are dealt

with as a movement in reserves.
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Mg HEEHE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—BEEE

A

ENRRZEBE

REEE  NEBUIINZEES
BOMBLARBERNREHE
EHE - EAgHERENE
B o AT ARULREFHAE
ERAGEEEEATE MU
EFERUABE A2 EE PR
MEBRARBERTEL REHD
BE o

BETZHBEXR

(F) RREZZZHE
EHEBENE (K
B (B HRERZ 28]
REERYVBRERERR
REDEHK  (EAHE
BIAAAC BB - EFEAILL
REBFEEHINRUEH
EXTDE

(Z2) Ben&%K
SHEGEINE+T IR
(#&iEa]) [(ReRERIR
HETREREN =R
Mg RERBE M
FFEAMNTIR - EFEN
ERBFEEHIIRNUE
BENAIA -

GENERAL continued

Changes in accounting policies continued

in prior year, the profit and loss account of
subsidiaries reported in currencies other than
Hong Kong dollars was translated at closing rate.
This is a change in accounting policy, however,
the translation of the profit and loss account of
subsidiaries reported in currencies other than
Hong Kong dollars in prior years has not been
restated as the effect of this change is not

material to the current and prior years.

Revised disclosure requirements

(a)  Statement of Changes in Equity
SSAP 1 (Revised) “Presentation of financial
statements” requires to present the
statement of changes in equity as a
separate component of its financial
statements. Comparative figures for the
prior year have been restated in order to

achieve a consistent presentation.

(b} Cash Flow Statements
SSAP 15 (Revised) "Cash flow statements”
has introduced revised classifications of
cash flows under three headings —
operating, investing and financing, rather
than the previous five headings.
Comparative figures for the prior year have
been restated in order to achieve a

consistent presentation.
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BB EMSE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—. EEEFEUR
B OBREAE

FREZGEAMBREBHEAR
SAIREEHERREMENBELE
ZHBHE - BRI XMES
AMEEERESEERBE DT
ZEE—HHAGE - REAER
WEIHEZHBRRIREED
RlzEBE D AEERKBRBE
ARBEREEMA R GRIE
RME) MAGE -

MEQE

FEARRARFERKEER
BEEHA LS BITRA A
HYBU LIRERRNARE)ES
HEERIFASEETERER 2
DA fBRRZRATIERA
BEREREBRENRAAREE
BERIIE - ARRNUDKERE
WHRBFTEMB AR ZXE -

Band

BEDRTENB LB &
SEUERS2RETRAEDNRZ
E?TESZ&%%%J&%W%‘\JEHEEK
FENZRR - BZRBERREE
Zﬁﬁlilﬁﬁgfﬁ*"&”‘?z%
Z-HEESEEAMBRA  BE
TZ?%EEELAZKEIFE{E%*M“
SAEFEAMKBEEEZR
BHEE (AR REMRES
BARK -

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the
Group include the financial statements of the
Company and of all its direct and indirect
subsidiaries and also incorporate the Group's
interests in associates on the basis set out in note
2C below. The
associates acquired or disposed of during the year

results of subsidiaries and

are included from the effective date of acquisition
or up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an enterprise in which the
Company, directly or indirectly, holds more than
half of the issued share capital or controls more
than half of the voting power, or where the
Company controls the composition of its board of
directors or equivalent governing body. In the
investments in

Company’'s  balance sheet,

subsidiaries are carried at cost less any
impairment loss. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of

dividends received and receivable.

Associates

An associate is an enterprise, not being a
subsidiary, over which the Group is in a position
to  exercise influence  through
participation in the financial and operating policy

decisions of the investee. The consolidated profit

significant

and loss account includes the Group's share of
the results of associates for the year. In the
consolidated balance sheet, interests in associates
is stated at the Group's share of net assets of the
associates plus unamortised goodwill (negative
acquisitions, less any

goodwill) arising on

impairment loss.
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MR EMEE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EEEFERE
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Associates continued

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in
associates are stated at cost less any impairment
loss.

Other investments

Other investments are investments in debt and
equity securities, except those held either solely
for the purpose of recovering advances or, as
investments in subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventures.

Other investments which are debt securities held-
to-maturity are stated at amortised cost in the
balance sheet. Amortised cost is cost plus or
minus the cumulative amortisation of the
difference between the purchase price and the
maturity amount.

Other investments which are held for an
identified long-term purpose are measured at cost
as reduced by any impairment loss that is other
than temporary.

Other investments which are neither debt
securities held-to-maturity nor securities held for
an identified long-term purpose are measured at
fair value, with unrealised gains or losses included
in the consolidated profit and loss account.

Goodwill/Negative gocdwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the
excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's
interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the acquired subsidiary/an
associate at the date of acquisition. Negative
goodwill arising from acquisitions of subsidiaries/
associates represents the excess of the Group's
interest in the fair value of identifiable assets and
liabilities acquired over the cost of acquisition.
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TSN T NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Goodwill/Negative goodwill continued
Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1 January
2001 continues to be held in reserves and will be
charged to the profit and loss account at the time
of disposal of the relevant subsidiary or associate,
or at such time as the goodwill is determined to
be impaired.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after 1
January 2001 is amortised to the consolidated
profit and loss account on a straight-line basis
over its estimated useful life of not more than 20
years and is stated in the consolidated balance
sheet at cost less any accumulated amortisation

and any impairment loss.

Where an indication of impairment exists, the
carrying amount of goodwill previously written
off against reserves is assessed and written down

immediately to its recoverable amount.

Negative goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to
1 January 2001 continues to be held in reserves
and will be released to the consolidated profit
and loss account at the time of disposal of the

relevant subsidiary or associate.

Negative goodwill arising on acquisitions on or
after 1 January 2001 is presented as a deduction
from assets and will be released to the
consolidated profit and loss account based on an
analysis of the circumstances from which the

balance resulted.
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MW EHEE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Goodwill/Negative goodwill continued

To the extent that negative goodwill relates to
expectations of future losses and expenses that
are identified in the Group's plan for the
acquisition and can be measured reliably, but
which do not represent identifiable liabilities at
the date of acquisition, that portion of negative
goodwill is recognised in the profit and loss
account when the future losses and expenses are
recognised in the profit and loss account. Any
remaining negative goodwill, not exceeding the
fair values of the non-monetary assets acquired, is
recognised in the profit and loss account over the
remaining weighted average useful life of those
identifiable acquired depreciable assets; negative
goodwill in excess of the fair values of those non-
monetary assets is recognised in the profit and
loss account immediately.

Fixed Assets

(a) Investment properties
Investment properties are interests in land
and buildings in respect of which
construction work has been completed and
which are held for their investment
potential, any rental income being
negotiated at arm’s length. Such properties
are stated at their open market value on the
basis of an annual professional valuation.

The valuations are carried out at intervals of
not more than three years by independent
valuers and in each of the intervening years,
valuations are undertaken by professionally
qualified executives of the Group. Changes
in the value of investment properties are
dealt with as movements in the property
valuation reserve. If the total of this reserve
is insufficient to cover a deficit on a
portfolio basis, the excess of the deficit is
charged to the profit and loss account.
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PTG Y NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

F Fixed Assets continued

(a)

(b)

Investment properties continued

Where a deficit has previously been charged
to the profit and loss account and a
revaluation surplus subsequently arises, this
surplus is credited to the profit and loss
account to the extent of the deficit
previously charged. Upon sale of a revalued
investment property, the revaluation surplus

is transferred to the profit and loss account.

No depreciation is provided for investment
properties which are held on leases with an

unexpired term of more than 20 years.

Construction in progress

Properties, plant and eguipment in the
course of construction for production, rent
or administrative purposes or for purposes
not yet determined, are carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Cost includes all construction expenditure,
professional  fees,  borrowing  costs
capitalised and other relevant expenses

directly attributable to such projects.

No provision for depreciation is made on
construction in progress until such time
when construction work is complete and
the costs of construction are transferred to

the appropriate category of fixed assets.
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Land

BF
Buildings
HEMEEE

Leasehold improvements
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Vessels

RE®

Cold storage facilities
Plant and machinery
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Furniture and equipment
P

Motor vehicles
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

F Fixed Assets continued

{c)

Other fixed assets

Fixed assets other than investment
properties and construction in progress are
stated at cost less depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation of other fixed assets is
provided to write off the cost of the assets
using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful
lives are as follows:

Over the unexpired term of lease

20E50F

20 to 50 years

BR3E0E A RMNKHEFHERETIRES

3 to 10 years or over the unexpired term of lease,

(d)

whichever is shorter
S5ZE 15%F

5to 15 years
105

10 years
SE25F

5 to 25 years
3105

3 to 10 years
3E8F

3 to 8 years

Impairment of fixed assets

At each balance sheet date, both internal
and external sources of information are
considered to assess whether there is any
indication that fixed assets other than
investment properties are impaired. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated and where
relevant, an impairment loss is recognised to
reduce the asset to its recoverable amount.
Such impairment losses are recognised in
the profit and loss account.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

F Fixed Assets continued

(@)

Impairment of fixed assets continued

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the assets
is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount. Such reversal of
impairment loss is limited to the asset's
carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to the profit
and loss account in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.

G Leases

(a)

(b)

Finance leases

Assets acquired pursuant to finance leases
and hire purchase contracts that transfer to
the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards incident to ownership are
accounted for as if purchased whereby an
amount equivalent to cost is recorded as
fixed assets and as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided in
accordance with the Group’s depreciation
policy. Payments to the lessor are treated
as consisting of capital and interest
elements. The interest element is charged
to profit and loss account.

Operating leases
All leases other than finance leases are
accounted for as operating leases.

Rental income or expense arising from
operating leases is recognised in the profit
and loss account on a straight line basis
over the periods of the respective leases
except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the time pattern of the
user’s benefit.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost and are
amortised on the straight line method over its
useful life. The estimated useful life are as follows:

10E 205

10 to 20 years
S5E155%

5 to 15 years

Where an indication of impairment exists, the
carrying amount of any intangible assets is
assessed and written down immediately to its
recoverable amount.

Stock of properties
Stock of properties includes properties under
development for sale and properties held for sale.

Properties under development comprise the land
cost together with development expenditure,
which includes construction costs, capitalised
interest and ancillary borrowing costs, plus
attributable profits taken to date, less progress
payments received and foreseeable losses.

Profit on pre-sale of properties under development
is recognised over the course of the development.
On this basis, profit recognised on properties pre-
sold during an accounting period is calculated by
reference to the proportion of development costs
incurred up to the accounting date to total
estimated development costs to completion, with
due allowance for contingencies.

Property held for sale is stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value
is determined by reference to management
estimates based on prevailing market conditions.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Other stocks

Other stocks which comprise raw materials,
consumables and packing materials, work-in-
progress and finished goods are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost of work-in-progress and finished goods
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of production overheads.

Cost is determined on the weighted average
method or in the case of retail business, cost is
calculated on the first-in first-out basis.

In prior years, stocks of retail business were
determined on the weighted average method. In
current year, the management reviewed the
costing method adopted for stocks of retail
business of both existing and newly acquired
operations and considered, by using the first-in-
first-out method, the respective retail operations
could be better integrated and measured
effectively. The effect of the change in costing
method has had no material effect on the results
for the current accounting period.

Net realisable value is determined as the
estimated net selling price less all further costs of
production and the related costs of marketing,
selling and distribution.

Recognition of revenue

Income from pre-sale of properties under
development prior to completion of the
development is recognised over the period from
execution of the respective sale and purchase
agreements to the completion of development by
reference to the proportion of development costs
incurred up to the balance sheet date to total
estimated development costs to completion.

Other sales are recognised upon delivery of goods
and provision of services; and interest income is
recognised in the profit and loss account as it
accrues.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are accounted for on the accrual
basis and charged to the consolidated profit and
loss account in the year incurred, except for costs
related to funding of fixed assets and properties
under development which are capitalised as part
of the cost of that asset up to the date when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are completed.

Fees paid for the arrangement of syndicated loan
facilities and debt securities are deferred and
amortised on a straight line basis over the period
of the loans.

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is accounted for using the
liability method in respect of timing differences
between profit as computed for taxation purposes
and profit as stated in the financial statements to
the extent that a liability or an asset is expected
to be crystallised in the foreseeable future,

Foreign exchange

Transactions in currencies other than Hong Kong
dollars are converted at the rates of exchange
ruling on the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in such currencies are
re-translated at the rates of exchange ruling on
the balance sheet date. Exchange differences are
included in the determination of operating profit.

On consolidation, the amounts in the balance
sheet of subsidiaries reported in currencies other
than Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the rates of exchange ruling on the
balance sheet date. The profit and loss account of
subsidiaries reported in currencies other than Hong
Kong dollars is translated at the average exchange
rates for the year. Exchange differences are dealt
with as movements on reserves.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

o)

Employee benefits — Share option schemes
When options are granted to employees to
subscribe  for shares of the Company in
accordance with the Company’'s share option
schemes, no employee benefit cost or obligation
is recognised at the date of grant. When the
options are exercised, equity is increased by the
amount of the proceeds received.

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

—2E-F —_ZTF—F
BB BB T T
2002 2001

HK$ 000 HK$'000

EEEEARFREMBLTG
YINEFPZHE  BRXA
THIEE ZHWA

RERSE REMBRA

HE WA
HEY X

Turnover represents
sales by the Company
and its subsidiaries
to outside customers
and comprises

revenue from:

Sales of goods 27,812,322 22,345,688
Rendering of services

and others 743,957 656,493
Rental income 198,114 199,932
Sales of properties 67,626 994,377

28,822,019 24,196,490
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=. BEBROIEERF 3. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION continued
TEFHAE — R¥EBES Primary reporting format — business segments
gamI
AEER REH
tEREH Food BRAR
Petroleum Processing HipEE
and Chemical & and & S8 W% Investments HE 23y
Distribution Retail ~ Distribution  Beverage  Textiles Property  and Others Elimination Total
EETT BB BETL B¥TR AT EBTR BETT BB BETR
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
RZ-88%:% For the year ended
+ZAZ+-BLEFE 31 December 2002
(g3 REVENUE
HHEE External sales 10,500,763 6,342,269 4,768,241 3738119 2,521,527 432,658 518,442 — 28,822,019
iBHEE Inter-segment sales — 1,936 35,133 — — 108174 - (145,243) —
10,500,763 6,344,205 4,803,374 3,738,119 2,521,527 540,832 518,442 (145,243) 28,822,019
Eftla Other revenue 29,136 54,634 40,493 33,522 49,358 11,551 81,723 — 300,417
10,529,899 6,398,839 4,843,867 3,771,641 2,570,885 552,383 600,165 (145,243) 29,122,436
311 RESULT
AEES Segment result 327,052 116,309 402909 344708 199574 270,330 62,763 — 1,723,645
AEAE 2 ARZM Unallocated corporate
Bxpenses (63,583)
HMEBA Interest income 140,311
BEBH Profit from operations 1,800,373
BHAE Finance costs (312,246)
ERBEQTAMN Share of net profits of associates 6,660 (704) 40,090 — 9,951 — 336,893 - 392,500
B Taxation (253,157)
BREGBH Profit after taxation 1,627,870
R-QQc# As at 31 December 2002
+ZBR=+-R
HE ASSETS
ARRE Segment assets 3,436,270 4,068,248 2,897,675 6,619,753 2,398,791 5,289,473 401,202 — 25111412
REERRZRE Investments in associates 239,361 220,685 469,085 — 120419 — 1082911 - 2,132,461
JRERE Taxation recoverable 23,981
REABZARNEE Unallocated corporate assets 897 515
BEEERE Consolidated total assets 28,165,369
af LIABILITIES
NERAR Segment liabilities 1395178 2,633,167 659,525 2,762,400 813,355 216,605 58,009 — 8,538,239
HBER Tax liabilities 151,813
FEDB2ATAE Unallocated corporate liabilities 2,925,328
GEAMBE Consolidated total liabilities 11,615,380
Hie#n OTHER INFORMATION
AXEE Capital expenditure 73,339 677.079 69,324 232,374 147,575 8,451 24,584 — 1,232,726
FEREH Depreciation and amortisation 77,435 180,989 119,703 378,067 58,847 33,262 52,105 - 900,408
ERBZEEER Impairment loss recognised - 1,068 - 12,000 - — - — 13,068
BENE Revaluation deficit of
SEES investment properties — - - — - 57,410 — — 57,410
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= BEERSEERE 3. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION continued
TERHEANK — REBBIE Primary reporting format — business segments
continued
REMI
F:¥:):4 REH
LEREH Food RER
Petroleum Processing Rt 2%
and Chemical 2E and i 58 Y%  Investments He a3t
Distribution Retail  Distribution  Beverage  Textiles Property  and Others Efimination Total
BETL A%Trn BETR A¥TR BETR BT BRI BETT BETT
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BE-98%-F For the year ended
+ZA=Z+-BLEE 31 December 2001
Y REVENUE
Hu@E External sales 9,889,257 4,025,816 5,715,205 2,412,999 — 1,378,942 774,271 — 24,196,490
EREHE inter-segment sales - — 34,654 — — 100,014 — (134,668) —
9,889,257 4,025,816 5,749,859 2,412,999 — 1,478,956 774,271 (134,668) 24,196,490
il Other revenue 48,177 38,067 56,562 23,070 — 15,716 8,459 — 190,051
9,937,434 4,063,883 5,806,421 2,436,069 — 1,494,672 782,730 (134,668) 24,386,541
0 RESULT
AEEH Segment result 246,107 90,907 436,252 147,871 - 707,324 117,034 — 1,745,495
FESBZAFRHN Uniallocated corporate
expenses (47,340)
HEWA intarest income 255,172
HERBRBHFN Profit on disposal of
investments 68,374
BEHF Profit from operations 2,021,801
BEEA Finance costs (422,668 )
BERBEARZ Loss recognised in respect of
REMBEAGE investment in an associate (292,012)
ERBELA RN Share of net profits of associates 11,668 3,819 43,508 - — - 310,965 — 369,960
BE Taxation (211,226)
BRERR Profit atter taxation 1,465,855
R-B%-F As-at 31 December 2001
+-A=+-8
BE ASSETS
PEEE Segment assets 2,650,090 1,944,924 2,961,970 5,991,932 — 5,283,320 754,300 — 19,586,536
REERRZRE Investments in associates 235,584 48,735 472,953 — - — 2,445,899 — 3203171
AREHE Taxation recoverable 15,365
XBHBZDREE Unallocated corporate assets 3,873,879
REeHEELE Consolidated total assets 26,678,951
aft LIABILITIES
AEER Segment liabilities 711,766 1,192,868 454,642 2,564,127 — 472,521 226,454 — 5,622,378
HEaE Tax liabilities 132,315
FENBZARERE Unallocated corporate liabilities 6,069,031
SEE048E Consolidated total liabilities 11,823,724
Ht@B OTHER INFORMATION
EENGES Capital expenditure 29,647 153,886 162,395 78,435 — 67,525 31,634 — 583,522
FEREH Depreciation and amortisation 74,577 88,798 118,854 250,840 — 32,948 55,683 —_ 621,700
EREAZHESE Impairment loss recognised - - — 6,000 - — — — 6,000
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= BEBERAHERSE 3. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION continued

REBRRAKE — RHEEAS Secondary reporting format — geographical
segments
nEAE  RAEXR
E#  Chinese Other 2
Hong Kong  Mainland  Countries Total

AETT  BETR EETR BETR

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

BE-88°% For the year ended
tZA=+-BLEE 31 December 2002
TEUE Segment revenue
218 Turnover 14,423,234 12,227,194 2171591 28822019
Efhls Other revenue 184,550 112,333 353 300417
14,607,784 12339527 2,175,125 29,122,436
H-g2-f+=ZF=+-8 As at 31 December 2002
SAEEE Segment assets 11,126,855 13,074,867 909,690 25111412
REATAE Additions to fixed assets 186,822 1,013,255 32,649 1232726
BE-2%8-% For the year ended
+ZBZ+-HULFE 31 December 2001
SBRuR Segment revenue
L Turnover 15,684,629 7,727,574 784,287 24,196,490
Efbli Other revenue 145,365 37,956 6730 190,051
15,829,994 7,765,530 791,017 24,388,541
R-B2-f#+Z8=+-8 As at 31 December 2001
PRAE Segment assets 10605466 8,124,560 856,510 19,586,536
REBATEE Additions to fixed assets 229449 259,813 94,260 583,522
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m. H Ak 4. OTHER REVENUE
—BE_fF _"ETT--F
BET T BEF T
2002 2001
HIK$ 000 HK$'000
Al EeiE T E1E Other revenue includes
the following:
REFLTEMEBEZRE Dividend from unlisted
other investments 14,525 12,888
R 2 A fnterest income 140,311 255,272
LEWBR ARG EF Profit on disposal of
interest in
subsidiaries 474 9,289
A, BB 3. FINANCE COSTS
—EEZF —ZT—F
BETT BT
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
BREROHF S Interest on finance leases 2,402 4,079
BITERREMERAA interest on bank loans
BERAFRNEHESR and other loans wholly
repayable within
five years 284,692 399,153
BEXH Financing charges 26,786 19,436
313,880 422,668
B BRELARE Less: Amounts capitalised (1,634) —
312,246 422,668
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7N, BRB AT i A PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
“2%°F C—TE—fF
BETR BEETT
2002 2001
HK$000 HK$000
BREARAT MR Profit before taxation has been
arrived at after charging:
LEMBe Auditors’ remuneration 14,161 10,292
BIXA(REEEHNS) Staff costs (including
directors’ emoluments) 1,726,840 1,317,732
E Depreciation
—BEEE — Owned assets 814,771 565,241
— RREMAREZEE — Assets held under finance leases 5,078 6,178
EREEHS Amortisation of intangible assets
—EHRBEE-RR — Goodwill {included in general
THEAMN) and administrative expenses) 67,792 37,330
—BBUMNZENEE — Intangible assets
other than goodwill 12,847 12,951
BRADEERER Revaluation deficit of
investment properties 57.410 —
BHACETEEHESR Impairment loss recognised
on fixed assets 13,068 6,000
THEBFZEEENER Operating leases charges on
land and buildings 560,859 483,332
YEHA And after crediting:
HekAgE Gross rental income 198,114 199,932
W EBRR Less: Related out-goings (10,288) (17,130)
HEBASFE Net rental income 187,826 182,802
MEZzAaE2 Negative goodwill recognised
(BRETEpURER) (included in other revenue) 9,627 —
EEBLELRENAER Share of profits less
losses of associates
L Listed - 28,718
L Unlisted 449,930 393,841
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. EFEBSE 7. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

—BEC-fF —ZEE-F

BETR BETT

2002 2001

HK$000 HK$'000

e Fees 1,010 1,060

EXHE R ER Basic salaries and allowances 16,710 14,731

NESHR Provident fund contributions 1,456 1,420

BATTELT Bonus paid 1,017 2,804
TR EREEE Benefit from share

options exercised* 21,069 14,692

41,262 34,707

* BRRBATEBRERPMR -

SRESFCHSBENFTTIIE
g

*  The amount was not charged to the profit and loss account.

The total emoluments of all directors were within the

following bands:

BEEAH
No. of directors

—BE2-f —EBE—F
g HK$ 2002 2001
£ — 1,000,000 Nil — 1,000,000 7 8
1,000,001 — 1,500,000 1,000,001~1,500,000 3 3
1,500,001 ~ 2,000,000 1,500,001-2,000,000 1 1
2,000,001 — 2,500,000 2,000,001-2,500,000 2 2
2,500,001 — 3,000,000 2,500,001-3,000,000 1 —
3,000,001 — 3,500,000 3,000,001-3,500,000 1 1
3,500,001 — 4,000,000 3,500,001-4,000,000 — 1
5,500,001 — 6,000,000 5,500,001-6,000,000 — 2
7,000,001 — 7,500,000 7,000,001-7,500,000 — 1
8,000,001 — 8,500,000 8,000,001-8,500,000 1 —
15,000,001 — 15,500,000 15,000,001-15,500,000 1 —

XA BREENTFTEYERNITEE Y
EEZWMEHEEE360,00T (T —
£ B ¥360,0007T) °

BTEURBRDA

The directors’ fees paid to independent non-executive
directors included above amounted to HK$360,000

(2001: HK$360,000).
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IN.

I & = F R B

FRAINGSFEERRA=U(ZZ2F
—E ZEF FHBECSHEN XM
Hc HRU (ZEE—F - WU &
SFEEMESIMN CHMEFENT

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the vyear
included three (2001: three) directors, details of whose
remunerations are set out in note 7 above. The details of
the remuneration paid to the other two (2001: two)
highest paid employees are as follows:

—¥%=F =-TT—%

BETT BETIT
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
EXRF e REY Basic salaries and
allowances 3,227 3,087
DEEHEX Provident fund
contributions 333 343
BT Bonus paid 2,704 5,184
6,264 9,514
AT HEEEZHFWNF T The emoluments of these two highest paid individuals
BE : were within the following bands:
AHE
No. of persons
—RECSF ZEFTF
B HK$ 2002 2001
2,500,001 — 3,000,000 2,500,001-3,000,000 1 —
3,500,001 — 4,000,000 3,500,001-4,000,000 1 —
4,500,001— 5,000,000 4,500,001-5,000,000 -— 2
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9.

STAFF PROVIDENT FUND

Hong Kong

The Group operates various defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all Hong
Kong employees. The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The amount of
contributions is based on a specified percentage of
the basic salary of employees and any forfeited
contributions in respect of unvested benefits of staff

leavers are used to reduce the Group's contributions,

—EB-F —TF—F
BEFT BT T
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
Group contribution to
TEBHBERNES ZHE staff provident fund 32,819 36,957
Forfeited contributions
BB Z B U utilised (3,264) (3,230)
Amount charged to profit
FABBRZRE and loss account 29,555 33,727
Un-utilised forfeited
HARE A Z UK contributions 208 1,082
z PE A b Chinese Mainland

AEBAERENENHEEHERN
AHBEBTBAEENERE
BEKENAENKE - AEE
ERZTEXNIEBER L
MER - EREFNEE - TEH
EUFFENE-BRETEEXN

BrEMRK-

The employees of the Group in the Chinese
Mainland are members of state-managed
retirement benefit schemes operated by the
respective local government in the Chinese
Mainland. The Group is reguired to contribute a
specified percentage of payroll costs to the
schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to these schemes is to
make the specified contributions.
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AR EMIEE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

. BB He2E 9. STAFF PROVIDENT FUND continued
Z o it 4E B Chinese Mainland continued
ALehERRRGFEME The total cost charged to the profit and loss account
BERTPINEROERFOESE in respect of the above-mentioned schemes in the
98,008,000t (28— & : B Chinese Mainland amounted to approximately
#£79,944,0007T) ° HK$99,008,000 (2001: HK$79,944,000).
+. HIE 10. TAXATION

—g®=-% -TT-=
BEFT BT
2002 2001
HK$'G00 HK$'000

AEEBE Current taxation
&8 Hong Kong
ARTEHBRA Company and
subsidiaries 145,007 174,198
RN Associates 42,171 43,726
o BB R b Chinese Mainland
RN Subsidiaries 95,164 32,548
Bek 85 N F) Associates 14,859 8,873
3§ AN Overseas
NG Subsidiaries 12,959 2,553
310,160 261,898
BESIG Deferred taxation
%8 Hong Koeng
K A Subsidiaries 315 1,775
hE A Chinese Mainland
B A Subsidiaries {288) 152
310,187 263,825

=AMRBEM2E 87 CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED




ARSIREWEE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

+.

i TE 4% 10.

ERFERIBERER 2 A ERY
BB E16%(ZEE—F : 16%)
HE - mBEAMMBBBREERRT
BB AR RBERAZBARE
EONREETEREURE FBE - BINRIE
REAEERZBEMRHE -

REFWRBER(BE) THNEE 2E
ERERER SR, IR AT ¢

TAXATION continued

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16% (2001: 16%)
on the estimated assessable profits for the year. Chinese
Mainland income tax has been provided for based on
the estimated assessable profits in accordance with the
relevant tax laws applicable to the subsidiaries and
associates in the Chinese Mainland. Overseas taxation is
calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective
jurisdictions.

Potential deferred taxation credit/(charge) for the year
have not been recognised/(provided) in respect of the

following:

—Bg-FE Z—ZZET—F

BETT BT

2002 2001
HK$ 000 HK$'000
EramEHnExaE Arising from accelerated
depreciation allowances 2,712 (6,494)
EEERARHEZHIESE Arising from unrelieved
tax losses 21,330 5,740
EEaHMRE Arising from other
timing differences 1,225 87
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B EREMIEE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

+— KA 11. DIVIDENDS
== 2 B2 -F§
BETR BT
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEEFRERNRITEBRE Additional final dividend paid
ik < EINRERR S for the previous year as
a result of share allotment
and exercise of share options 5,798 3,477
ZEFE-FEMNERTHEEE 2002 special interim dividend
ERTERBE2T paid of HK$0.25 (2001:Nil)
(ZEZ—F : E) per ordinary share 518,142 -
—EF-FZENPEHRE 2002 interim dividend paid of
ERTEREE0T HK$0.09 (2001: HK$0.08)
—ZEZT—F : B%0.087L) per ordinary share 187,218 161,197
TEF_FHRREARS 2002 proposed final dividend of
FRETBERBEEI3T HK$0.13 (2001: HK$0.10)
(ZZ25—F - F%0.1070) per ordinary share 270,453 201,555
281,611 366,229

EER-FTE=FMASRBTRE
SRR SRS EEBRAER0.137T - R
BARRARGE B2 EBRBA M H
ZHRERBLENFNBRERRAR

& e

At the meeting held on 3 April 2003 the directors proposed a

final dividend of HK$0.13 per ordinary share. This proposed

dividend, which is calculated on the Company’'s number of

ordinary shares as at the balance sheet date is not recognised

as a liability in these financial statements.
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MREIRENTSE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

+Z. BREF 12. EARNINGS PER SHARE
ZEZCE ZEZE-F
BETR BETT
2002 2001
HIK$'000 HK$'000
EREFARBERFNBE The calculation of the basic and diluted
THHEFE earnings per share is based on
the following data:
&7 Earnings
AUHEGREREHN Profit attributable to shareholders for
R R B AR R R the purpose of calculating
basic eamings per share 1,402,945 1,204,807
FEITEAARESM Interest saving on exercise of
EiE 2 F 8 convertible bonds 69,561 —
AUFESREERHN 2 Net profit attributable to shareholders
BREEEGER for the purpose of calculating
diluted earnings per share 1,472,506 1,204,807
ZE88-F —EE-F
2002 2001
g & Number of shares
BUHESRERERNZ Weighted average number of
LTERMETHIEH ordinary shares for the
purpose of calculating basic
earnings per share 2,070,867,429 2,010,044,074
RN TRRERCEETE Effect of dilutive potential
ordinary shares:
— BRE — Share options 12,236,759 17,212,460
— ABRRES — Convertible bonds 119,595,400 —
ANHESRBERAN Weighted average number of
THREMETHE ordinary shares for the purpose of

calculating diluted earnings per share  2,202,699,588  2,027,256,534

RZEE-FTEIRRESERRE The effect of exercise of convertible bonds in 2001 is anti-
THEE . dilutive.
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BI SRS HIsE  NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TZ EEEE 13. FIXED ASSETS
RENE T REF HBERE RitEZE
Investment land and Plant and e Other 4%
properties  buildings machinery  Vessels assets Total
RETT BA¥TR BEETT A¥Tn EBTr EETrn
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
T%E The Group
KALGBE Cost or valuation
AZRF-_&-F-H At 1 January 2002 2,618,497 4906265 3,614,102 927,510 1,997,267 14,063,641
BEHBLE/ERHEA Relating to acquisition of
subsidiaries/business 69,950 821422 1,133,938 — 592,710 2618,020
LEWELABEL Relating 1o disposal of subsidiaries —  [49221)  (42.704) —  (15953) (107,878)
#E Additions — 103228 205,607 29,281 894,610 1,232,726
HE Disposals (1,700) (11,714} (49,101)  (26,068) (115,517) (204,100}
EREE Exchange difference - 1,200y {(1,458) — (45) {2,703)
ERELS Revaluation deficit {129,522) - — — —  (129,522)
E ok Reclassifications 256,065  (170,162) 443,924 2,083 (531,910) -
BoEE-5+2FZ1+-8 At 31 December 2002 2,813,290 5,598,618 5304308 932,806 2,821,162 17,470,184
2HRERAMA Accumulated depreciation
and impairment
R-_EZ-_%#-f-B At 1 January 2002 — 727,280 1,067,213 290,383 746,011 2,830,887
WEBKRBLR/ZHEEA Relating to acquisition of
subsidiaries/business — 122,141 378,736 - 96,126 597,003
HERBLARES Relating to disposal of subsidiaries —  {(5194)  (13,2%) - (6439)  (24,929)
FERHE Charge for the year — 158086 360496 72,057 229210 819,849
HEER Written back on disposals — (3,178)  (35521)  (18,125)  {80,523) (137.347)
EHER Exchange difference - (148) (460) - 60 (548)
EFAR Redlassifications 47881 (43,710) 74,058 - (718229) -
EHER Revaluation adjustment (47,881) - — — —  (47,881)
EEAZRERSR Impairment loss recognised - 1,068 12,000 - — 13,068
RZEE-#+-fA=1-8 At 31 December 2002 — 956,345 1,843,226 344,315 906,216 4,050,102
BEZE Net book values
R-ZZE-_F+-F=1-H At 31 December 2002 2813,290 4,642,273 3,461,082 588,431 1,914,946 13,420,082
RZZE-£+ZA=t—-H At 31 December 2001 2618497 4178985 2,546,889 637,127 1,251,256 11,232,754
BT3RRR EE Representing assets stated:
BRA At cost — 5598618 5304308 932,806 2,821,162 14,655,894
R-ST-GEEME At 2002 professional valuation 2,813,290 - - — — 2,813,290
2,813,290 5598618 5304308 932,806 2,821,162 17,470,184
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TZBEEEE 13. FIXED ASSETS continued
RENE ITHREF RiEE
Investment  Land and Other 8%
properties  buildings assets Total
AETT EETR BETR #ETn
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
F0H The Company
KA E Cost or valuation
RN_ZEE_F-f-8 At 1 January 2002 45,700 1,823 22,123 69,646
~E Additions — — 6,192 6,192
HE Disposals — — (6,715) {6,715)
EfERH Revaluation surplus 5,000 - — 5,000
RZBEE-F+-R=+-H At 31 December 2002 50,700 1,823 21,600 74,123
ZitiE Accumulated depreciation
RZEE-_F—-F-H At 1 January 2002 — 243 13,382 13,625
FEEHE Charge for the year — A 2,730 2,77
HEEE Written back on disposals - - (4,701 (4,701
MR-ZE-_F+-A=+—-H At 31 December 2002 — 284 11411 11,695
BREFE Net book values
RZZZ-F+-f=+-H At 31 December 2002 50,700 1,539 10,189 62,428
RZEE-F+-A=+-H At 31 December 2001 45,700 1,580 8,741 56,021
BTFAANEEE Representing assets stated:
BEA At cost — 1,823 21,600 23,423
BT -FEEHE At 2002 professional
valuation 50,700 — — 50,700
50,700 1,823 21,600 74,123

i
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X
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B REMIEE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

t=BEEEEHF

13. FIXED ASSETS continued

—BE-fF =ZEFT—F
EBTR BET T
2002 2001
HK3$'CCC HK$'000
MEERZREFESE Net book values of the property
interests comprise:
&8 The Group
5H Hong Kong
BEERHEROBEBEZME Properties held on long lease 2,806,162 2,773,949
BEHHROBFEDE Properties held on
medium-term lease 2,284,073 2,268,384
BREBHZABEZDE Properties held on short lease 7,350 8,638
HE i Chinese Mainland
EREBZOFELIDE Properties held on long lease 52,407 8,163
RREROSEHEIME Properties held on
medium-term lease 2,190,800 1,608,609
REHRAOBEAZDHE Properties held on short lease 690,702 69,279
3 o Overseas
REBRABFE ME Properties held on short lease 54,069 60,450
7,455,563 6,797,482
¥ /N The Company
EB Hong Kong
RO E2ME Properties held on
medium-term lease 50,700 45,700
R Chinese Mainland
RPBEABREINE Properties held on
medium-term lease 1,539 1,580
52,239 47,280
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BEEEHTTE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

T EAEEES

()

(2)

(")

REDFCHAEEYEL B
IR I ERP I R AR
TEE-F+-AE=Z+—BZA
FmEEEFLEE -

FEBZRRERNORBREZETE
ERZTEZF+=-A=+—H
ZHREIE{EEA®24,999,0007T
(ZZ2ZT— % : #%34,078,000

L) e

R 2 {E BB % 466,414,0007T
(ZZZT—F : H¥654,049,000

TZEERECEREREN

370,643,000 2 EEER (ZF
T & EHEREE
438,322,000 R R E B
37,600,0007T) B9 R G -

HuBTEETRREEENE
Kig RA&E  BARR

AEREETIR-

13. FIXED ASSETS continued

(a)

The investment properties have been valued at 31
December 2002 by Mr. Kwan Pok Man, Daniel,
Chartered Surveyor, the deputy general manager
of the Group’s Property Division, on an open

market value basis.

The net book values of fixed assets held under

finance leases of the Group at 31 December

2002 amounted to HK$24,999,000 (2001:
HK$34,078,000).
Fixed assets with net book value of

HK$466,414,000 (2001: HK$654,049,000) are
pledged for short term loans in the sum of
HK$370,643,000 (2001:
HK$438,322,000 and long
HK$37,600,000).

short term loans of

term loans of

Other fixed assets mainly comprise leasehold
improvements, cold storage facilities, furniture
and equipment, motor vehicles and construction

in progress.
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B ®EMEE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

0 EE EE 14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
BABE Lk e ¥EAE
Purchased Negative Brand Development £H
goodwill  goodwill names costs Total
BETLT R%Tr BBtz EETRT BRI
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
BEE The Group
KA Cost
R-EE-%-5-8 At 1 January 2002 845,841 — 185,008 25,365 1,056,214
KEWNBLT/£8 Acquisition of
subsidiaries/business 443304  (137,594) — — 305,710
BERERRE Increase in equity interest
in subsidiaries 92,242 (78,523} - — 13,719
HEHBAF Disposal of subsidiaries — — (4,089) (3,589) {7,678)
EREE Exchange difference (34) - — — (34)
R-EE-F At 31 December 2002 1,381,353  (216,117) 180,919 21,776 1,367,931
+-A=z+-8
2iEH Accumulated amortisation
R-EE-F-8-84 At 1 January 2002 37,330 — 37.472 18,632 93,434
REGEH Charge for the year 67,712 (9,627) 10,038 2,808 70,932
HEHBAFRE Written back on
disposal of subsidiaries - — (1,913) (1,615) (3,528}
Exchange difference (2) - - — (2)
At 31 December 2002 105,040 (9,627) 45,598 19,825 160,836
Net book values
At 31 December 2002 1,276,313 (206,490) 135,321 1,95t 1,207,095
At 31 December 2001 808,511 — 147,536 6,733 962,780
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+ g

IV EE &

BABEDREBEEAS ITRFRLE=
THEEE ARBEUERE  EFRE
AL A RITECEE B T IE TS
AREH  ATRAZTAFARRAW
Ao

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS continued

The purchased goodwill is amortised over the estimated
useful lives of 7 to 20 years. The negative goodwill is
released to income on a straight line basis of 15 to 19
years, the remaining weighted average useful life of the
depreciable assets acquired.

+H AKMBAEZER 15. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
- BE-F _—FT--F
BETR BEET T
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
b NS The Company

WG - KAE Unlisted shares, at cost 9,009,222 7,369,047

FE UL I B B B IR Amounts due from

subsidiaries 5,861,040 5,857,439

14,870,262 13,226,486

R-EEZE+ZRA=+—RBZZEW
BRAAEBHENEI0E EFE 141
ED

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December
2002 are set out on pages 130 to 141.
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EAW k- E 16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
88 EF _FE—F
B¥Tr BETT
2002 2001
HK$ 000 HK$'000
=83 The Group
= Listed
BILEEFE Share of net assets — 561,518
LT Unlisted
EREEFE Share of net assets 641,045 1,352,310
REWEBEEARZEE Goodwill on
acquisition of
associates 165,044 1,141
FE g Bt 2 X B)FRIB Amounts due from
associates 1,326,372 1,288,202
2,132,461 3,203,171
b /| The Company
WD RERE Listed shares, at cost — 211,075
ELTHRG  KAEE Unlisted shares, at cost — 1,793,232
B EEREBELSZIEE Less: loss recognised
FrigRE B in respect of
investment in
an associate — (195,471)
— 1,808,836
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W EMTEE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TN REENT 2R 16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES continued
AEEBREWE —BMEDTIMELSLE Purchased goodwill of approximately HK$164 millicn
#2 164,000,000 & EEZWERE was resulted upon the acquisition of an associate by the
ERRER —SE-EHHESRERE Group close to the financial year end of 2002 and
= MAEEUABEEEIHE accordingly no amortisation of such purchased goodwill

has been charged to the profit and loss account.

RWoEE-E+-_F=+ AT Particulars of the principal associates at 31 December
BMATIHISEPENE 1308 E £ 14 2002 are set out on pages 130 to 141.
=i
+ ERE 17. OTHER INVESTMENTS
LS 3
The Group

—88-F ZET-F
BRTT  AEETIL
2002 2001
HK$"000 HK$"000

ERBRE Non-current investments
FAELTRG  HEAE Unlisted shares in Hong Kong,
at cost 11,348 11,345
RBAMIE FHRG - Unlisted shares in the
BAE Chinese Mainland, at cost 109,052 11,064
FIANEBEXEE Capital contribution to
BRZEX a limited partnership 53,733 53,733
EWETIR BN RIFE Amounts due from investee
companies 5,006 5,607

179,140 81,749
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M| EMTE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

T/ E AT A

18. PREPAYMENTS

F&0
The Group
—g8=§ -3%-%
BT BEFT
2002 2007
HKS$'000 HK$'000

ANBATNEEZHEBAT
EaBREE —R—A—8

B NFERER A

R+ R=+—HZz&H

BR—FAPRZHMD

BR—FERDBZEHMG

R+_A=+—B2Z&&H

Tank storage service fees

prepaid to a fellow subsidiary

~at 1 January 410,400 432,000
Less: Amount recognised

during the year (21,800) (21,600)

Balance at 31 December 388,800 410,400

Portion to be utilized

within one year 21,600 21,600
Portion to be utilized

after one year 367,200 388,800
Balance at 31 December 388,800 410,400

BREAEEHESAREE B ATM
Rz fEmmaE ([ZmEl)  BR
R BEH SRR IHFEENFAX
2B RHEERGE -

ERMUKARRE 99

Pursuant to the tank storage agreement (the
“Agreement”) entered into between the Group and a
fellow subsidiary, the recognised amount can be applied
to set off portion of the total tank storage service fees

payable during the year under the Agreement.
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T+ EE 19. STOCKS
piy- i N

The Group The Company
Z¥B-F “TT-F -Z88ZfF _TT-F
2002 2001 2002 2001
BRTR AETT BEIR B¥Tx
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BEWE Properties held for sale 193,179 239,507 3,000 3,000
R Raw materials 556,015 285,253 - —

SRmEBENE Consumables and

packing materials 551,768 446,369 - —
E&m Waork-in-progress 126,522 84,577 - -
BIA G Finished goods 1,959,321 1,141,665 - -
3,386,797 2,197,371 3,000 3,000
RZIBE-F+-RA=+—8  Uf% At 31 December 2002, the carrying amount of finished goods

RFEYEREZRK M AEE25,735,000 that are carried at net realisable value amounted to
T (ZBEE—F : E# 224,877,000 HK$25,735,000 (2001: HK$224,877,000).

7T) e
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

g b N
The Group The Company
“Eg-f -“TT-F -ZB8%-f -EER-E
2002 2001 2002 2007
BETr AEBETR BETR AETxH
HK$000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
EHESER Trade receivables 1,923,404 1,320,482 - —
EpERZE RehEMRAE Other receivables, deposits
and prepayments 1,520,796 1,332,873 8,279 11,943
EUHNBARRE Amounts due from
subsidiaries — — 61,691 27,115
ERBERFZA Amounts due from
associates 58,361 18,388 20,943 1,374
3,502,561 2,671,743 90,833 40,432
FEE-RETEFPUTZEESR: The Group normally trades with its customers under the

(F) BEIMZ: R

() RTREBE

REERZEBRESERZEE

following credit terms:
(@)  cash upon delivery and

(b) open credit within 60 days

The following is the aged analysis of trade receivables at the

DWW reporting date;
&

The Group
—BEZE —ET-F
BBTR BT T
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
0—30% 0 - 30 days 1,458,840 942,845
31—60XK 31 - 60 days 184,261 205,087
61—90XK 61 — 90 days £8,098 42,982
> 90X > 90 days 212,205 129,568
1,923,404 1,320,482
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—t+— B 5 RHAMERKIE 21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
AEE FAF
The Group The Company
ZE%-f -TF-% ZSB-E -—TE-%
2002 2001 2002 2001
BETRT #ABTn BETrx AT
HIK$000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$"000
ERESER Trade payables 3,060,627 1,551,921 - —
EHENRERENER Other payables and accruals  2,816,15% 2,348,469 5,248 7,500
BEEEZTD) Pravisions (note 22) 133,375 164,190 - —
ERHE LR Amounts due to subsidiaries — — 67,274 27,882
ﬂw%’&?mlﬁ Amounts due to associates 24,453 1,256 - —
EASLREEZ Amounts due to fellow
Lol NG O subsidiaries - 15,411 - 3
5,034,606 4,081,247 73,522 35,703
REBRAZENESER2EERS The following is the aged analysis of trade payables at the
IR NN balance sheet date:
rTEH
The Group
—BEE-F —_FTF—F
BETR BT T
2002 2001
HK$°000 HK$'000
0— 30X 0 - 30 days 1,557,093 752,262
31—-60K 31 - 60 days 559,881 413,297
— 90k 61 — 90 days 638,491 148,770
> 90Xk > 90 days 305,162 237,592
3,060,627 1,551,821
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

T e 22. PROVISIONS
BEET T
HK$'000
rEH The Group
R-ZEZE-_F—HF—H At 1 January 2002 164,190
FRNEHAEBSB Utilisation during the year (30,815)
R-ZEE-—F+=-A=+—A1 At 31 December 2002 133,375

ERBEEBNRIEFEMKRENE
BETEAMEL - LERFESR
BUESXSERS CEEFEMS

The amounts represent provisions for restructuring activities for

operations acquired in previous years. These provisions were

utilized in accordance with the restructuring plans adopted

M- when such operations were acquired.
—t+EZ EHEXK 23. SHORT TERM LOANS
FEQ
The Group
—BBF ZEE-F
BB T R B¥TT
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEHgEINHXHEE Current portion of long term
liabilities comprises
HimEIEHRER Other unsecured loans — 1,365,000
BEEARE Obligations under
finance leases 11,092 12,183
11,082 1,377,183
REARTER  FRrlBREX Short term bank loans, trust
receipts and overdrafts
Pt il Secured 608,769 480,388
£ 15 1 Unsecured 1,658,533 734,557
2,278,454 2,592,128
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4. EEHAE 24. LONG TERM LIABILITIES
TEDQ
The Group
=8B CZTIT-F
BETR BT T
2002 2001
HiK$'000 HK$'000
BRRAFRERZ Secured bank loans repayable
BHEMBETER within 5 years — 37,600
BRAOAFREEZ Unsecured bank loans repayable
BEHEAERTER within 5 years 1,077,729 2,994,000
ERAFRERZ Other unsecured loans repayable
ﬁi’r&ﬁ?ﬁﬁ%%& within 5 years 1,916,399 3,201,081
BEREFREEZ Obligations under finance leases
BMEHL AE repayable within 5 years 23,977 29,835
BEARAEFAZHEEY Other unsecured loan not wholly
HttEmEBAER repayable within 5 years 141,942 127,264
BAREFREREERZ Obligations under finance leases
REEARE not wholly repayable
within 5 years 1,552 5,437
3,161,599 6,395,217
FIRREBEZBNEE®H Current portion included in
current liabilities (11,0%2) (1,377,183)

3,150,507 5,018,034
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. RBEES 24. LONG TERM LIABILITIES continued

8O
The Group
—8B-F ZETE—F
BET T BETR
2002 2001
HK$ 000 HK$'000

EHEE BB NE The non-current portion of
BIATEHESR long term liabilities are
repayable as follows:

BITEX Bank loans

—EULERERA After 1 year, but within 2 years — 94,000
MELNEERER After 2 years, but within 5 years 1,077,729 2,937,600
HiER Other loans

—FUAEERER After 1 year, but within 2 years 19,308 17,905
MELNEEZERFA After 2 years, but within 5 years 1,952,394 1,889,795
hEF% After 5 years 86,632 55,645
REBRNER Obligations under

finance leases

—FEUNLEERFR After 1 year, but within 2 years 4,727 5,663
MEALERTFNRN After 2 years, but within 5 years 8,158 11,989
AFE After 5 years 1,552 5,437

3,150,507 5,018,034
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Tt . REBEES 24. LONG TERM LIABILITIES continued

(F) ERAEAEECEAER (@) Other unsecured loans repayable within five years
HERBOELIEER_ZE include US$230,000,000 unsecured convertible
—ERR=Z+B#HITZ bonds due 2006 issued by the Group on 30 May
230,000,000 T —E T~ F 2001. The bonds are exchangeable for shares of
Pz SEROBRERES - the Company at a conversion price of HK$15.00
ZEEFTTH-_ET-F+t per share during the period from 11 July 2001 to
A+—BRE-ZFETEXER 17 May 2006 inclusive. Unless previously
At+tB(EEmMRXEREE redeemed, converted or purchased and cancelled,
W) EfE REREBEE the bonds wilt be redeemed at 121.78% of their
1500tz RaBEBR AR D principal amount on 31 May 2006. The bonds
Akt -  ZEFEBHOEE may be redeemed in whole by the Group at any
o - EMREERTHE B time on or after 1 June 2004 if the closing price
WZEEXFRA=1+—H of the shares of the Company on the Stock
BREARSEZ121.78%EE - Exchange for each dealing day during the period
ERRRRGNERRAA of 30 consecutive dealing days ending at any time
BT EXZBEBZATEN within the period of five dealing days prior to the
EE-tEXSESMZE redemption notice shall have been at least 130%
—REBZRZETEST of the conversion price in effect on each such
LCRERHBREZ130% @ 5 dealing day or at least 90% in principal amount
BEFEREERDBIONRE & of the bonds have already been converted or
BREAEBERIH  HEEE purchased and cancelled.

ARZBEMEAA B
ZHER 2 BUEE -

() BEXEEEARAFEFANEE (b)  Under the terms of the agreements of the
ZEEFETER 2 HBEK Group’s unsecured bank loans repayable within 5
FooERARIER(EE)R years, China Resources (Holdings) Company

BABI(TEHER]) ERE Limited (“CRH"), a holding company, is required
BERBEELRLTHZEL35% to remain as a beneficial owner of at least 35%
BEERREZBRNUERFE of the voting shares of the Company or remain as
ERERLAMEBE—HRBREZ a single largest shareholder (whether directly or
FH(THAEENBHEEW indirectly through its subsidiaries) of the
REIREFBEBER) - Company.
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T HOEREBIE 25. DEFERRED TAXATION
FEH
The Group
—EBBC-F CZTT—F
BAETR BETT
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
TE2ANRNELHEMES The movements in deferred
BEEMBE - EBMT taxation, arising from
accelerated depreciation
allowances are as follows:
n—HA—H At 1 January 36,574 34,655
BHRWEMNB QR Relating to subsidiaries acquired 97 —
TE T RE Provision for the year 27 1,927
[EHE% Exchange difference 8 (8)
R+ZA=+-—8H At 31 December 36,706 36,574
REABAREMBRER At the balance sheet date,
WR(BE) 2BETERIL the potential deferred
MIBEE,/ (BE)2E8BQAT - taxation assets/(liabilities)
which have not been
recognised/(provided) for
in the financial statements
are as follows:
ELXBNMRTELRE Arising from accelerated
depreciation allowances (5,115) (7.827)
EEEmMAPHEIHMELE Arising from unrelieved
tax losses 88,091 66,761
EXBEMEE Arising from other
timing differences 2,064 839
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DEFERRED TAXATION continued

Provision for deferred taxation in respect of surplus arising on
revaluation of investment properties in Hong Kong is not
required because such surplus does not constitute a timing
difference for deferred taxation purposes and realisation of the

surpluses would not give rise to any tax liability.

MINORITY INTERESTS

Included in the minority interests are amounts advanced to
subsidiaries by the respective minority shareholders of
HK$239,741,000 (2001: HK$286,748,000) which are
considered as part of their contributions, together with paid up
capital, made to finance the operations of these subsidiaries.

B o o %N 27. SHARE CAPITAL
—S8-% “EZ-F
2002 2001
BRGEE HE BROHEE EE!
Number of  Nominal Number of Nominal
shares value shares value
TR BETr T AT
‘000 HIKS'000 000 HK$'000
ETE Authorised

BREEES 12 L@k Ordinary shares of
HK$1 each 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000

BRETRGRRA Issued and fully paid
iz = At 1 January 2,015,550 2,015,550 1,988,785 1,988,785
TEBRE Exercise of share options 8,555 8,555 12,502 12,502
EERG Allotment of shares 56,300 56,300 14,263 14,263
B+-—A=+-H At 31 December 2,080,405 2,080,405 2,015,550 2,015,550
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—t+t A E

(%)

(2)

Wz BREEMMESRZ
China Resources Textile (BVI)
Company Limited ([ E &
MEE]) 2 BITRAD
RBTIA TR TR = ()
ARRRTERBRETES
fg & % 837w # 17
56,300,0008% 7 & @AY + &
(—FEHXMRERIALDE
#472,800,0007T °

B REBEHA  AFR
MTREBRERE  BIH
B RIESE] -

EffBERE BE_F
—HA=+- Erj%ﬁx%’?r
g UWER-ZZERE-_F—A
=+-BgRL-EiEZE
ERZEEHBAD T&E
MEBAAZER (BEAA
EE) -

MABDERRR 2T
E-A=T—BZBRRARE
bz BT B - %3
Egn—_g——-F—A=+
—BEE®R - ARAEFERA
MeEERSEZRLER
B ZECERSEEER
AEBEZBTRNFRTE
£ BAEEZEIEES -
MITHERMITESMRLM

27. SHARE CAPITAL continued

(a)

On acquisition by the Company of CRH’s entire
issued share capital of China Resources Textiles
(BVI) Company Limited (the “Textile Group”), the
consideration was satisfied by (i) the issue of
56,300,000 new ordinary shares of the Company
at an issue price of HK$8.37 per share on
completion; and (ii) a lump sum cash payment of
about HK$472.8 million.

The Company operates share option schemes for
the purpose of promoting additional commitment
and dedication to the objectives of the Company
by participants. During the period under review,
the Company operates two share option schemes,
namely the “Old Scheme” and “New Scheme”.

The OId Scheme refers to the share option
scheme which subsisted until 31 January 2002
and was terminated on 31 January 2002. Eligible
participants of the Old Scheme were the
employees of the Company and its subsidiaries

(including the directors of the Company).

The New Scheme refers to the share option
scheme which was approved by the shareholders
in general meeting on 31 January 2002 and shall
expire on 31 January 2012. The board of directors
of the Company may grant options to eligible
participants including executive or non-executive
directars of the Group, any discretionary cbject of
a discretionary trust established by any employee,
executive or non-executive directors of the Group,

any executives and employees of consultants,
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27.

SHARE CAPITAL continued

professional and other advisors to the Group,
chief executive, substantial shareholder of the
Company, associated companies of the Group,
associates of director, chief executive and
substantial shareholder of the Company, and

employees of substantial shareholder.

The offer of a grant of share options under both
schemes may be accepted within 28 days from
the date of the offer together with the payment
of nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the

grantee.

Share options disclosed below and granted on or
after 31 January 2002 are issued under the New
Scheme while the remaining options are under
the Old Scheme. Certain share options granted
before 1 January 1999 under the Old Scheme are
vested from the date of grant to 16 September
2002. For share options granted after 1 January
1999 under the Old Scheme and for share options
granted under the New Scheme, these share
options are vested for a period of 10 years
immediately after the date of grant. Share options
granted under the Old Scheme and the New
Scheme are generally either exercisable within a
period of 10 years immediately after the date of
grant or between 20% and 33"/:% of shares to
be subscribed under relevant share .options will
commence to be exercisable in each calendar year

after the acceptance of a grant.
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e ol ol 27. SHARE CAPITAL continued
WM E A B B Details of the movements of the share options
SEEEESMmT granted under both share option schemes are

summarized as follows:

(i) EE(BEES) (é) Employees (including directors)
EREZE
Number of share options
THEE R-TBZE RIEEE REIEE RIEE RIEFE R-Z88=F
BET —FE—-H e 7 B %% +=ZH=+-H
Exercise o) R AT Granted  Exercised' Cancelled Lapsed WRTE
BREEH Pricc  Outstanding during during during during Outstanding
Date of grant HK$ at 1/1/2002 the year the year the year the year at 31/12/2002
Old Scheme
11/05/1996 3.856 8,150,000 — 6,038,000 — 2,112,000 —
17/11/1997 14.300 3,900,000 — — 3,200,000 700,000 —
07/12/1998 8.980 2,478,000 — — 1,540,000 938,000 —
13/10/1999 8.480 1,820,000 — — 320,000 1,500,000 —
06/01/2000 9.790 570,000 — — 570,000 — —
18/02/2000 9.590 2,000,000 — — 2,000,000 — —
20/06/2000 7.190 18,013,000 — 852,000 — 1,370,000 16,791,000
17/07/2000 8.860 922,000 — — 922,000 — -
14/08/2000 9.670 1,000,000 — — — 1,000,000 —
22/08/2000 9.720 240,000 — — 240,000 — —
21/11/2000 7.080 7,304,000 — 1,013,000 — 503,000 5,788,000
2171172000 9.290 214,000 — — 214,000 —_— —
2111172000 10.820 1,026,000 — — 980,000 46,000 —
21/11/2000 10.860 488,000 — — 488,000 — —
21/11/2000 11.730 800,000 — — 666,000 134,000 —
21/11/2000 11.950 1,682,000 — — 1,682,000 — —
11/01/2001 8.730 400,000 — — 400,000 — —
02/04/2001 8.430 9,578,000 — — 8,646,000 932,000 -
30/07/2001 9.120 400,000 — — 400,000 — —
61,985,000 — 7,903,000 22,268,000 8,235,000 22,579,000
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B e o 27. SHARE CAPITAL continued
L)) EE(BIEES) & (0 Employees (including directors)
continued
BERERE

Number of share options

FRE RIPRSE  WEFE  WAFE WAFE WAFE  RoSecE
=t+-H

BER -R-H g T B %% t=B=+-
Exercise MARTHE Granted  Exercised' Cancelled Lapsed MARTE
BHAH Pricc  Outstanding during during during during Outstanding
Date of grant HK$ at 1/1/2002 the year the year the year the year at 31/12/2002
Hate
New Scheme
07/02/2002 7.170 — 29,126,000 122,000 — 114,000 28,890,000
08/03/2002 7.500 — 980,000 — —_ — 980,000
19/04/2002 7.400 — 15,742,000 530,000 — 192,000 15,020,000
23/05/2002 8.900 — 300,000 — — — 300,000
02/08/2002 8.320 — 25,500,000 — — — 25,500,000
07/11/2002 7.700 — 2,000,000 — — — 2,000,000
— 73,648,000 652,000 — 306,000 72,690,000
61,985,000 73,648,000 8555000 22,268,000 9,541,000 95,269,000

FREBDEBTESNERE - £ Details of the share options held by the directors included in the above table are as

HEET : follows:
it 8

Old Scheme 27,402,000 — 5,712,000 7,026,000 2,078,000 12,586,000
g

New Scheme — 12,006,000 — — — 12,006,000
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LREBERTEENERE  H

HIEQOT

B
Old Scheme

oy s v N 27. SHARE CAPITAL continued
() ER(BEER)SH (i) Employees {including directors)
continued
BREHE
Number of share options
TEE R-BB-F RFFE REEFE RIEEE REEFE R-ZB8-%
BET —A-H & oRd H# X% t+t=ZBA=+-8
Exercise CEXiE Granted  Exercised' Cancelled Lapsed CEXbRd
REBH Pricc  Outstanding during during during during Outstanding
Date of grant HK$ at 1/1/2001 the year the year the year the year at 31/12/2001
Gt i
0Old Scheme
11/05/1996 3.856 9,160,000 — 1,010,000 — — 8,150,000
17/11/1997 14.300 3,900,000 — — — — 3,900,000
07/12/1998 8.980 4,710,000 — 2,232,000 — — 2,478,000
13/10/1999 8.480 1,850,000 — 30,000 — — 1,820,000
06/01/2000 9.790 1,300,000 — 730,000 — — 570,000
18/02/2000 9.590 2,000,000 — — — — 2,000,000
20/06/2000 7.190 24,026,400 — 5,013,400 — — 19,013,000
17/07/2000 8.860 1,000,000 — 78,000 — — 922,000
14/08/2000 9.670 1,000,000 — — — — 1,000,000
22/08/2000 9.720 240,000 — — — — 240,000
21/11/2000 7.080 10,109,000 — 2,805,000 — — 7,304,000
21/11/2000 9.290 214,000 — — — — 214,000
21/11/2000 10.820 1,026,000 — — — — 1,026,000
21/11/2000 10.860 488,000 — — — — 488,000
21/11/2000 11.730 800,000 — — — — 800,000
21/11/2000 11.950 1,824,000 — 142,000 — — 1,682,000
11/01/2001 8.730 — 500,000 100,000 — — 400,000
02/04/2001 8.430 — 9,940,000 362,000 — — 9,578,000
30/07/2001 9.120 — 400,000 — — — 400,000
63,647,400 10,840,000 12,502,400 — — 61,985,000

Details of the share options held by the

follows:

28,492,000

1,800,000

2,890,000

directors included in the above table are as

27,402,000

EMALHRAE 913 CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED




Bii5 R EME NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

“t+t BAEs 27. SHARE CAPITAL continued
(i) EHsHE:E (ii) Other participants
BRE"E

Number of share options

THEE R-FB-E REEER REAEE REFE REEE  R-SECF

BET -A-8 Bt g3 B %% t=HA=+-18
Exercise HARTE Granted? Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed WARTE
REAH Pricc  Outstanding during during during during Outstanding
Date of grant HKS at 1/1/2002 the year the year the year the year at 31/12/2002
e
New Scheme
05/03/2002 7.350 — 24,720,000 — — 112,000 24,608,000
23/05/2002 8.900 — 80,000 — — — 80,000
— 24,800,000 — — 112,000 24,688,000

PR EE - Note :

. HEBREERBE-ZST -+ 1. These options were exercised throughout the year ended 31
A=+—BLEEEATE  7EER December 2002 with market prices at the date of exercise
MHENFEETIOTEE %940 ranged from HK$7.10 to HK$9.40 (2001: HK$7.15 to
(ZBZE—F BRI VSLIEEY HK$13.35).
13.357T) °

2. BE-ZZET S+ A=+—HLHF 2. No share options was granted to other participants throughout
EA TEREMC2EERIER the year ended 31 December 2001.

o
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ZA BEH
xEQ
AEEHEEESHHERNT4E6S

= 5
ENGaRRERZEHR -

(B) ZAiEHEPHE BAG
%ﬁ%:§§;$+:ﬂz
+—BNABREZEHERA
wmAE S A R BEAEE
7,055,053,000C (ZE & —
& @ # ¥ 7,353,745,0007T)
R 811,457,000 (=&
T —F : # % 795,488,000

JT) e

() —REBESEREEZR
B TEEPERLZHB
RAIRBERTR ZEERR
HE EELHTREESR
BOER -

(R) AEBRBRERFASBEAR
AEBBELARMAREZ A
4% % 271,351,000 (=
TE—F : #%337,730,000

7T) °

28.

RESERVES

The Group
Details of changes in reserves of the Group are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page
64 and 65.

{a) Goodwill and negative goodwill previously
eliminated against/credited to reserves and
outstanding as at 31 December 2002 amounted
to HK$7,055,053,000 (2001: HK$7,353,745,000)
and HK$811,457,000 (2001: HK$795,488,000)
respectively.

(b) General reserve is part of shareholders’ funds and
comprises statutory surplus reserve, statutory
public welfare fund and discretionary surplus
reserve of subsidiaries and associates in the

Chinese Mainland.

(o) The retained profits of the Group include
approximately HK$271,351,000 (2001:
HK$337,730,000) retained by associates of the
Group.
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—HN. s 28. RESERVES continued
/S
HEMRE
BRARE  Property RERH
Share valuation  Retained 298
premium reserve profits Total

RETT RETT AERTRT BETR
HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

b S The Company
R-_ET-F-F-8 At 1 January 2001 9,705,022 40,101 2,977,491 12,722,614
BIRNEE Premium on
shares issued 195,874 — — 195,874
EORNER Share issue expenses (166) — — (166)
EREH Surplus on revaluation — 70 — 70
BRREEEF Profit attributable to
shareholders — — 1,013,087 1,013,087
RE Dividends — —  (462,992) (462,992)
R-EE-F-F—H At 1 January 2002 9,900,730 40,171 3,527,586 13,468,487
BIRMAR Premium on
shares issued 447,752 — — 447752
BARMER Share issue expenses (47) — — (47)
EftA% Surplus on revaluations — 5,000 — 5,000
R 5 7R {5 A Profit attributable to
shareholders — — 80,250 80,250
&2 Dividends — —  (912,713)  (912,713)
RZBEB-F+T-A=+-0H At 31 December 2002 10,348,435 45171 2,695,123 13,088,729

RABAEIBETRREZHERE Reserves of the Company available for distribution to
#2,695,123,0000 (—FZT — & ¢ shareholders amounted to HK$2,695,123,000 (2001:
M3 527,586,0007T) ° HK$3,527,586,000).
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“thESEENER 29. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

Mt 5% STATEMENT
B, RggEgz Cash flows from operating activities
RERA
—83CF ZEE—F
BETT BET T
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
B AR Profit before taxation 1,938,057 1,729,680
HE Adjustment for :
FEEBMERTEE Share of results of associates (449,930) (422,559)
HERE NG Loss/{profit) on disposal
MEEE/( m%‘J of associates 1,959 (59,085)
TEMBERAMGET Profit on disposal of subsidiaries (474) (9,289)
BEMA Dividend income (14,525) (12,888)
FEKA Interest income (140,311) (255,272)
FexH Interest expenses 285,460 403,232
HEBTEE (RN /EE (Profitifloss on disposal of fixed assets (6,081) 10,815
CHAZETEAERESE Impairment loss recognised on
fixed assets 13,068 6,000
BVEEHY Amartisation of intangible assets 80,559 50,281
ERZAHE Negative goodwill recognised (9,627) —
he Depreciation 819,849 571,419
CHRACHEAREE Tank storage service fee utilised 21,600 21,600
BERRBLERRZRE Loss recognised in respect of
PERZER investment in an associate — 292,012
EEBR Revaluation deficit 57,410 —
HERSEHI Operating profit before working
LEER capital changes 2,597,014 2,325,946
NEFEZEY Changes in stock of properties 46,336 (188,007)
EFEZES Changas in other stocks (350,645) 125,968
BOREMBUFELZ Changes in trade and
g other receivables (116,789) (196,375)
BeREafERFOZ Changes in stakeholder accounts 29,264 483,490
28
BOREMREAFECEE Changas in trade and other payables 751,025 (790,795)
GEmEzHS Cash generated from operations 2,956,205 1,760,227
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THhEEReERER

29. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

Rt 5% 47 STATEMENT continued
HEWB QT Disposal of subsidiaries
IEBCE ZE2E-F
BETT BETT
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
HEEEFE: Net assets disposed of:
TEE Fixed assets 82,949 17,444
BREER Intangible assets 4,150 —
Hipiz g Other investments 5,098 —
FH Stocks 13,343 11,652
E5RBEHELZA Trade and other receivables 47,205 18,031
ReRiRiTHEe Cash and bank balances 11,098 6,973
BEHREHRERNRE Trade and other payables {144,224) {15,361)
BNBE Taxation payable - (59)
REER Short term loan (75,200) (3,760)
DB RER Minority interests (6,778) (18,360)
BERS Reserves released {431) (1,961)
HEMBLAMBEN Profit on disposal of subsidiaries 474 424
(62,316} 11,023
TR RN Satisfied by:
ReERE Cash consideration 1,742 11,023
REZHERBESR Interest retained in associates (64,058) —
(62,316) 11,023
HEHBARMGEEER Analysis of the net inflow/(outflow)
REZERA/ () of cash and cash equivalents in
BEON respect of disposal of subsidiaries
BEHHSARE Cash considerations received 1,742 11,023
HERSRRITES Cash and bank balances disposed of {11,098) (6,973)
{9,356) 4,050
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TN EEHERER

29. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

Bt 5% 42 STATEMENT continued
AR, WEKE Acquisition of subsidiaries/business
nEER
ZBBCE ZTE-F
BETT BT
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
WEMEEETE - Net assets acquired:
BEEEE Fixed assets 2,021,017 1,408,946
EBREE Intangible assets — 2,230
REERR ZHER Interest in associates 129,223 —
Hip®RE Other investments 91,570 —
& Stocks 898,460 395,751
EHREMERKE Trade and other receivables 725,806 229,600
REHIE Taxation recoverable 2,102 526
Be RRTEH Cash and bank balances 335,590 126,124
ZHRAMENRE Trade and other payables (1,591,009) (733,910)
AR Taxation payable {9,586) —
RIE% Bank overdraft (5,443) —
RHEXR Short term loans {497,342) (361,080)
REER Long term loans (30,4686) {184,604)
ERRE Deferred taxation (97) —
DHBEESR Minority interests (459,175) (176,234)
WREBEELEZERE Negative goodwill on acquisition (137,594) —
BERBELZES Goodwill on acquisition 443,304 483,970
1,916,460 1,191,319
moRBABEHE LN Add: net assets of associate
EEFE held prior to acguisition (42,108) (2,076)
1,874,352 1,189,243
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“tTNEERERE 29. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
Kt 5% & STATEMENT continued
A. WBHEG C. Acquisition of subsidiaries/business continued
DR RBE
“BB-f “ET-EF
BETR AETR
2002 2001
HIK$'000 HK$'000
RTFFAER Discharged by:
A& Cash 1,329,353 807,656
RERH Shares allotted 471,231 —
HEMBLAK Interest in subsidiaries and
R WNETD oy associates disposed of — 45,244
BRRELS Balance of consideration
payable 73,768 336,343
1,874,352 1,189,243
KBEE /MOAFZ Analysis of net cash outflow of
REeRBEEERT cash and cash equivalents
BEOH in respect of the purchase
of business/subsidiaries’
undertakings
BeRE Cash consideration {1,329,353) (807,656)
WERERERRITAR Cash and bank balances acquired 335,690 126,124
WEEFREHRTES Bank overdraft acquired (5,443) —
(999,106) (681,532)
T. TEXREXZ D. Major non-cash transactions
ER B Y BE B Part of the consideration for the purchase of interest in
AEHEXZIEBAE subsidiaries that occurred during the year comprised shares.
B - ARk EEE Further details of the acquisitions are set out at notes 27(a) and
T EMEE R E 29C above.
XHEF=++(F) R
—t+h (@A) -
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e - 30. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
x£8 ERQF
The Group The Company
88" F “TF-F “8Q-F _F%-F
2002 2001 2002 2001
BETT ABTT BEFR EETR
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
REERRRATRZ Capital commitment
BARENT outstanding at the
balance sheet date
are as follows;
BENERRREZ Contracted but not
provided for
BARERETEE Purchase and construction
of fixed assets 354,407 124,987 — -
354,407 124,987 — —
EHABHRENZ Authorised but not
contracted for
BEMEIHX Expenditure in leasehold
properties 23,134 75,536 — —
BARERETERE Purchase and construction
of fixed assets 169,181 307,699 - —

546,722 508,222 - —
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=+— BEHNAE 31. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
(R) FTEHEREABA {a) The Group as lessee
r&E NS
The Group The Company
Z85-F “5%-F “BZ-f %%
2002 2001 2002 2001
BEFRL BETI #B¥Frn EETx
HKE'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
REER - Ao EH At the balance sheet
EXBHATRE date, the total future
BEFBELEH minimum lease
RAWT payments under
non-cancellable
operating leases are
payable as follows:
—E-FHER — Within one year 514,478 322,408 — —
—EE-FZE0EN — In the second to
(BEEEME)ER fifth vear inclusive 1,624,112 558,940 — —
—RELEZEER — After five years 3,993,666 181,808 — —
6,132,256 1,063,156 — —
EREEREEAE Operating lease payments represent rental payable by the
HERETEEMAM Group for certain of its retail outlets and properties. Leases are
UWEWEZFZA negotiated for lease terms principally ranged from 1 to 30
¢ MOUFTER—Z years. '
STEZEEFHH
=
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=+ - EEEARES 31.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS continued

(2) ZE@HERLEAA (b) The Group as lessor
b3 PN
The Group The Company
Z8%-F “FT-F “B8-F “TT—F
2002 2001 2002 2001
BETR BEBTT B¥Tn A¥ETR
HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000 HK$'000
REER  AAHH At the balance sheet date,
LERHNRTRE the total future
MEFEZER minimum lease
MnmT payments under
non-cancellable
operating leases are
receivable as follows:
REDE investment properties
—E-5RER — Within one year 199,346 156,833 1,335 1,209
—EE-EEETER — In the second to
(BEEEWE)EBR fifth year inclusive 195,812 190,686 1,152 586
—EERFZERR — After five years 15,844 56,042 — —
411,002 403,561 2,487 1,795

HEMEZHRETY
MREENTTF -2+
$O

These properties has committed tenants for an average term

from 1 to 10 years.
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=+ REHEA

ET ZRYE

BEHERE
Minimum lease

32. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

RERE
RERE

Present value

of minimum

payments lease payments
“2%CE 5% ZEEZE —T%-
2002 2001 2002 2001
BETRE EETT BETR BY%Tn
HK$'008  HK$'000 HK$'00C  HK$'000
REED  KEEBRE At the balance sheet date,
BREBNERRN L the Group's amounts payable
HFEBEWT under finance leases are
as follows:
T-ERER Within one year 13,447 14,945 11,082 12,183
EE_EEZEERER In the second to
(BREEERE)ER fifth year inclusive 16,466 23,143 12,885 17,652
EERFE2HRER After five years 1,724 5,920 1,552 5,437
31,637 44,008 25,529 35,272
W BRHMBER Less: future finance charges (6,108)  (8,736)
BEAEZRE Present value of lease obligations 25,529 35,272
BARTZEAR Less: Amount due for settlement
EEZRE within 12 months (11,082) (12,183)
ART_ERAEBEZR Amount due for settlement
after 12 months 14,437 23,089
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[t
[1]

EHAETZ ARG S

AEEBETEEEENRENR
ERXEME - FTHEEHZR
F-BE_FTE-F+-R=+
—BHIEEE  ERTHEESF
BHMBENR(ZTE — F
11%) « MIEDIRFLHEAE
EMBHENEBEATEERA
N HIWEFR R ARE S FIER] L
Al = HE o

CRAR A

OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES continued

The Group leases certain of its fixed assets under finance
leases. The average lease term is five years. For the year ended
31 December 2002, the average effective borrowing rate was
approximately 11% p.a. (2001: 11% p.a.) Interest rates are
fixed at the contract date. All leases are on a fixed repayment
basis and no arrangements have been entered into for

contingent rental payments.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

x50 ERH
The Group The Company
“28-F _TE-% IZBEZEF _TR-%
2002 2001 2002 2007

BETR AT BETR BETR
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000

REER ALIRKMBARRML
RTRERERERT
Er79RRE

At the balance sheet date,
there were contingent
liabilities in respect of
guarantees for banks and
other loans provided to
subsidiaries — — 4,794,000 6,062,900
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T EEALRS

5.

—_EFEE—E+—-FEZ+~
B ARG BRENEYE
944,000,0007T (F] T &£ )
BEEEEMBEZERE
PEESHIHTRE - &
EREDBEADTER -
TEEZERFEHFEEREC
TEEF+_A=F+—B1
FEZEZSHENNEBY
181,700,000 MET -

ZEREDUTARZM
WERBIR TR RIEETE
5 K B % 837x B {7
5€,3000,000FH EBR 5 &
(—EBXNRERELHE
®£472,800,0007T ° LIEXR 5
RZBEE_F—-ATK °

WERZRIIREEEERSE
EHEGEEEE-_ZEET=
FTZFE=+—RBLRWENM
BEESENREREZS
e T gEREE
160,000,0007T - FEHEEIR
HEBZEHNSHEEHEE
—EEREE+ZA=+—8
TEEORBENER
EE .
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

On 26 November 2001, the Company acquired
the CRH's entire issued share capital of the Textile
Group for an aggregate consideration of
approximately HK$944 million, subject to
adjustment. The consideration was arrived at after
arm's length negotiation between the parties
thereto and with reference to the pro forma
combined net profits of the Textile Group for the
year ended 31 December 2000 of about
HK$181.7 million.

The consideration was satisfied by (i) the issue of
56,300,000 new ordinary shares of the Company
at an issue price of HK$8.37 per share on
completion; and (ii) a fump sum cash payment of
about HK$472.8 million. The transaction was
completed in January 2002.

The acquisition agreement provides that CRH will
guarantee the audited pro forma combined net
profit of the Textile Group for each of the two
financial years ending 31 December 2003 to be
no less than HK$160 million. The guaranteed
profit for the year ended 31 December 2002 of
the Textile Group provided by CRH has been met.

CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED
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=+ BEEALRKS E

Z.

R-ZETE-EXA=ZH " &
AREPHEESAUALPER

NEZRFIZ—BBEK
BEREERAAFBEASE
EAERMHARIA) ([EHE
1) B 65%A 8 2 W B
#= REARARH
372,000,000t ( # & %
349,680,0007L) - RFHER
ESRANhBEERZZ2E
MBRR - ZREHNEEH
BARTFHEL2ETRE
EmMEE  HESHRESE
ZEE-FNREZZTEZ
FhAM BRERXHW
BEBEEMNEMTE5% -
FBEXHER BT -F+
BZ+ARBREK -

RZFEE-_FEAAZTH
H ZEEEHPEEEDN
—HHEE2ENBRAR —
EFREFRARFTZIRG
SR - FELSANOERY R
BEYRERL  REBAR
# 54,110,0007C (%) & #
50,860,0007T) ¢ R(i)EiE Rk
RHEEUREMNRTER
ZERE REBARARE
19,460,000 ( % &
18,300,0007T) ©

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS continued

The Company entered into an acquisition agreement
with CRNC and P EE A E 5 2 & on 3 June 2002
for the acquisition of 65% equity interest in China
Resources Vanguard Co. Ltd. (formerly known as
China Vanguard Super Department Co. Ltd) ("CR
Vanguard”) at a consideration of RMB372,000,000
(HK$349,680,000). #HEAEZ 52 7] is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of CRNC. The consideration was
arrived at after arm’s length negotiation between the
parties thereto and with reference to price earnings
multiple and represents approximately 65% of the
total cost of investments of the vendors in their
acquisition of CR Vanguard through various
acquisitions over a period from August 2001 to May
2002. The transaction was completed on 26 July
2002.

CR Vanguard has entered into two contracts with
China Resources Construction Corp., an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of CRNC on 25 September
2002 respectively for (i) the construction of its
logistics center in Shenzhen; and (i) the construction
and decoration of CR Vanguard's Hua Biao shop
located in  Guangzhou, Tian He District, at
considerations of RMB54,110,000 (approximately
HK$50,860,000) and RMB 19,460,000 (approximately
HK$18,300,000) respectively.
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E+H.BAEALRZS S 34, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS continued
T, E=R AEETTEH D. During the year, the Group also entered into
BREBALTEIL transactions with related parties as follows:
LWTRS
ZE8CE —RZ-F
BRI BETT
2002 2001
KK$'000 HK$'000
AEARREZHERF Sales of goods to fellow
HEEL (HEF) subsidiaries (note a) 152,120 23,712
ABRAAEE/MBEARRE Provision for godown and storage
EEBRB(WEF) services to fellow subsidiaries
(note a) 327 937
RELREBAZHELR Purchases of goods from fellow
BAER(HEH) subsidiaries (note a) 53,641 97,076
MELEEE HBARIAEE Operating lease payments and
MOREREMER (HZL) other charges paid to fellow
subsidiaries (note b) 53,817 55,239
HEARKEZ-HANELA Construction services provided
REUEBERB (WEZ) by a fellow subsidiary {note b) 27,311 300,744
ER-MZERLERERFAERL Tank storage service fees payable
—BHBARIZHEHREE to a holding company and
(M) a fellow subsidiary (note b) 141,600 141,600
EREBZRAARERAEEY Storage facilities management fees
—FANBARcHERE receivable from immediate
EEER (WH2) holding company and a fellow
subsidiary (note b) 19,992 19,992
Rt - Notes:
(F) LEZXZRRESTEET - (a) The transactions were carried out with reference to the
prevailing market prices.
(Z) UEXZREEBELFHRBEANZTE (b The transactions were carried out in accordance with the
LT o pricing policies set out in the relevant agreements.
(R FA FRETRRBAER B (©) During the year, the Group also leased certain premises

BEETHAQRZERABERZ

Bf -

owned by the Company’s holding company at a nominal
amount.
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35.

36.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On 26 March 2003,
reorganisation proposal which, if implemented, will

the Company announced a

transfer all the Group’s concrete manufacturing and
related business, to a new holding company, China
Resources Cement Holdings Limited ("China Resources
Cement”). The shares of China Resources Cement are
proposed to be distributed to the shareholders of the
Company through a bonus distribution in the form of a
dividend in specie. It is intended that the shares of China
Resources Cement will be listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited by way of
introduction following the distribution. The unaudited
pro forma combined net asset value of China Resources
Cement and its subsidiaries and associates s
approximately HK$556.7 million as at 31 December
2002, representing approximately 4% of the unaudited
consolidated net asset value of the Group as at 30

September 2002.

The group reorganisation is conditional on, among other
things, the approval of independent shareholders of the
Company on the acquisition of certain cement and ready
mix concrete operations in the Chinese Mainland from
CRH.

Upon completion of the reorganisation, the Company

will not hold any shares in China Resources Cement.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements set out on page 59 to 141 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 3 April 2003.

CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED



TEWBLARERBEAT

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

RZIEF-_&E+-H=+—F at31 December, 2002

REEak
ERTSERRE/ Percentage of capital
WEHASRBERT HZRBRAZHEE EEEEE ARERE MURABAEE TR
Subsidiaries and Nominal value of issued ordinary  attributable to  held by the held by  Principal
associates share capital/registered capital the Group Company subsidiaries  activities
(=) BRRLEREH
1. Petroleum and Chemical Distribution
REBERAL
Incorporated in Hong Kong
ERRNL(EE)ERAA REREERF I SRR 100 - 100 HRELR
China Resources Petrochems 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Investment holding
(Group) Company Limited
EBLIARRA 50,000,000 RERHEAB 1T 2EBR 100 — 100 #ELEER
China Resources Chemicals 50,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Trading of chemical
Company timited products
EEAERLA 40,000,000 B EREEABITZEBH 100 - 100 BHEERBRES
Callany Limited 40,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Transpaortation services
and trading of
petroleum
EERRRERAA 10,000,000 R G EBES 1 T2 TEM 100 - 100 #EAWA
China Resources Gas 10,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Trading of liquefied
Company Limited petroleum gas
ERRERERRA 30,000,000 REREEBF 1T BB 100 — 100 HEHEHER
China Resources Petroleum 30,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Trading of petroleum
Company Limited products
EERUBRARF 5000000 BEREEAR I TZEER 100 - 100 EEHR
CRC Petrol Filling Station 5,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Petrol filling station
Company Limited operation
RENHESHRE T
incorporated in Singapore
@ China Resources Petrochem 1,000,000 BEREE ST NE L LER 100 — 100 BERAARILEBER

(Singapore) Pte Ltd. 1,000,000 ordinary shares of S$1 each
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China Resources Supermarket
(Hong Kong)
Company Limited

EHROHER2T 131 CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED

Bxastk
ERAEERRA/ Percentage of capital
MOARRBELH HERBAZEE rEQEY AREEE MEOLTRE TEEXE
Subsidiaries and Nominal value of issued ordinary  attributable to  held by the held by  Principal
associates share capital/registered capital the Group Company subsidiaries  activities
(=) TRAREBREHS
1. Petroleum and Chemical Distribution continued
REEARERT
Established in the Chinese Mainland
RUTEORAREES AR #5,000,0007T 80 - 80 GBELERBIREF
HEFRAT RMB5,000,000 Trading and storing of
petrochemical
products
(Z) =B€
2. Retail
REBTIMAL
Incorporated in Hong Kong
FE(FEFRDA 5,000,000k EREEEF 10T 2 AR 100 - 100 BEEH
Chinese Arts & Crafts 5,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$10 each Retail business
(H.K) Limited
ZEHEEERLF 48ANVTTREREEEBIOTZERR 98.1 - 981 ZTEXH
CRC Department Store Limited 4,821,177 ordinary shares of HK$10 each Retail business
ERERT S (FR) 90,000,000 EREEES L L AR 100 - 100 EBRER REZER
BREAR 90,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each EmiE

Supermarket operations,
investment holding
and wholesale of

merchandise




FEMEARREE LR PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

REBEZW
ERTEBERRE/ Percentage of capital
MOARRBERR ARBEZEE ZROEE FLAKF KOKEARE IEEH
Subsidiaries and Nominal value of issued ordinary  attributable to  held by the held by  Principal
associates share capital/registered capital the Group Company subsidiaries  activities
(Z} 2B&%
2. Retail continued
RAyPEREE Y
Established in the Chinese Mainland
EBBERRAA A % 112,500,000 65 65 — HB%%e
4China Resources RMB112,500,000 Retail business
Vanguard Co., Ltd.
@ LEABRGERAT 1,000,000% 7t 51 - 100 BEREERH2HE
US$1,000,000 Wholesale distribution of
apparel and
accessories
(Z) EBRNIREH
3. Food Processing & Distribution
REBEMAY
Incorporated in Hong Kong
LERERAA 1,046,258, 000R B R EE 100 - 100 HERRRDEH -
Ng Fung Hong Limited AR Tz EBR EREE B&
1,046,258,000 ordinary shares of RERREER
HK$0.1 each Distribution of fresh,
live and frozen
foodstuff, abattoir
operation, acting as
food agent
and investment
holding
RERMKERRLA 5,000,000 B R EE 94 - 94 BERARKE
Ng Fung Frozen Meats & BEIIZERR Trading of frozen
Aquatic Products 5,000,000 ordinary shares of meats and aquatic
Company Limited HK$1 each products
FERAERERDE 60,0001 F R EE 357 — 51 EE#HE

Chung Kong Luen Livestock
Company Limited

10002 BAR
60,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1,000 each

Wholesale of live pigs
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REgaok
BROEBRER/ Percentage of capital
HMORSRBELR ERMBEEEE Z50BE  FLAKF WHRAERE IEER
Subsidiaries and Nominal value of issued ordinary  attributable to  held by the heid by  Principal
associates share capital/registered capital the Group Company subsidiaries  activities
(Z) RANIREHSH
3. Food Processing & Distribution continued
REBEBHMAL
Incorporated in Cayman Islands
erEEERELF 60,864 ERABIRTZERBR 51 - 51 REZRE
@ China International 60,864 ardinary shares of US$1 each Investment holding
Fisheries Corp.
REZEZERRY
Incorporated in Panama
@ Jin Feng S.A. 008 BHREEIRT EBK 51 — 100 HEE HEBER
200 ordinary shares of US$1 each REABHERRKY
ZHERERS
Marine fishing, vessel
chartering and the
provision of ship
stores, fishing supplies
and bunker ol
RADEZBEBEMAL
Incorporated in British Virgin Islands
@ Victory Return Corporation IREREEET AR 51 - 100 BRERRHEKE
1 ordinary share of US$1 each BFERABHE
Marine fishing and
the provision of ship
stores and fishing
supplies
RAPBERERT
Established in the Chinese Mainland
@ ABMNEERRRARD 330,000,000 & @ & 25.1 - 51 EEE
EBRDA ARBITZ LB% Production of soya mitk
@*** A Xuzhou WV Food & 330,000,000 ordinary shares of
Beverage Limited RMB1 each
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RrEok
ERGEBRES Percentage of capital
WEARRBELA ZRREZEE TROEE A2FKF MWOLRAEE IERH
Subsidiaries and Nominal value of issued ordinary  attributable to  held by the held by  Principal
associates share capital/registered capital the Group Company subsidiaries  activities
(M 83
4. Beverage
REBEARBRY
Established in the Chinese Mainland
CEBERERREERAA 215145317 51 - 100 RENSHEBEER
** China Resources {Shenyang) Us$21,514,531 Manufacturing and
Snowfiake Brewery distribution of
Company Limited beer products
*EBEBEEERDE AR #116,240,0007 45.9 - 90 HENHSHEREER
* China Resources {Shenyang) RMB116,240,000 Manufacturing and
Brewery Company Limited distribution of
beer products
FREZFESZBERRE LS ARM¥70,000,0007 40.8 - 80 HMENDHEEEER
* Shenyang Huarunchuangye RMB70,000,000 Manufacturing and
Beer Company Limited distribution of
beer products
cEREAREFRAT AR #34,000,000% 51 - 100 HEMNHBEER
** Shenyang Huachuang RMB34,000,000 Manufacturing and
Brewery Company Limited distribution of
beer products
REEREERRLA 21,200,000% 7 51 - 00 HENSEEEES
** China Resources (Dalian) Us$21,200,000 Manufacturing and
Brewery Company Limited distribution of
beer products
CREFEEERRERRAE  ARY96,000,0007T 40.8 - 80 BEMAHBEESR

* China Resources (Dalian)
Bangchuidao Brewery

Company Limited

RMB96,000,000
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BEELH
ERFEBRRE/ Percentage of capital
BORAARBELT EREFZEE FEEAEE  ZRABEF MWOLAFEEE IEXB
Subsidiaries and Nominal value of issued ordinary  attributable to  held by the held by  Principal
associates share capital/registered capital the Group Company subsidiaries  activities
(@ Hag
4, Beverage continued
RPBREREIE
Established in the Chinese Mainland continued
CERZEBREERAA 23,200,000F T 459 — 90 HEAMHHLEESR
* China Resources (Jilin) US$23,200,000 Manufacturing and
Brewery Company Limited distribution of
beer products
CEHERBERRAF AR #246,000,0007T 51 - 100 BENSHBRER
** China Resources (Anhui) RMB246,000,000 Manufacturing and
Brewery Company Limited distribution of
beer products
RLEFREERAT AR # 141,000,000 459 - 90 HEAHHEEES
* China Resources (Anshan) RMB141,000,000 Manufacturing and
Brewery Company Limited distribution of
beer products
CERES (BB EE
ARELAT A R #100,000,0007T 316 - 62 HREANEVEER
* China Resources Blue Sword RMB 100,000,000 Manufacturing and
{Mianyang) Brewery distribution of
Company Limited beer products
I EHENRE
BREADT A B #15,000,0007C 316 — 62 HERNNHERRESR
* China Resources Sichuan Blue  RMB15,000,000 Manufacturing and
Sword Brewery distribution of
Company Limited beer products
CEBEH(AR)EE AR #100,000,0007% 316 - 62 HEAHHBEER

BREMLATF

* China Resources Blue Sword
(Shifang) Brewery
Company Limited

RMB100,000,000

Manufacturing and
distribution of

beer products
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TRMOARRBERR

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

ExEat
CRALERES/ Percentage of capital
HWHARRBELR ERBREAZEE ZEOBE FRRARE MKWHLARE IEXE
Subsidiaries and Nominal value of issued ordinary  attributable to  held by the held by  Principal
associates share capital/registered capital the Group Company subsidiaries  activities
(W BRBE
4. Beverage continued
RPBERSEYE
Established in the Chinese Mainland continued
*EBEH (R BE AR #38,000,0007¢ 316 - 82 HENSPHEBEER
HEEERA RMB38,000,000 Manufacturing and
* China Resources Blue Sword distribution of
{Chengdu) Brewery beer products
Company Limited
CHEEHRBEERAG A R #248,000,0007 30.6 - 60 HEMPHEEER
* China Resources (Wuhan) RMB248,000,000 Manufacturing and
Breweries Company Limited distribution of
beer products
CHEBEEEREERLR A R 120,000,000 357 - 70 HENSBREES
* China Resources {Harbin) RMB120,000,000 Manufacturing and
Brewery Company Limited distribution of
beer products
TREERREERLE 29,500,000% 7T 472 - 925 REMHEHEBEER

* China Resources {Tianjin)

Brewery Company Limited

U$$29,500,000
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FEMDAFREASRE] PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

REBSH
ERTEBRRE/ Percentage of capital
BOLAREEAR ARBAZEE ZEOEL  FRFAEF KOLKARE IEER
Subsidiaries and Nominal value of issued ordinary  attributable to  held by the held by  Principal
associates share capital/registered capital the Group Company subsidiaries  activities
() #H8
5. Textiles
REBSRM T
Incorporated in Hong Kong
EEELS (B RELE 100,000,0008 & & (8 100 - 100 FEREERREER
*China Resources Light EE T2 RR Trading of textile
Industries and Textiles 100,000,800 ordinary shares of materials and
{Holdings) Company HK$1 each investment holding
Limited
ERHEIBRAT 5,000,000 SR EE 100 — 100 FERAHERREER
China Resources Textiles EEITZEBR Trading of textile
Company Limited 5,000,000 ordinary shares of materials and
HK$1 each investment holding
HLFEERLE 2,000,000 8 RE B 100 - 100 BEEHRRAER
Hsin Hung Textiles Limited EEIT2 EBR Trading of apparel and
2,000,000 crdinary shares of investment holding
HKS$1 each
China Hua Yuan 30,000,000 SREE 100 - 100 EmODBZREER
Company Limited AE Iz KRR Import and export

30,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each
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|

Rxgnt
ERITEBERKRA/ Percentage of capital
HHARARBELT EREEzEE AROEN FL8KFE MHRAEE IEEH
Subsidiaries and Nominal value of issued ordinary  attributable to  held by the held by  Principal
associates share capital/registered capital the Group Company subsidiaries  activities
(B) #H#s
5. Textiles continued
REERERY
Established in the Chinese Mainland
EHRHRAZEARDA  30,000000F 100 - 100 #RERES
China Resources Light US$30,000,000 Investment and trading
Industries and Textiles
Investment & Development
Company Limited
WREBEERGEERDE  AR¥82370,0007 100 - 00 WHtEREHR
Shandong Linging China RM882,370,000 Production and trading
Resources Textiles of textile products
Company Limited
AFELETBERRA 3,500,000% T 100 - 100 HHhEEREH
Weifang Huawei Textiles Us$3,500,000 Production and trading
Company Limited of textile products
MEBMERSBERLT 14,050,000 T 100 - 100 YHEEREH
Shandong Binzhou China US$14,050,000 Production and trading
Resources Textiles of textile products
Company Limited
LURBREMFEBRDE  10,500,000% T 100 - 00 YREEREH
Shandong Huimin China Us$10,500,000 Production and trading
Resources Textlles of textile products

Company Limited
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FEMLARIRBUAE PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

BEEAE

EROBARRER/ Percentage of capital
ROASRBELR gRkEzEE AROER ARRAKE MHLARE ITEEE
Subsidiaries and Nominal value of issued ordinary  attributable to  held by the held by  Principal
associates share capital/registered capital the Group Company subsidiaries  activities
(X} 9%
6. Property
REBERRL
Incorporated in Hong Kong
BERAFRAA MEREESB I EBR 55 — 100 BERRE
Harvest Fair Investment 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Property development
Limited
ZAWE(FR)ERLT WEREERT 1T 2 EEBR 100 - 100 REARRDEER
CRE Properties (Hong Kong) 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Investment holding and
Limited property management
Redland Consultants Limited 2R BREAEEE L EBR 100 — 100 BERE
2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Property investment
KEMMEEEFROE UREBEEER T2 EBR 100 - 100 MEER
Winland Praperty 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Property management
Management Limited
EBEEZARLA) SREREEEB L EAR 88.6 - 886 WIXER
Worldfaith Properties Limited 3 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Property redevelopment
CRE Property (Silvercord) REREEAB Tz EAR 100 — 00 MERE
Limited 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Property investment
CRE Property (Argyle Centre) 2REREEE¥ IR ZLTRAR 100 - 100 HEHE
Limited 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Property holding
CRE Property (Lok Sing Centre) 2BEREEERITZ EBR 100 - 100 BERE
Limited 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Property investment
CRE Property {Nan Fung Centre) 2B EREEEL I T2 EBR 100 — 100 DERE

Limited

2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each

Property investment
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FEMLAB REE QT PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

BEEHL
DRAFEERRES Percentage of capital
WMURARRBERR gREAzEE FREOEE ARARBE HWHLAABE FBER
Subsidiaries and Nominal value of issued ordinary  attributable to  held by the held by  Principal
associates share capital/registered capital the Group Company subsidiaries  activities
(R} HEg
6. Property continued
REDBLZBESHRAY
Incorporated in British Virgin islands
Allenby Properties Limited IREREEIZTZSER 100 100 — BEH
1 ordinary share of US$1 each Property holding
() HBERR#K
7. Investments and Others
REBEME L
Incorporated in Hong Kong
EHAEHE(FE) MREREEER I TIEAR 100 100 — BB
BEERA 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Financing
CRE Finance (Hong Kong)
Limited
TRERLIARLE WREREERS ITZEAR 100 - 100 HEREFHE
Redland Concrete Limited 10 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Manufacturing of
building materials
REEBSEMA T
Incorporated in-Cayman Islands
Purple Finance Limited REREEI1ZEL SRR 100 100 - B¥
2 ordinary shares of US$1 each Financing
Hebe Haven Inc. REREE1ZTZEAR 100 100 — BH
1 ordinary share of US$1 each Financing
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EEMORARBY AT PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

BxEI K
ERNEARRE/ Percentage of capital

HORBRBELR ERMREZEE EEQESL F0ABE WHAIRE TEEH

Subsidiaries and Nominal value of issued ordinary  attributable to  held by the held by  Principal

associates share capital/registered capital the Group Company subsidiaries  activities

{(t) REREKS

7. Investments and Others continved
REDBLZHSEMAL
Incorporated in British Virgin Islands

@#% A HIT Investments Limited 0RERAE 1 ZA 2 EBAR 10 - 0 REEESEEE
(TERERERER) 200 ordinary A" shares of US$1 each Investment in container
(operating prmcrpally in terminal operations

Hong Kong)
@# A Hutchison Ports Yantian WOREREEIZZTZERR 10 - 10 RESHBBEEE
Investments Limited 200 ordinary shares of US$1 each Investment in container
(FERTEALEEER) terminal aperations
{operating principally in the
Chinese Mainland)

Bzt

Notes:

~ EFERs 2AHIFEWNEBRMENAFEEFERERNIIE R EREFRIH A EHEEREEAE KRS %7}2(5{1@

R B DB FE -

1. The Directors are of the option that a complete list of the particulars of all subsidiaries and associates will be of excessive
length and therefore the above list contains only the particulars of the subsidiaries and associates which materially affect the
results or assets of the Group.

= MEFAEHEN BFRVZIBLEMERRTNEIMRIAESLD -

2. Unless otherwise stated, the principal country of operation of each company is the same as its place of incorporation.

=. EPEABEIZLR BEAANRREGZEAXEME-

3. For companies established in the Chinese Mainland, the English name has been adopted by each company.

. FA - AEHALBRE1874352,0008 TEEAZ T 2BME - HP1,329353,000BA R FF-FXN + 471,231,000
TCAILAEE4756,300,000 AR A H EBREIT - AEEAFEEFMRBZAFF UL 2 EEFEEETRBERM A S E M
168,634,000/ 7T °

4. During the year, the Group acquired eguity interests in certain companies for an aggregate consideration of
HK$1,874,352,000 of which HK$1,329,353,000 was paid in 2002 and HK$471,231,000 was satisfied by the issue of
56,300,000 new ordinary shares of the Company. As a result of the acquisitions, the Group’s profit for the year and the net
assets at the year end have both been increased by HK$168,634,000.

A /N

JaN Associates

* ER-$1-

* Equity Joint Venture

> ShEEE

o Wholly Foreign Owned Enterprise

i rTHEELE

>k Listed Joint Stock Company

# PETH2EZBERRIEERERMTEEREEN -

# Significant influence is exercised through the participation of regular board meeting of the associates

@ YHEBEYH - BERFEHMITERIRA -

@ Companies not audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.
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TEYEGE
SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

RZBEBEZF+ZF=+H at31 December 2002

TE
i
Ha Group's

Locatien fnterest

EEE#

(F 5 3K)
Floor Area Az
{sq.m.) Type

HOES

Lease Term

HEREYH

Properties held for investment

5®
Hong Kong

EERE

EHRBIFEEFBI03R

AR 65245 2 R ER &

3t R 70045 £ 700858 2 87 &% 100%
CRE Building

303 Hennessy Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong

IL6524 R.P. and IL7004-7008 R.P.

EaghL—HBmBARG > 48 4TS 58
RBORAEFIEEENMERESR

NEHE AW ERSH T E EEH65HK 100%
Argyle Centre, Phase |

Portion A on Basement, 4/F and Flat Roof

5/F and Part of External Walls and the

Sign board of Portion A of Argyle Centre facing

Sai Yeung Choi Street South and Argyle Street

and scavenging lane,
688 Nathan Road
65 Argyle Street
Mongkok

Kowloon
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TEMHPE SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

xE£Q BREEH

PR b RE 35 (F733K)
it Group's Floor Area BRg HHEH
Location Interest (sg.m.) Type Lease Term
BIEREWES
Properties held for investment continued
mEdL
HE3INRS7THEEN
A034—A041 - AQ44 - A128
A4201 - A4301 - A4502 &k A4602 BEff -
BOIEREE(ETE)
R3EBREERERORREBRZ M
FAZIBE I RIE264— 2985 100% 7,075 B/ &5
Nan Fung Centre c/ce Medium
Lorry parking space Nos. 31 and 57 on Basement
Units A034-A041, A044, A128, A4201, A4301,
A4502 and A4602 and portion on 1/F-3/F with
Flat Roof and the space between the floor ceiling
and the original concrete ceiling over portion of
264-298 Castle Peak Road
Tsuen Wan, New Territories
BH1T
T 9B - 10AKE R — 285
NBERDER T EMEIR 100% 1,309 =] K H
Star House C Long
Shop 9B, 10A on G/F and Shop B on 1/F
3 Salisbury Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon
BRBERS
243 R3001— 1N E
EREEBHEESR
A IR 1445 100% 2,631 B/ i H
8 Commercial Tower C/0 Medium

24/F and Room 3001-11
8 Sun Yip Street

Chai Wan, Hong Kong
Lot No. 144

ERMRERLA
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EEYEHME SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

2RE
i &
g Group’s

Location Interest

EEAR
(F 75 5%)
Floor Area

{sq.m.)

A
Type

HOFH

Lease Term

HHERENES

Properties held for investment continued

HEDL

#, T 5— 1857 20A + 208 & 20C5E & 1r -
BREADAADEFHAD(BAD) -
1E3BEERAERETS
EAMBRIGFE 19N RELH2-8% 100%
Lok Sing Centre

Shop Nos. 5-18, 20A, 20B and 20C on G/F
Entrance at Yee Wo Street (Entrance A)
Entrance at Sugar Street (Entrance B)

the whole of 1/F to 3/F

and the whole Flat Roof on 4/F Level
19-31 Yee Wo Street and 2-8 Sugar Street

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

BEHL

T 385% &

3958 # M 2B 415
FE1EAZI0ENORETE

SES03 B FIERECICEINBFER
WE13- 1415 16R17FEM

FUEES DR B R I8 305 100%
Silvercord

Shop No. 38 on G/F

Shop No. 38 on 1/F and Shop No. 41 on 2/f
Offices Nos. 401 to 410 on 4/F

503 on 5/F and 610 and 611 on 6/F

Tower 1 and Car Park

Nos. 13, 14, 15, 16 and 17 on Basement

30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon

EBOHARLA 144 CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED

8,982

8,251

B/ E
crep

=34
Long

&
Long




FEYMEHE SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

TER
G
L} Group's

Location Interest

EHEHER
(3£ 5 K)
Floor Area

(sq.m.)

AE
Type

B EH

Lease Term

BEREWMRSE

Properties held for investment continued

RERAXENE  HwHIGSE (BEEERMNE -
HE2W A (R EEE RIMNE) - HE3RE
1EETE 218 318 4BETE 5868 -
74 - 812802 - BOAEBBEB FIE - 10/ -

1148 121812012 1203k 1206 F 1208E B F 18
134813012 1308E B F12 - 1418 1402E1407F
BFH - 1581501 - 1503R1505E1508EBFTE -
e GtEIMERBESER
ENBRIEFESERINERG
EHENEBHE233 - 235 2372395 89%
Garley Building

Basement Floor, Shop No. 1 on Ground Floor
(including cockloft & exterior wall), Shop No. 2 on
Ground Floor (including cockloft & exterior wall),
Shop No. 3 on Ground Floor, 1/F and Flat Roof,
2/F, 3/F, 4/F and Flat Roof, 5/F, 6/F, 7/F,

Offices 802, 804 to 808 on 8/F, 10/F, 11/F,

Offices 1201 to 1203 and 1206 to 1208 on 12/F
Offices 1301 to 1308 on 13/F,

Offices 1402 to 1407 on 14/F,

Offices 1501, 1503, 1505 to 1508 on 15/F,

Main Roof and 2 Signboards at the North Side of
External Wall and 8 Portions of Exterior Wall for
Affixing Signboard

Nos. 233, 235, 237 and 239, Nathan Road,
Kownloon, Hong Kong.

9,215
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FEWHEHPE SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

D BEER
FRiEE (£ FK)
(A=l Group's Floor Area A® HAOER

Location Interest {sq.m.) Type Lease Term

FERENESR

Properties held for investment continued

LR

10 BA—FE - Ef7103& 1055

BRI EFEIBSRLERLI0E(ZE) 100% 629 wE 3:t
CNT Tower O/CP Long
Office A-F of 10/F, Car Park 103 & 105,

338 Hennessy Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong

—MNER B

32123567108

B {1236 237 ' 238%

EALRTHEBEENI8H 100% 1,232 = 32
Yat Chau International Plaza O/CP Long
Room 1, 2, 3, 5,6, 7-10

at 32/F, Car Park 236, 237, 238 at 2/F,

118 Connaught Road West, Hong Kong

EHRE

1218 (28) RE L2-36% 12-39

BREBFELITEI7-79% 100% 590 mF =34
Belgian Bank Tower o/CpP Long
12/F and Car Park Space L2-36 & L2-39,

77-79 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

REXE

AR EEIE BB 1655 100% 13,900 T & &
CAC Tower | Medium
165 Hoi Bun Road

Kwun Tong, Kowloon

FAEERNE

T -7 10 118  15Z20B 2 E (BREXE)

R T1— 235 B -

NERDEEME ISR 100% 8,822 /= $
Chung Dah Godown Building ey Medium
Ground floor, 7/F, 10/F to 11/F,

15/F to 20/F (including Main Roof) and

car park Nos. 1 to 23 on Ground Floor

115 King Lam Street,

Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon
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FEWREE SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

& EEEKG

FRiGE# (EHK)
U= Group's Floor Area Bg HAFH
Location Interest (sg.m.) Type Lease Term

FEREYES

Properties held for investment continued

EATHO

TBI01RE - 2B E3REEFE -

GIEEE - 21— 24 EEBEH

WTEELSREN -

Bfz P1-P103, L1-L7, L9-L15, L17-143 -

FREBRABEBRR 100% 31,234 I/#& R
Ritey House I/cP Medium
Unit 101 on 1/F, The whole of 2/F, 3/F & Roof Flat,

Godown on 6/F, Cargo Lift Nos. 21-24

Car Parking Space No. L8 on Lower G/F,

P1-P103, L1-L7, L9-L15, L17-143,

88 Lei Muk Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories

METEWBET 8RBTSR

B 139~ L40 -~ L45 - 146 - 147 & LA8 &M

NERESBEI7E 100% 9,702 /% + EA
Yau Tong tndustrial City I/CP Medium
Workshop on 7/F, 8/F and 9/F of Block 8 and

Lorry Parking Space

Nos. L38, L40, L45, L46, L47 and

L48 on Basement

17 Ko Fai Road

Yau Tong

Kowloon

B 3E - [EIREE £ F=E = EFHE WOmAE I 1%
Note: C: Commercial R: Residential CP: Car Park O: Office I: Industial

HERMNBEBEBR2E 147 CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED




LEMEEREE
FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

—hANE —AAnE ZZETE —_ET-E ZBECfE
BB T BETT AETT BETT BETT
1988 1999 2000 2001 2002
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HIK$'000
BOER Consolidated Results
= £ Turnover 5,475,100 12,902,299 16,810,248 24,196,490 28,822,019
IR FEAR & F Profit attributable
to shareholders 1,268,428 1,442,839 1,656,733 1,204,807 1,402,945
BREREF Basic earnings
per share HK$0.81 HK$0.79 HK$0.83 HK$0.60 HIK$0.68
FRERE Dividends per share HK$0.15 HK$0.15 HK$0.21 HK$0.18 HK$0.47
REEERER Consolidated balance
sheets
BEEE Fixed assets 4,227,054 8,000,054 9,890,833 11,232,754 13,420,082
BRAEE Intangible assets 140,788 133,734 164,990 962,780 1,207,095
RHBARE Long term investments 4,633,331 4,376,828 3,378,605 3,284,920 2,311,601
BERE Prepayments — — 410,400 388,800 367,200
RBEEFRE Net current assets 6,126,904 6,548,785 4,545,039 4,040,581 2,431,224
EoER Employment of
capital 15,128,077 19,059,401 18,389,867 19,909,835 19,737,202
fig & Share capital 1,732,548 1,983,734 1,988,785 2,015,550 2,080,405
@B Reserves 4,269,326 8,987,629 8,770,662 9,971,835 11,206,328
Bt R A 2s Shareholders' funds 6,001,874 10,971,363 10,759,447 11,987,385 13,286,733
DHBRRER Minority interests 4,357,571 3,905,492 2,889,160 2,867,842 3,263,256
REaE Long term liabilities 4,891,821 4,163,048 4,706,605 5,018,034 3,150,507
FEEHE Deferred taxation 16,811 19,497 34,655 36,574 36,706
EEAESR Capital employed 15,268,077 19,059,401 18,389,867 19,909,835 19,737,202
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BRORETFREES
NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

LBEARLAEIIN_ET=FFLR(EH
M) THF=ZBE REEBEFEEE2HRE
HRESOBRBITRREERE  UERETH

£33

1. LEREREE_BE_SET/=+—
BLFREEERIMBRERESHBRER
BEBE -

2. EMRERARE o

3. ERESNETESHE -

4. BRECZEMEERESTRETCHWS -

5. fERFAEE ZRACRABER &
BTIRBRRESEBREER

[8& :

(a)

ETXOBEZBRT  —KEE
FHLERAPEZRNABH
BEBRETXOR  RBFBE
RZEPIRBERABAREMERD
B (THEZ M) B EHRAISKHE
AEMEFR AR TEBIIZR
T URARAMBRENRER
PRk A DR ZEHT LT RE
ESLHEEBRERRRE R
RERBABAEIRE ZEEMEAMR
EEXSH  BEXRTRAS
BERmERE1.00T2RG

BIELX@BRZHE  KRAFE
EREFEEAER ZARTRN
EELAETEBERNRERE
BBERBRQRZERTRAT
BEEZ10% W LiligmaE
RUEBERS R

NOTICE 1S HEREBY GIVEN that an Annual General Meeting of the
Company will be held at 50th Floor, China Resources Building, 26
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong on Thursday, 5 June, 2003 at
3:00 p.m. for the following purposes:

1.

To receive and consider the audited Financial Statements and
the Reports of the Directors and Auditors for the year ended
31st December, 2002.

To declare a final dividend.
To re-elect Directors and to fix the remuneration of Directors.

To re-appoint Auditors and authorise the Directors to fix their
remuneration.

As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the
following resolution as an ordinary resolution:

“THAT:

(a) subject to paragraph (b) below, the exercise by the
Directors of the Company during the Relevant Period
(as hereinafter defined) of all the powers of the
Company to repurchase shares of HK$1.00 each in the
capital of the Company on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange”) or on any
other stock exchange on which the securities of the
Company may be listed and recognised by the
Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong and
the Stock Exchange for this purpose, subject to and in
accordance with all  applicable laws and the
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange or of any other stock
exchange as amended from time to time, be and is
hereby generally and unconditionally approved;

(b) the aggregate nominal amount of shares of the
Company which the Directors of the Company are
authorised to repurchase pursuant to the approval in
paragraph (a) above shall not exceed 10% of the
aggregate nominal amount of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the date of this Resolution and
the said approval shall be limited accordingly; and
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REEFATES NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

(0

RARBEME  [EREHAB[I D
ERTAAZREBBERALET
H=FTREZAHLZHE -

0 ARATERRBEFEAE
BRE

(i) EPIEEARARBEABHET
ERREFAREZHRE
wmzB R

(iy BERELIABRRREL
BEEBRERRLDNE
FIARBEAA 2 REY
B

6. ERBHIEE  ZRYERRELER &
BTIRERREBRER

EEE

(a)

ETXOBRZERTRERLT
fEPBIESTBIR - — R EREIE
ARREERNABRME(EER
T RITERRF AR AR
B BORREFREREDHE
BREEEBI1.00T ZEIHIRG -
ARERSELTEXTES

TREZBEENCERER  HE
REBRE (BETLBARRRG
JEE - AREIRER)

EX@BRFAL I EERERRQF
EZRAAEMR(EEETXO
NELHAREBFEXRATETER
FRBRAERRTEZSENZ
EEEE  HaREE(EETR
BADERDZEE  RRES
RER)

ERBBEFREKBE LX@RFAE
WEMEZ XA FREREETR
BEREE(TRELTREBEHAENEM
FEER) RBITZRFAEEERE
(ERBREOEEHR(EEAT
) IVRBEAEREERAT
RYPRBETARFRDLBRE

6.

for the purposes of this Resolution, "Relevant Period”
means the period from the passing of this Resolution
until whichever is the earliest of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general
meeting of the Company;

(i) the expiration of the period within which the
next annual general meeting of the Company is
reguired by law to be held; and

(i) the date on which the authority set out in this
Resolution is revoked or varied by an ordinary
resolution of the shareholders in general
meeting of the Company.”

As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the
following resolution as an ordinary resolution:

"THAT:

(a)

subject to paragraph (c) below and pursuant to Section
578 of the Companies Ordinance, the exercise by the
Directors of the Company during the Relevant Period
(as hereinafter defined) of all the powers of the
Company to allot, issue and deal with additional shares
of HK$1.00 each in the capital of the Company and to
make or grant offers, agreements and options
(including bonds, warrants and debentures convertible
into shares of the Company) which would or might
require the exercise of such power be and is hereby
generally and unconditionally approved,

the approval in paragraph (a) above shall authorise the
Directors of the Company during the Relevant Period
(as hereinafter defined) to make or grant offers,
agreements and options (including bonds, warrants
and debentures convertible into shares of the
Company) which would or might require the exercise
of such power after the end of the Relevant Period;

the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted
or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted
(whether pursuant to an option or otherwise) and
issued by the Directors of the Company pursuant to the
approval in paragraph (a) above, otherwise than (i) a
Rights Issue (as hereinafter defined); (i) an issue of
shares under any opticn scheme or similar arrangement

ZHURBRDF
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RREEF A% NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

ZEBRETHIEMREL TR
BITRD  (IMRBARSEER
BEEXIANERAEERFMRMG Z
EHZERMITERBEIER
BMBITRMD  VERBERRF
AN R =t X U AVY
REFEBITRD) THRBAENRSE
RERBREAEFARTFESHTR
AEEERZ20% L3 &R
ARUEEBRF R

REREBEREME -

I ERUEIDERRNRERER
BERRETI=Z2FRIEZA
b2 B

(i) ARATERRBFAE
AR

iy EPBREARACTEBHAT
ERRBFAREZHRE
w2z B R

i) MWMEREL2ITREAE L
MATEREERD KB
FIRRBREMMZEEY
B R

[EEEFRIDEEALTESTER
MERRMARBRBERE —EELE
BHRIIRR2MZBRERRZA
ZEEREIEESRE 2RNE
SRS HARTREEREHNT
HRRERERRADFAZETEN
IMEREZARBHE R TR
TEARATEFHBEBREAELRR
BZHE  FHERBVEX
BREZBRRHAEMTE) <]

for the time being adopted for the grant or issue of
shares or rights to acquire shares of the Company; (iii)
an issue of shares upon the exercise of the subscription
or conversion rights under the terms of any warrants or
any securities of the Company which are convertible
into shares of the Company; or (iv) an issue of shares as
scrip dividends pursuant to the Articles of Association
of the Company from time to time, shall not exceed
20% of the aggregate nominal amount of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of passing
this Resolution, and the said approval shall be limited
accordingly; and

for the purpose of this Resolution,

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing
of this Resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

() the conclusion of the next annual general
meeting of the Company;

(if) the expiration of the period within which the
next annual general meeting of the Company is
required by law to be held; and

(iii) the date on which the authority set out in this
Resolution is revoked or varied by an ordinary
resolution of the shareholders in general
meeting of the Company; and

"Rights Issue” means an offer of shares open for a
period fixed by the Directors of the Company to the
holders of shares of the Company on the register on a
fixed record date in proportion to their then holdings
of such shares as at that date (subject to such
exclusions or other arrangements as the Directors of
the Company may deem necessary or expedient in
relation to fractional entitlements or having regard to
any restrictions or obligations under the laws of, or the
requirements of any recognised regulatory body or any
stock exchange in, any territory outside Hong Kong
applicable to the Company).”
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BRBEASAS

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

ERERIEE ZEAERASBER &
BTIHREZRREEREAR

(BESEHEAREZBENRAZER
FOHRERERBE  BENABERSE
DFRIRBEARAARGZBSHE L E5E
RepR BEBOAQBARARZBRNE
ERBLBE UBARBERAREZ
BEMHIECRRZERTARAES
BEEZ BOREEBIMMGOZ —BE
#REBEROZBETEEEN LR
REFREBBEZ AR ZEETRAE
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EREERW
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BeE

1.

ZEZ-FIWA=HA
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FERRERERE - TERREARED
FARR -
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REXH(MA)RERBAEEZHZ
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B RLUFESHERAZEERBOKER
TBZEAXE  BERARF_ETEZ
FER-—HFRETER -

7. As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the
following resolution as an ordinary resclution:

“THAT subject to the passing of the Resolution nos. 5 and 6
set out in the notice convening this meeting, the general
mandate granted to the Directors of the Company to aliot,
issue and deal with additional shares pursuant to Resoclution
no. 6 set out in the notice convening this meeting be and is
hereby extended by the addition thereto of an amount
representing the aggregate nominal amount of shares in the
capital of the Company repurchased by the Company under
the authority granted pursuant to Resolution No. 5 set out in
the notice convening this meeting, provided that such amount
of shares so repurchased shall not exceed 10% of the
aggregate nominal amount of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of the said Resolution.”

By Order of the Board
LEE YIP WAH, PETER
Secretary

Hong Kong, 3 April, 2003
Notes:

1. Any member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is
entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend and, on a
poll, vote instead of him. A proxy need not be a member of
the Company.

2. To be valid, a form of proxy, together with any power of
attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed, or
a notarially certified copy thereof, must be lodged with the
registered office of the Company at 39th Floor, China
Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding
the meeting.

3. The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 2 June, 2003 to Thursday, 5 June, 2003, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
effected. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all
share transfers, accompanied by the relevant share certificates,
must be lodged with the Company's Registrar, Standard
Registrars Limited at G/F, Bank of East Asia Harbour View
Centre, 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 30 May, 2003.

4, An explanatory statement as required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited in connection with the proposed repurchase mandate
under Resolution no. 5 above will be dispatched to members
together with the 2002 annual report of the Company.

EREMEERDA
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